
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
MEETING 


 
Wednesday, May 1, 2013 


2:00 P.M. 
 


Robert H. Grunmeier Room 
1260 Almshouse Road 
Doylestown, PA 18901 


 
 


 


AGENDA 
 
 


 
1. Call to Order 


 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 


 
3. Approval of Minutes of April 3, 2013 


 
4. Executive Director’s Report 


- Municipal Economic Development Initiative Update 
 


5. Project Updates 


- Route 202 Parkway 


- Report on Trial Feasibility Workshops 
 


6. Dublin Borough Vision Plan 


- Presentation –  Carter van Dyke, ASLA, AICP 
Carter van Dyke Associates, Doylestown, PA 


 
7. Act 247 Reviews 


 
8. Old Business 


 
9. New Business 
 
10. Public Comment  
 
11. Adjournment 


 
 


 
Please remember to contact us at 


215-345-3400 if you cannot attend. Thank you. 
 


AGENDA SUBJECT TO CHANGE PRIOR TO MEETING 







2 


 
  







3 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Minutes of Meeting 


April 3, 2013 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Joseph A. Cullen, Jr.; James J. Dowling; Raymond (Skip) W. Goodnoe; Ed 


Kisselback, Jr.; David R. Nyman; Robert M. Pellegrino; Carol A. Pierce; 
Evan J. Stone; Walter Wydro 
 


STAFF PRESENT: 
 
 


Charles T. McIlhinney; Lynn T. Bush; Timothy A. Koehler; David P. 
Johnson; Donna W. Byers; David A. Sebastian; Maureen Wheatley; David 
C. Zipf; Paul W. Gordon 
 


 
1. CALL TO ORDER 


Mr. Pellegrino called the meeting to order at 2:00 PM. 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 


All rose for the pledge of allegiance. 
 


3. CHAIRMAN’S ANNOUNCEMENT 
Mr. Pellegrino introduced and welcomed Evan Stone as the newest member of the BCPC board. 
Mr. Stone said he is glad to have been selected as a board member. Mr. Stone is a landscape 
architect and has been a member of the Northampton Township Planning Commission for the 
past 11 years.  


 
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF MARCH 6, 2013 


Upon motion of Mr. Nyman, seconded by Mr. Dowling, with the vote being 9-0 the motion 
carried to approve the minutes of the March 6, 2013 meeting. There were no abstentions. 
 


5. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
Ms. Bush extended regards from Darrin Hoffman, former BCPC board member. Mr. Hoffman 
sent his well wishes for continued success. 


 
6. MUNICIPAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVE UPDATE 


Ms. Bush updated the board on the Municipal Economic Development Initiative (MEDI), 
stating 25 municipalities have signed up for the initiative. Ms. Bush said Commissioner Loughery 
addressed the Newtown Business Commons Association and will engage New Britain and 
Chalfont boroughs on economic development. An updated list of the municipalities in the 
program and assistance plan was provided to the board. Ms. Bush will meet with Riegelsville 
Borough next week. Dublin Borough will hold a public meeting on April 11th for the Dublin 
Revitalization & Visioning Plan; local residents are hoping for small town character with a nice 
streetscape. 
 
Ms. Bush said the county is putting in place several small loan programs for the economic 
initiative that the Bucks County Industrial Development Authority will handle. 
 
Mr. Cullen asked Ms. Bush who is spearheading the initiative from the private sector. Ms. Bush 
answered the Bucks County Commissioners’ Economic Development Council. The council is 
made up of people in the business community. Mr. Pellegrino offered the Chambers of 
Commerce may be a good focus point. Ms. Pierce raised for discussion a recent article in The 







4 


Intelligencer on Montgomery County’s efforts for a streamlined Department of Commerce in 
efforts to respond to the needs of businesses in that county.   
 


7. NESHAMINY CREEK AND MILL CREEK/QUEEN ANNE CREEK TRAIL FEASIBILITY STUDIES 
Upper Neshaminy Creek and Mill-Queen Anne Black Ditch Creeks Trail Feasibility Studies 
Mr. Gordon provided a PowerPoint presentation on the Upper Neshaminy Creek and Mill-
Queen Anne Black Ditch Creeks Trail Feasibility Studies. The $60,000 grant for the Upper 
Neshaminy Creek study is provided through the Delaware Valley Regional Planning 
Commission Regional Trails Program – Phase II (total cost $75,000), and the Mill-Queen Anne 
Creeks study is a $40,000 grant through the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental 
Protection – Coastal Zone Management Program (total cost $80,000.)  
 
Mr. Gordon said the steering committees have met and parcel ownership research and initial 
base mapping has been completed for the studies. The first public meetings are scheduled in 
April. Work is beginning on initial field survey research to identify potential constraints and 
formulate initial trail routing based on constraints.  
 
Middle Neshaminy Creek Trail Feasibility Study 
Mr. Gordon presented on the Middle Neshaminy Creek Trail Feasibility Study. Funding for the 
study is a $40,000 grant (total cost $80,000) through the Pennsylvania Department of 
Conservation and Natural Resources. Mr. Gordon said they are in the process of assembling a 
steering committee, developing a project schedule and beginning base mapping. 
 
Upper Neshaminy Creek Trail Community Visioning Workshop 
Mr. Gordon gave a PowerPoint presentation that will be presented at the Upper Neshaminy 
Creek Trail Community Visioning Workshop scheduled on April 3rd at the Doylestown Library. 
Highlights of the presentation included a project background, benefits of trails, project study 
area, grant overview, study goals and objectives, steering committee members, concerns 
regarding the proposed trail, and envisioning the trail (usage, surface, amenities, and alignment.) 
Mr. Gordon said a form will be presented to the public at the meeting that will allow them to 
address their concerns. A copy of the form was provided to the board. 
 
Discussion followed on funding for trail work. Mr. Pellegrino polled the board for questions and 
thanked Mr. Gordon for his excellent presentation. 
 


8. ACT 247 REVIEWS 
The reviews of April 3, 2013 were mailed to the board for their review prior to the meeting. 
Upon motion of Mr. Wydro, seconded by Mr. Cullen, the motion carried to approve the April 3, 
2013 Act 247 reviews. There were no abstentions. 
 
Mr. Pellegrino polled the board for questions and commended BCPC staff for a job well done 
on Chalfont Borough review #7-13-1R. 


 
9. OLD BUSINESS 


Off-site Board Meetings 
Ms. Bush reported that although the Washington Crossing Visitor Center is open, it is not yet 
furnished; and Montgomery County has not provided a specific date for a joint meeting. Ms. 
Bush said she will pursue another venue for a June or July off-site meeting. At Ms. Pierce’s 
suggestion, the board agreed to schedule future off-site meetings during the months of April 
through October. 







5 


 
10. NEW BUSINESS 


Ms. Bush said PennDOT will be hosting a meeting on Friday, April 12th for reaction to the 
opening of the 202 Parkway. Municipalities are welcome to attend the meeting. Ms. Bush will 
report back with the results. Discussion followed on bike lane ridership. Mr. Pellegrino polled 
the board for questions. 
 


11. PUBLIC COMMENT 
There was no public comment. 
 


12. ADJOURNMENT 
Upon motion of Mr. Cullen the meeting adjourned at 2:50 PM. 


 
Submitted by:  
Donna Byers, Staff Secretary 


  







6 


  







7 


BUCKS COUNTY MUNICIPAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVE 
Municipalities in Program 
April 2013 
 


Municipality Type of Assistance 


Bensalem Work jointly with Lower Southampton on Brownsville Road concept 
plan. Development of riverfront area 


Bristol Borough Working with Borough’s economic development committee on Mill 
Street and general borough upgrades through their ―Raising the Bar‖ 
initiative 


Buckingham Farming; Pennsylvania Biotechnology Center, the Cross Keys area 


Chalfont Invited to be part of revitalization project 


Dublin Member of steering committee on revitalization 


East Rockhill Township visioning session 


Langhorne Updating master plan – focus on town center issues 


Lower Makefield Updating their comprehensive plan with focus on economic issues – 
older shopping centers; Edgewood Village; filling Class A office space  


Lower Southampton Study and concept plan for Brownsville Road – Street Road to Bristol 
Road 


Middletown Review planning for economic development and develop strategic 
plan 


Morrisville Borough visioning session 


New Britain Borough  Working with their economic development committee. Held 
Community Town Hall meeting March 5, 2013 


New Hope Standards for riverfront development – Bucks County Playhouse area 


Northampton Working on Holland area; industrial areas 


Perkasie Updating comprehensive plan for the borough with emphasis on the 
town center 


Plumstead  Plumsteadville area – Town Hall meeting for businesses and residents 


Riegelsville Parking issues 


Sellersville Industrial area redevelopment; downtown area 


Solebury Villages; river businesses and tourism 


Springfield Growth capacity of their industrial/commercial district, looking at 
constraints 


Tinicum Villages; river businesses and tourism; farming 


Upper Southampton  Standards for industrial area 


Warrington Gateway zoning for Route 611 corridor 


West Rockhill Study of area around Grand View Hospital and village of Almont 


Yardley Downtown/Main Street – parking, cooperation of merchants, zoning 







8 


  







9 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Staff Report 
April 2013 


 


PLANNING SERVICES 
 
COMMUNITY PLANNING 
 


 Meeting Attendance—Attended the regular planning commission meeting of the Quakertown 
Area Planning Committee.   


 Bristol Borough—Generated market reports and demographic information for use in the 
Borough’s economic development efforts. 


 New Britain Borough—Prepared summary of the March community meeting and began to 
develop goals and action statements based upon the results of the community meeting. 


 Langhorne Borough Comprehensive Plan—Continued work on draft chapters related to the 
plan including housing, historic resources, and community resources. Set up drop box 
application for committee members to review plan components as they are updated.  


 Perkasie Borough Comprehensive Plan—Presented the Park, Recreation, and Open Space 
and Finance and Management sections of the plan to the comprehensive plan committee. 
Solicited comments and questions from attendees. Continued data collection and draft narrative 
production of the plan. 


 New Hope Borough—Waiting for results of review by borough officials of the draft 
subdivision and land development ordinance. 


 Quakertown Area Planning Committee—Developed a summary highlighting transportation 
planning in the Quakertown Area over the last 25 years. While not an extensive list of all 
projects in the region, the summary includes various transportation studies and initiatives in 
which the Quakertown Area Planning Committee has been involved. 


 Solebury Township Comprehensive Plan—Continued preparation of draft chapters for the 
plan update including transportation, historic resources and future land use.  


 Tinicum Township Comprehensive Plan—Conducted fieldwork to determine business 
locations and descriptions. Attended a comprehensive plan committee meeting; presented drafts 
on commerce and industry and the survey. 


 Yardley Borough—Began developing goal and action statements for priority issues that were 
identified by community members during the Yardley Town Hall meeting that was previously 
held. 
 


Bucks County Comprehensive Plan 


 Continued work on research and writing of a report on Transit Oriented Design. Continued 
station evaluation, including starting the evaluation of the Doylestown train station. 


 Reviewed and revised municipal 2012 land use information. 
 


Planning Information and Agency Coordination 


 Attended the third meeting of the Dublin Borough Revitalization and Visioning Plan.  


 Provided information to the public on various topics including, but not limited to, development 
proposals, review letters, local zoning and municipal regulations. 


 Attended Bucks County Homeless Continuum of Care meetings. 


 Reviewed Act 14, 67, 68 NPDES permit applications. 


 Continued production of census and American Community Survey datasheets. 







10 


 Provided information to the Bucks County Department of Business and Community 
Development for the department’s update to the county’s HUD Action Plan. 
 


Act 247 and 537 Review Activity 


 14 Subdivision and Land Development Proposals 


 11 Municipals 


 7 Planning Modules 


 1 Traffic Impact Study 
 


ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING 
 
Neshaminy Watershed Sediment Reduction Study (FY2012 CZM-funded project) 


 Compiled a list of reports and plans (and corresponding web links, if available) conducted of the 
Neshaminy Creek Watershed. Began review of plans and reports. 


 Met with consultant, Princeton Hydro, to review list. 


 Coordinated with the BCCD for copying of plans and reports for consultant reference. 


 Prepared letter and mailed to municipal officials, engineers, consulting firms and police 
departments for those municipalities located in the study area. The letter contained project 
overview information, municipal input required and May workshop information. 


 Follow up email sent to municipal officials, engineers and consulting firms soliciting information 
from municipal officials and engineers regarding problem area. 


 Established format for BCPC and MCPC to follow to prepare GIS map to use while conducting 
stream assessments. 


 Began preparing presentation for May workshop. 
 
Stormwater and Flood Management Planning 


 Collaborated with Silver Lake Nature Center, Heritage Conservancy and DCNR on the topics 
and format for June workshop presentations. 


 Established presentation topics for WREN grant project.   


 Prepared for Silver Lake Nature Center’s June workshop. 


 Agreed to collaborate with Friends of Silver Lake as a project partner for their pending WREN 
grant project. 


 
Bucks County Open Space & Greenway Plan 


 Conducted initial community visioning workshop on April 3 for Upper Neshaminy Creek trail 
feasibility study. 


 Continued to prepare for scheduled April 30 Mill-Queen Anne Creeks community visioning 
workshop. 


 Continued research on concerns about trails including crime, property values, quality of life and 
environmental impacts. 


 Continued to investigate engineering services to be conducted as part of the two studies. 
 
Recycling and Solid Waste 


 Met with regional recycling coordinators at monthly meeting. 


 Inputting annual recycling survey data. 


 Working on logistics for first HHW event in Bristol at Truman High School. 


 Examining offering an electronic recycling RFP for a drop-off container. 







11 


 
Bucks Employees Green Initiative (BEGIN) Committee 


 Prepared annual report to County Commissioners (brochure and PowerPoint presentation). 


 Researching ways to reduce paper usage and increase paper recycling. 


 Attended Waste Management’s CNG fueling station ribbon cutting in Bristol. Discussed CNG 
planning issues with WM staff in relation to research and planning for a County station. 


 


TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM 


 
General Transportation Planning 


 Attended meeting to discuss prior Transportation Studies in the Quakertown Area. 


 Attended Regional Bicycle Task Force Meeting. 


 Reviewed PennDOT’s Functional Classification for Bucks County. 


 Updated Perkasie’s Street Classification Map based upon comments received from borough 
manager and traffic engineer. 


 
Public Transportation 


 Reviewed SEPTA Board Meeting Materials. 


 Continued composing report for SEPTA Rail Station Visibility Enhancement Study. Developed 
computer-enhanced images for project report. 


 Attended TMA Bucks Board Meeting. 
 
Transportation Assistance to Planning Staff 


 Discussed transportation related issues with staff for subdivision and land development reviews. 
  
Transportation Improvement Program 


 Provided Transportation Improvement Program information to various individuals and 
agencies. 


 
Delaware Valley Regional Planning Commission (DVRPC)  


 Processed quarterly reports for DVRPC contracts. 


 Attended DVRPC Long Range Planning Committee Meeting. 


 Attended DVRPC Regional Technical Committee Meeting. 
 
Geographic Information Systems (GIS) 


 Continued development of County-Wide Enterprise GIS program. 


 Continued database development of site addresses and EMS, Fire, and Police response zones. 


 Continued updating of Enterprise Geodatabase and ArcGIS Server. 


 Continued coordination with GIS consultant on the Land Records and EMS projects. 


 Continued development and support of County GIS Consortium efforts. 


 Continued updating and editing of county Road Centerline database. 


 Continued GIS technical software support to IT and GIS staff at Board of Assessment. 


 Continued support of County hosted GIS web server connection and interface. 


 Provided GIS technical support to Emergency Communication staff. 


 Continued technical support for MapJazz GIS Web Viewer. 


 Continued editing of county-wide data layers using GIS Data Reviewer tool. 







12 


 Continued upgrade of county GIS Enterprise hardware, software, and applications with 
GeographIT and county GIS staff. 


 Completed development and delivery of MH/DP GIS web viewer application. 


 Continued editing procedures on land base parcel annotation features. 


 Attended ESRI training seminar on development of Executive Dashboards 


 Attended Health Department GIS web viewer application demonstration. 


 Participated in the S.E. PA Regional Task Force (SEPARTF) GIS data sharing roundtable. 


 Field tested Health Department mobile web handheld and web viewer application. 


 Attended EMS Block Modeling tools second training session. 
 
GIS Map Production 


 Produced presentation maps for Community, Environmental and Preservation Planning units. 
 
GIS Transportation 


 Continued development of Region-wide GIS Transportation initiative. 
 







Bucks County Planning Commission 


Municipal Reviews 


May 1, 2013 
 


 
Municipality 


BCPC 
Number 


Name  
(Tax Parcel Number) 


 
Proposal 


Bensalem Township 2-13-2 (P) James Smith & Joan Wisniewski 
(2-51-5) 


Private Zoning Change:  
From R-1 to L-I 


Chalfont Borough 7-13-1R1 Borough Council Zoning Ordinance Amendment:  
Sale of Motor Fuel & Outside Eating Area 


East Rockhill Township 12-13-1 Board of Supervisors Zoning Ordinance Amendment:  
Nonresidential Accessory Uses & Buildings 


Falls Township 13-13-2 (P) RJC Investments 
(13-3-5) 


Private Zoning Change:  
From NCR to PIP 


Haycock Township 14-13-ASA1 Robert Pope 
(36-29-66) 


Agricultural Security Area Extension 


Hilltown Township 15-13-1 (P) J.R. Associates 
(15-32-3) 


Zoning Map Change:  
From RR to PC-1 


Nockamixon Township 30-13-1 Board of Supervisors Zoning Ordinance Amendment:  
Temporary Community Event 


Telford Borough 43-13-1 Borough Council Zoning Ordinance Amendment:  
IR 8 Use in C-1 District 


Telford Borough 43-13-2 Borough Council Zoning Ordinance Amendment:  
Definition of Municipal Use 


Telford Borough 43-13-3 Borough Council Zoning Ordinance Amendment:  
Information Media Display Signs 


Warrington Township 50-13-3 Board of Supervisors Zoning Ordinance Amendment:  
Personal Care Facility 


 



















































































































































Bucks County Planning Commission 


Subdivision and Land Development Reviews 
March 25 to April 19, 2013 


 


 
Municipality 


BCPC 
Number 


Name 
(Tax Parcel Number) 


Submission 
Level 


 
Proposal 


Bedminster Township 10058-C Weis Markets, Inc. 
(1-10-5) 


Preliminary Commercial Land Development: 
63,295 square feet 


Bristol Borough 11932 1212 Wood Street 
(4-26-68) 


Preliminary 5 Single-family Lots 


Bristol Township 11659-A Highlander Realty Management 
(5-7-91 & 5-8-216) 


Revised 
Preliminary 


24 Attached Units  
1 Open Space Lot 


Buckingham Township 6472-C Albrecht 
(6-14-77-4 & -82-3) 


Revised 
Preliminary 


Lot Line Change 


Milford Township 11660-E Milford Village Phase 1 
(23-15-99, -15-100, -10-179) 


Preliminary Institutional Land Development: 
162,900 square feet 


Morrisville Borough 11933 Delmorr 
(24-9-392-1, 393) 


Final Lot Line Change 


New Hope Borough 11149 The Preserve (Rabbit Run Preserve)  
(27-4-2 A & B) 


Final 37 Attached Units 


Nockamixon 
Township 


11935 Manwaring, Kelley, Piscatore 
(30-13-15, -16, -17) 


Preliminary Lot Line Changes 


Northampton 
Township 


10788-A Gasper 
(31-5-69) 


Preliminary Commercial Land Development: 
792 square feet 


Richland Township 10397-C Rittle 
(36-5-4 & -5) 


Preliminary Lot Line Change 


Tullytown Borough 4527-B Maples 
(46-2-6) 


Preliminary Commercial Land Development:  
6,349 square feet 


Warrington Township 11260-C Warrington Glen Phases 2 & 3 
(50-10-61, -62, -64, -65) 


Final 66 Single-family Lots 


Warwick Township 10339 Wawa Shopping Center 
(51-3-89-3 & -90) 


Final Commercial Land Development: 
40,502 square feet 


West Rockhill 
Township 


5626-A A & T Chevrolet 
(52-17-66) 


Preliminary Commercial Land Development:  
1,515 square feet 


 



























































































































































































Bucks County Planning Commission 


Planning Module Reviews 
May 1, 2013 


 


 
Municipality 


 
Development 


Tax Parcel 
Number 


BCPC 
Number 


Plan 
Number 


DEP Code 
Number 


Doylestown Township Pebble Ridge/Wood Ridge 9-7-55,-58,-59,-63,-
67,-71, etc. 


 20080-0142 1-09919-316-3m 


Hilltown Township Kirk Tract 15-34-112 10199-B 20080-0147 1-09924-330-2JREV 


Hilltown Township Regency at Hilltown 15-17-70,-74,-75-1,
77, & -52 


11471-A 20080-0143 1-09924-362 


Richland Township Slifer 36-38-51  20080-0145 1-09940-304-3s 


Solebury Township 6551 Meetinghouse Road 41-22-4  20080-0144 1-09944-375-2 


Upper Southampton 
Township 


Village of Southampton 
(Victorian Station) 


8-12-84; 48-13-39 
& -40; 48-12-82 


11336 20080-0146 1-09949-132-3J 


Warrington Township 151 Upper State Road 50-1-2-1, -3, -4, -5  20080-0149 1-09950-061-3J 


 
































































































































BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
MEETING 


 
Wednesday, June 5, 2013 


2:00 P.M. 
 


Robert H. Grunmeier Room 
1260 Almshouse Road 
Doylestown, PA 18901 


 
 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


 
1. Call to Order 


 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 


 
3. Approval of Minutes of May 1, 2013 


 
4. Executive Director’s Report 


- Municipal Economic Development Initiative Update 
 


5. Delaware Valley Regional Planning Commission 
Connections 2040 - Plan for Greater Philadelphia 


- Presentation: Michael Boyer, Manager 
 Office of Long-Range Planning & Economic Coordination 
 


6. Act 247 Reviews 
 


7. Old Business 
 


8. New Business 
 
9. Public Comment  
 
10. Adjournment 


 
 


 
Please remember to contact us at 


215-345-3400 if you cannot attend. Thank you. 
 


AGENDA SUBJECT TO CHANGE PRIOR TO MEETING 
 


  







  


2 







BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Minutes of Meeting 


May 1, 2013 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Joseph A. Cullen, Jr.; James J. Dowling; Ed Kisselback, Jr.; David R. 


Nyman; Robert M. Pellegrino; Carol A. Pierce; Evan J. Stone; Walter Wydro 
 


STAFF PRESENT: 
 
 


Charles T. McIlhinney; Lynn T. Bush; Timothy A. Koehler; David P. 
Johnson; Donna W. Byers; Paul W. Gordon 
 


Guests: Carter van Dyke and Lynn Reynolds – Carter van Dyke Associates 
James McGinnis, Reporter  


 
1. CALL TO ORDER 


Mr. Pellegrino called the meeting to order at 2:00 PM. 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 


All rose for the pledge of allegiance. 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF APRIL 3, 2013 


Upon motion of Mr. Wydro, seconded by Mr. Dowling, with the vote being 8-0 the motion 
carried to approve the minutes of the April 3, 2013 meeting. There were no abstentions. 
 


4. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
Municipal Economic Development Initiative 
Ms. Bush said there were no new projects for the Municipal Economic Development Initiative 
(MEDI); however, there are several meetings scheduled that may result in more municipal 
assistance. Current MEDI project activity was included in the board’s packet prior to the 
meeting. 
 
Ms. Bush spent a day with Steve Barth, Perkasie Borough’s Economic Development Director, 
on central issues. A company that makes medical devices that is located in downtown Perkasie is 
looking for a larger space. Several options for keeping this company in the area are being 
explored. 
 
Ms. Bush said New Hope Borough is focusing on finding an approach to dealing with the Bucks 
County Playhouse expansion. 
 
Commissioner Loughery continues to meet with many townships/boroughs, and was most 
recently in East Rockhill Township. 


 
5. PROJECT UPDATES 


Route 202 Parkway 
Mr. Johnson updated the board on the meeting held by the Route 202 Parkway Task Force that 
reassembled to discuss possible issues the Route 202 Parkway may be facing and how the 
roadway is working overall. Mr. Johnson said the roadway is operating as designed, and 
highlighted some findings that include traffic volumes, accidents, availability for police to 
monitor traffic and issue citations, possible hazards of rustic fencing near shared use path, 
signage, continuity in the naming of the old Route 202, traffic noise, and bike path maintenance. 


3 







Mr. Johnson said most aspects of redistributing traffic are working well. There are traffic signal 
timing issues on Route 611 at Edison Furlong and Route 313 at Pool’s Corner. Mr. Nyman 
asked if PennDOT is working on the issues at Pool’s Corner. Mr. Johnson answered yes, the 
project is under redesign and underway. 
 
Mr. Pellegrino polled the board for questions. 
 
Report of Trail Feasibility Workshops 
Mr. Gordon presented on the community vision workshops held in April to garner public input 
on the trail feasibility studies. 
 
Mr. Gordon summarized feedback for the Upper Neshaminy Creek and the Mill-Queen Anne-
Black Ditch Creek Trail Feasibility studies, stating there was a fair amount of support for the 
project. The public surveyed had concerns on the cost and building trails in the floodplain areas. 
Mr. Gordon presented on the results of the survey including trail activities people participate in, 
trail activities encouraged or discouraged on the proposed trail, trail surfaces, trial amenities, and 
other public preferences. Discussion followed on the cost of trail surface and associated 
maintenance. 
 


6. DUBLIN BOROUGH VISION PLAN – CARTER VAN DYKE ASSOCIATES 
Carter van Dyke provided a PowerPoint presentation on the Revitalization & Visioning Plan for 
Dublin Borough. Mr. van Dyke said two public meetings were held and residents/business 
owners said they liked the historic draw to the area, police department, older buildings, and 
convenience of shopping/errands. Among public concerns were traffic on Route 313, building 
restoration, signage, bike-ability, and truck traffic. Mr. van Dyke highlighted the assets of the 
community that include the Pearl S. Buck House, creating a sense of place, historical and 
character areas, land/residential uses, streetscapes, street improvements, parking, signage, and a 
proposed Master Plan Road area. Mr. Van Dyke discussed planning tools and incentives, 
municipal administration, transportation, and funding for the vision. Some stakeholders include 
a hospital, a realtor, and the owner of the Dublin Shopping Center. 
 
Mr. Cullen asked whether the impact of the proposed design will make traffic worse on Route 
313. Mr. van Dyke replied that a lot of businesses will be approached from parallel streets. He 
said the insertion of middle lanes and turn lanes at the three traffic lights will help keep traffic 
moving. 
 
Mr. Kisselback asked who will fund the roads. Mr. van Dyke said a lot of improvements will be 
funded by infill development and meter parking on the streets. There may still need to be 
PennDOT funds. 
 
Mr. Dowling asked if a bypass around Dublin was considered. Mr. van Dyke said the parallel 
streets will take a lot of the traffic off the main street; a bypass was beyond the purview of the 
study. The board discussed the right-of-way availability of a bypass.   
 
Mr. Cullen asked what makes Dublin different. Mr. van Dyke responded the area is well suited 
for individual merchants wanting to start a business, local produce shops, brew pub, art gallery, 
local attorneys, proprietors and the draw of economic development. He said restaurants and/or 
an inn would support the many visitors to the Pearl S. Buck House. Ms. Reynolds added that 
parallel roads would enable people to walk into the downtown areas rather than drive. There is 


4 







talk of expanding the Master Plan Road in Bedminster Township which would help with 
eliminating some traffic by dissipating the traffic over a bigger network of roads. 
 
Mr. Pellegrino polled the board for further questions. 
 


7. ACT 247 REVIEWS 
The reviews of May 1, 2013 were mailed to the board for their review prior to the meeting. 
Upon motion of Mr. Cullen, seconded by Mr. Stone, the motion carried to approve the May 1, 
2013 Act 247 reviews. There were no abstentions. 
 
Mr. Pellegrino polled the board for questions. 


 
8. OLD BUSINESS 


There was no old business. 
 


9. NEW BUSINESS 
There was no new business. 
 


10. PUBLIC COMMENT 
There was no public comment. 
 


11. ADJOURNMENT 
Mr. Dowling made a motion, seconded by Ms. Pierce that the meeting be adjourned at 3:00 PM 


 
 
Submitted by:  
Donna Byers, Staff Secretary 
 
 


  


5 







  


6 







BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Executive Director’s Report 


May 2013 
 
 


New Hope Borough and Bucks County Playhouse – Our economic development initiative for 
New Hope Borough is to work with the borough and the foundation that purchased and renovated 
the Bucks County Playhouse. Several meetings have been held to develop zoning regulations that 
will accommodate the playhouse and ancillary facilities without doing damage to the basic fabric of 
the zoning ordinance. I am also meeting with their revitalization committee because they are 
concerned about empty stores. 
 
Storm Water Management 3.0 – We have become accustomed to the basic tenets of storm water 
management, where we plan to compensate for increased runoff by detaining water to retain pre-
development runoff levels. During the early 2000s, this approach was broadened to keep water on 
site and infiltrate as much of the increased runoff as possible. Best Management Practices, such as 
infiltration areas, rain gardens, pervious pavement, and retaining natural vegetation. have become 
commonplace practices. We are now more engaged in the next level of protection for waterways. 
Our Neshaminy Sediment Reduction study is underway, with a consulting firm (Princeton Hydro) 
assisting us in fulfilling a DEP-funded project to determine the sources and causes of sediment in 
the Neshaminy watershed. Municipalities faced with DEP and EPA mandates to reduce sediment 
and pollution loads should be able to benefit from our efforts to identify problem areas and possible 
solutions.  
 
Lower Makefield Comprehensive Plan – We are beginning a ten-year update of the Lower 
Makefield Comprehensive Plan. This time, we are inviting all the township boards and commissions, 
from farmland preservation to traffic, to participate in the discussions and share their views with the 
township planning commission.  
 
Bristol Borough – I took Stephen Barth to Bristol for a tour and meeting with their economic 
development committee. 
 
Cross Keys Area – We will be working on a study of the Cross Keys area, which involves four 
municipalities, some thriving businesses, several empty buildings, lots of potential, lots of traffic, 
Doylestown Airport, and the Pennsylvania Biotechnology Center. 
 
I95-PA Turnpike Connection Meeting – I attended the meeting (along with Ed Kisselback and 
Rich Brahler) the update meeting on the turnpike connection. Phase I is funded.   


7 







  


8 







BUCKS COUNTY MUNICIPAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVE 
Municipalities in Program 
May 2013 
 
Municipality Type of Assistance 
Bensalem Work jointly with Lower Southampton on Brownsville Road concept 


plan. Development of riverfront area 


Bristol Borough Working with Borough’s economic development committee on Mill 
Street and general borough upgrades through their “Raising the Bar” 
initiative. Met with Borough and Steve Barth regarding intitatives. 


Buckingham Farming; Pennsylvania Biotechnology Center, the Cross Keys area 
Chalfont Invited to be part of revitalization project 
Dublin Member of steering committee on revitalization 


East Rockhill Township visioning session – June 10 


Langhorne Updating master plan – focus on town center issues 
Lower Makefield Updating their comprehensive plan with focus on economic issues – 


older shopping centers; Edgewood Village; filling Class A office space  
Scheduled information gathering meetings with township’s boards and 
commissions. First meeting held May 13, with the Citizens’ Traffic 
Committee, Farmland Preservation, Historic Commission, Historic 
Architectural Review Board 


Lower Southampton Study and concept plan for Brownsville Road – Street Road to Bristol 
Road 


Middletown Review planning for economic development and develop strategic 
plan 


Morrisville Borough visioning session 


New Britain Borough  Working with their economic development committee. Held 
Community Town Hall meeting March 5, 2013 


New Hope Standards for riverfront development – Bucks County Playhouse area 


Northampton Working on Holland area; industrial areas 
Perkasie Updating comprehensive plan for the borough with emphasis on the 


town center 
Plumstead  Plumsteadville area – Town Hall meeting for businesses and residents 


Riegelsville Parking issues 
Sellersville Industrial area redevelopment; downtown area 


Solebury Villages; river businesses and tourism 


Springfield Growth capacity of their industrial/commercial district, looking at 
constraints 


Tinicum Villages; river businesses and tourism; farming 


Upper Southampton  Standards for industrial area 
Warrington Gateway zoning for Route 611 corridor 
West Rockhill Study of area around Grand View Hospital and village of Almont 
Yardley Downtown/Main Street – parking, cooperation of merchants, zoning 


9 







  


10 







BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Staff Report 


May 2013 
 


PLANNING SERVICES 
 
COMMUNITY PLANNING 
 


> Meeting Attendance—Attended the regular planning commission meeting of the Quakertown 
Area Planning Committee.   


> Bristol Borough—Generated market reports and demographic information for use in the 
Borough’s economic development efforts. 


>  New Britain Borough—Prepared summary of the March community meeting and began to 
develop goals and action statements based upon the results of the community meeting. 


> Langhorne Borough Comprehensive Plan—Continued work on draft chapters related to the 
plan including economic development and future land use.  


> Lower Makefield Township Comprehensive Plan—Prepared information on demographics 
and socioeconomic characteristics and trends for the township and provided an overview of the 
material at the township planning commission meeting. Also at the township meeting, facilitated 
discussion to get input from members of the Historical Commission and the Historic 
Architectural Review Board (HARB) regarding issues of importance that should be addressed in 
the comprehensive plan update. 


> Perkasie Borough Comprehensive Plan—Presented the Recycling & Solid Waste, Hazard 
Mitigation, and Energy Conservation sections of the plan to the comprehensive plan committee. 
Solicited comments and questions from attendees. Continued data collection and draft narrative 
production of the plan. 


> New Hope Borough—Waiting for results of review by borough officials of the draft 
subdivision and land development ordinance. 


> Solebury Township Comprehensive Plan—Presented transportation and historic resources 
chapters to the planning committee, and began discussion of the future land use plan chapter 
and map. Provided an update of plan status to the Board of Supervisors at their regular monthly 
meeting.  


> Tinicum Township Comprehensive Plan—Conducted fieldwork to examine village features 
and confirm boundaries and entryways. Attended a comprehensive plan committee meeting; 
presented drafts on the resident survey. Met with township staff and prepared the Community 
Facilities and Services chapter. 


> Yardley Borough—Finalized goal and action statements for priority issues that were identified 
by community members during the Yardley Town Hall meeting that was previously held. 


> Lower Southampton and Bensalem townships—Initiated study of the Brownsville Road 
corridor. Prepared parcel, land use, demographic, and socioeconomic information and began 
developing study area mapping. 


> Plumstead Township—Initiated study of the Route 611 corridor in the Plumsteadville area. 
Prepared parcel, land use, demographic, and socioeconomic information and began developing 
study area mapping.  


> Northampton Township—Continued development of Implementation section, including the 
production of digital mockups demonstrating possible improvements, coordination with GIS for 
the production of maps, and the development of an implementation plan. 
 


 


11 







Bucks County Comprehensive Plan 
> Continued work on research and writing of a report on Transit Oriented Design. Continued 


station evaluation, including finishing the evaluation of the Doylestown train station. 
> Prepared second draft of municipal 2012 land use information. 


 
Planning Information and Agency Coordination 
> Attended the third meeting of the Dublin Borough Revitalization and Visioning Plan.  
> Provided information to the public on various topics including, but not limited to, development 


proposals, review letters, local zoning and municipal regulations. 
> Attended Bucks County Homeless Continuum of Care meetings. 
> Reviewed Act 14, 67, 68 NPDES permit applications. 
> Continued production of census and American Community Survey datasheets. 
> Provided information to the Bucks County Department of Business and Community 


Development for the department’s update to the county’s HUD Action Plan. 
> Attended the Emerald Ash Borer (EAB) Workshop sponsored by the Penn State Extension and 


Philadelphia Horticultural Society regarding the impending infestation of our area’s native ash 
trees by this destructive insect. Planning and strategies were presented to help municipal officials 
and landowners mitigate the imminent public safety, budgetary, and environmental risk of the 
coming EAB infestation.  
 


Act 247 and 537 Review Activity 
> 19 Subdivision and Land Development Proposals 
> 11 Municipal 
> 3 Sewage Facility Planning Modules  


 
ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING 
 
Neshaminy Watershed Sediment Reduction Study (FY2012 CZM-funded project). 
> Research studies conducted of the Pine Run watershed and Pine Run Reservoir.  
> Met with consultant, Princeton Hydro and BCPC staff to discuss the project and next steps. 
> Attended half-day in-field training sessions with consultants. 
> Conducted stream assessments within West Branch and Pine Run sub-watersheds. 
> Documented findings in the field and prepared reports. 
> Took pictures of stream reaches assessed and document problem areas. 
> Compiled lists of problems areas and potential solutions. 
> Researched funding opportunities for Phase II of the project which entails evaluation and final 


selection of problem areas and development of a plan/s for implementation. 
> Researched funding to conduct assessments of other sub-watersheds within the Neshaminy 


creek watershed. 
> Followed up with municipal managers and engineers via email and phone regarding problem 


areas that could be contributing to sediment loads within the Neshaminy Creek watershed. 
> Track all municipal/engineer feedback. 
> Sent out email reminders regarding the May 30th workshop. 
> Worked with BCPC and MCPC to prepare GIS maps to use while conducting stream 


assessments and for May 30 workshop.  
> Continued to prepare presentation for May workshop. 


 


12 







Stormwater and Flood Management Planning 
> Collaborated with Silver Lake Nature Center, Heritage Conservancy and DCNR on the topics 


and format for June workshop presentations. 
 
Bucks County Open Space & Greenway Plan 
> Conducted initial community visioning workshop on April 30th for Mill-Queen Anne Creeks 


trail feasibility study.  Also participated in Bristol Township Earth Day activities to solicit 
feedback and input on proposed trail project. 


> Selected project consultants for both the Upper Neshaminy Creek and Mill-Queen Anne Creeks 
trail feasibility studies.  Gilmore Associates is the project consultant for the Upper Neshaminy 
Creek project and Pennoni Associates for the Mill-Queen Anne Creeks project. 


> Initiated field work for the Upper Neshaminy Creek project seeking to identify potential 
constraints to the development of a trail. 


> Met with municipal representatives from Chalfont Borough, and Doylestown and Warwick 
townships relative to background information for the Upper Neshaminy Creek study.   


> Began assembling a grant application for a trail feasibility study under the Greenways, Trails and 
Recreation component of the Act 13 Marcellus Legacy Fund for a 5-mile section of the Middle 
Neshaminy Creek, extending from the confluence with Core Creek to the Bensalem Township 
border.  This would complete the trail feasibility work needed for the Neshaminy Creek. 
 


Recycling and Solid Waste 
> Met with regional recycling coordinators and new HHW contractor at monthly meeting. 
> Compiling annual recycling reports. 
> Working on logistics for second HHW event in Upper Bucks. 
> Reviewing the invoice from first HHW event. 
> Examining offering an electronic recycling RFP for a drop-off container. 
> Updating the Hard-to-Recycle Guidebook. 


 
Bucks Employees Green Initiative (BEGIN) Committee 
> Preparing survey for county departments to gather information concerning paper usage and 


copying/printing practices to use in The Green Committee’s effort find ways to reduce paper 
usage and increase paper recycling. 


> Attended DEP Roundtable meeting to hear about vehicle grant opportunities.  
> Discussed CNG planning issues with Committee members regarding planning for a County 


station. 
 
Natural Resource Planning 
> Got summer intern started on updating the Municipal Natural Resources Protection Ordinance 


Matrix. 
 
Municipal Comprehensive Planning 
> Prepared various environmental sections of the Perkasie Comprehensive Plan update and 


attended Borough Planning Commission meeting to present the draft narrative. 
> Working on various environmental sections of the Langhorne, Tinicum, and Lower Makefield 


Comprehensive Plan updates. 
 


TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM 
 


13 







General Transportation Planning 
> Attended Bucks County Bicycle Task Force Meeting. 
> Continued review of PennDOT’s Functional Classification for Bucks County. 
> Continued update of Perkasie’s Street Classification Map based upon comments received from 


borough manager and traffic engineer. 
 
Public Transportation 
> Reviewed SEPTA Board Meeting Materials. 
> Continued composing report for SEPTA Rail Station Visibility Enhancement Study. Developed 


computer-enhanced images for project report. 
> Attended TMA Bucks Board Meeting. 
 
Transportation Assistance to Planning Staff 
> Discussed transportation related issues with staff for subdivision and land development reviews. 
 
Transportation Improvement Program 
> Provided Transportation Improvement Program information to various individuals and 


agencies. 
 


Delaware Valley Regional Planning Commission (DVRPC)  
> Processed monthly reports for DVRPC contracts. 
> Attended DVRPC Job Access (JARC) Committee Meeting. 
> Attended DVRPC Regional Technical Committee Meeting. 
 
Geographic Information Systems (GIS) 
> Continued development of County-Wide Enterprise GIS program. 
> Continued database development of site addresses and EMS, Fire, and Police response zones. 
> Continued updating of Enterprise Geodatabase and ArcGIS Server. 
> Continued coordination with GIS consultant on the Land Records and EMS projects. 
> Continued development and support of County GIS Consortium efforts. 
> Continued updating and editing of county Road Centerline database. 
> Continued GIS technical software support to IT and GIS staff at Board of Assessment. 
> Continued support of County hosted GIS web server connection and interface. 
> Provided GIS technical support to Emergency Communication staff. 
> Continued technical support for County GIS Web Viewer. 
> Continued editing of county-wide data layers using GIS Data Reviewer tool. 
> Continued upgrade of county GIS Enterprise hardware, software, and applications with 


GeographIT and county GIS staff. 
> Continued editing procedures on land base parcel annotation features. 
> Continued field testing of Health Department mobile web handheld and web viewer application. 
> Attended Mid-Atlantic GIS Users Group meeting at ESRI Chesterbrook PA office. 
> Attended ESRI Open House workshops and presentations. 
> Met with Patty Smallcombe of United Way to discuss possible GIS collaboration on a 


Community Needs Assessment initiative. 
> Participated in S.E. PA Regional Task Force (SEPARTF) GIS data sharing conference call. 
> Assisted IT staff in the installation of wireless set-up within the Planning Commission. 


14 







15 


> Provided GIS data updates to both Upper Southampton and Plumstead Townships. 
> Provided GIS and GPS assistance related to the Neshaminy Creek Stream Assessment project. 
> Steve Tyrell, GIS intern from Bloomsburg University, started summer internship. 
 
GIS Map Production 
> Produced presentation maps for Community, Environmental and Preservation Planning units. 
 
GIS Transportation 
> Continued development of Region-wide GIS Transportation initiative. 
 













































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































		Agenda

		Minutes

		Executive Director's Report

		BC MEDI Project Update

		Staff Report

		Municipal Reviews

		Subdivision/Land Development Reviews

		Planning Module Reviews






BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
MEETING 


 
Wednesday, July 3, 2013 


2:00 P.M. 
 


Sellersville Borough Hall 
140 East Church Street 
Sellersville, PA 18960 


 
 


AGENDA 
 
 


 
1. Call to Order 


 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 


 
3. Sellersville Borough Activities 


 
4. Approval of Minutes of June 5, 2013 


 
5. Executive Director’s Report 


- Municipal Economic Development Initiative Update 
 


6. Holland Master Plan Update 


- Presentation: Michael Roedig, Planner 
 Richard Brahler, Transportation Planner 


 
7. Act 247 Reviews 


 
8. Old Business 


 
9. New Business 
 
10. Public Comment 
 
11. Adjournment 


 
 


 
Please remember to contact us at 


215-345-3400 if you cannot attend. Thank you. 
 


AGENDA SUBJECT TO CHANGE PRIOR TO MEETING 
 


  







2 


  







3 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Minutes of Meeting 


June 5, 2013 
 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Joseph A. Cullen,  Jr.; Raymond (Skip) W. Goodnoe; David R. Nyman; 


Robert M. Pellegrino; Carol A. Pierce; Evan J. Stone; Walter Wydro 
 


STAFF PRESENT: 
 
 


Charles T. McIlhinney; Lynn T. Bush; Timothy A. Koehler; David P. 
Johnson; Donna W. Byers; Richard G. Brahler, Jr.; Maureen Wheatley; 
Dennis P. Livrone; Bryan Guthrie, Intern; Danielle Cicero, Intern 
 


Guests: Michael Boyer, DVRPC 
Jamie Gwynn, Northampton Township  


 
1. CALL TO ORDER 


Mr. Pellegrino called the meeting to order at 2:00 PM. 
 


2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
All rose for the pledge of allegiance. 


 


3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF MAY 1, 2013 
Upon motion of Mr. Stone, seconded by Ms. Pierce, with the vote being 6-1 the motion carried 
to approve the meeting minutes of May 1, 2013. Mr. Goodnoe abstained as he was not present. 


 


4. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
Ms. Bush said she was in contact with Jodi Holton, the new Montgomery County Planning 
Commission director; they are coordinating a mutual joint meeting date. 
 
Ms. Bush reported on zoning issues concerning the Bucks County Playhouse. As part of the 
economic development initiative the BCPC is working with New Hope Borough and the owner 
of the Playhouse to help develop zoning regulations. 
 
Ms. Bush took Steve Barth, Perkasie Borough’s Economic Development Director, to Bristol 
Borough where he met with their economic committee and toured the borough. 
 
Ms. Bush reported the BCPC will be working on a study of the Cross Keys area that includes 
Doylestown Borough and Doylestown, Buckingham, and Plumstead townships. 
 
Ms. Bush said she and Mr. Brahler attended a meeting for the I95 Pennsylvania Turnpike 
Connection. Mr. Brahler said there is a 2016/2017 anticipated completion date. 
 
The BCPC continues to work on the Neshaminy Sediment Reduction Study. The consulting 
firm, Princeton Hydro, is assisting with the project. 
 
Ms. Bush met with Upper Makefield Township and presented on the Municipal Economic 
Development Initiative (MEDI). Mr. Wydro said the initiative was well received. Ms. Bush said 
she will follow-up with a letter to Upper Makefield Township. 
 
Ms. Bush reported that Commissioner Loughery would like to commit $500,000 to 
farming/tourism. Significant outreach will be made to farmers in Bucks County to survey their 







4 


financial needs. Ms. Bush said they hope to have a database by the end of the year for 
sustainability. 


 
TEVA, a business located in West Rockhill Township, will be closing their facility within the 
next four years. Ms. Bush said the BCPC, municipal officials and Pennsylvania State 
Representative Paul Clymer have met with TEVA concerning their facility in the hopes they will 
stay, but it is unlikely. Ms. Pierce asked if the facility might be a good location for Secant 
Medical. Ms. Bush said she and Mr. Koehler agree that it may be a good fit for Secant, however 
the timing may not work as Secant is looking for a site that is more immediately available. 
 
Ms. Bush provided the board with upcoming meeting dates for the MEDI. 
 
Mr. Pellegrino polled the board for questions. 
 


5. DELAWARE VALLEY REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION (DVRPC):  
CONNECTIONS 2040 – PLAN FOR GREATER PHILADELPHIA 
Michael Boyer, Manager, Office of Long-Range Planning & Economic Coordination, provided a 
PowerPoint presentation on DVRPC Connections 2040 – Plan for Greater Philadelphia. Mr. 
Boyer said the comprehensive long-range plan will be distributed for public comment by the end 
of the week. Mr. Boyer presented on regional trends, creating livable communities, building the 
economy, and establishing a modern multimodal transportation system. Mr. Boyer summarized 
challenges they are facing that include significant funding needs for structurally-deficient bridges 
due to declining federal funding and minimal local funding. He said the state senate is taking up 
a transportation funding bill which may mean $12 billion over the life of the plan. Discussion 
followed on land consumption, smart growth, zoning impacts, and bridges. 
 
Mr. Pellegrino polled the board for questions. 
 


6. ACT 247 REVIEWS 
The reviews of June 5, 2013, were mailed to the board for their review prior to the meeting. 
Upon motion of Mr. Goodnoe, seconded by Mr. Stone, the motion carried to approve the June 
5, 2013, Act 247 reviews. Ms. Pierce abstained on Hilltown Township municipal review: BCPC 
#12-12-3(P)R – Telegraph Investment Company zoning map change. Mr. Pellegrino remarked 
on the increase in review activity in May and polled the board for questions. 


 
7. OLD BUSINESS 


There was no old business. 
 


8. NEW BUSINESS 
Ms. Bush introduced summer interns Danielle Cicero and Bryan Guthrie. Both Danielle and 
Bryan attend Bloomsburg University and are assisting with environmental projects. 
 


9. PUBLIC COMMENT 
There was no public comment. 
 


10. ADJOURNMENT 
Mr. Goodnoe made a motion, seconded by Ms. Pierce for the meeting to adjourn at 2:45 PM. 


 
Submitted by:  
Donna Byers, Staff Secretary  







5 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Executive Director’s Report 


June 2013 


 
 


New Hope Borough and Bucks County Playhouse – The saga continues. Borough Council is 
working to create a zoning overlay that will make the theater a conforming use and that will allow 
for additional activities to enhance the theater area, including a restaurant and outdoor deck with a 
bar. The Playhouse owners have been cited for zoning and building code violations associated with 
moving ahead without approval or inspections.  
 
Lower Makefield Comprehensive Plan and Economic Development – We are working on two 
projects with Lower Makefield. The 10-year update of their comprehensive plan is underway, using 
an approach that we developed specifically for them. The township has many active boards and 
commissions, so we are inviting the members of these groups to attend the Planning Commission 
work sessions as we develop and review the plan. We have had the Historic Commission, 
Environmental Advisory Council, and the Disabled Persons Advisory Commission participate and 
share their ideas.  
 
The Economic Development Commission is undertaking a business survey, which we will design 
and coordinate for mailing and tabulation.  
 
Bristol Borough – Bristol Borough’s Economic Development Committee has completed the 
strategic plan called ―Raising the Bar.‖ It was presented to Borough Council on June 17. BCPC staff 
developed the presentation materials and produced the report, which was written mainly by the 
committee members with our input. I have attached the editorial that appeared in the Courier about 
their project. We will have a presentation on this report at a future meeting. 
 
Cross Keys Area – The four municipalities that share the Cross Keys area (Buckingham, 
Doylestown and Plumstead townships, and Doylestown Borough) will be working with us on a 
study of that area – traffic, pedestrian circulation, vacant buildings, expansion of the PA 
Biotechnology Center, Doylestown airport are all potential topics. 
 
Upper Makefield Township – We have added another municipality to our list of participants in 
the economic development initiative. We will be doing some visioning and brainstorming about the 
Washington Crossing village area with public input. 
 
Plumsteadville – Plumstead Township’s focus is on Plumsteadville, and there will be a public 
meeting on July 25 at the township building.  
 
Commissioner’s Economic Development Council (CEDC) – The CEDC met at the planning 
commission office on June 13, 2013. Commissioner Loughery provided an overview of the new 
―Bucks to Invest‖ economic development program (see attached handout for information on these 
programs) and the activities of the Bucks County Industrial Development Authority. Commissioner 
Loughery advised the council that the next steps would be directed toward the Chambers of 
Commerce and Workforce Development. I provided an update on the Municipal Economic 
Development Initiative including information on our efforts with New Britain, Bristol, and Perkasie 
boroughs as well as the Cross Keys and Biotech Center in Buckingham, Plumstead, and Doylestown 
townships. The next meeting will be held in early October. 
 







6 


Transportation Funding – The Pennsylvania legislature is considering legislation that would 
allocate funding for roads, bridges, and transit. The Senate passed a billed that devoted more 
funding to transportation than Governor Corbett proposed. The Bucks County Commissioners, 
along with their counterparts in the other four counties, all agreed on an op-ed statement on 
transportation. This is attached at the end of this report. 
 


Unsolved puzzle - phillyburbs.com: Editorials  
Posted: Tuesday, June 25, 2013 6:00 am  


Maybe what Bristol Borough needs is a puzzle champ or two running the town. We say that because 
nobody’s been able to figure out, despite many past efforts, how to fit the right pieces together to 
complete the borough as the destination community many believe it should be — either as a place to 
live or to visit. 


The latest such effort launched about a year ago. Bill Pezza — author, college professor, and a 
former council president — headed up a group of boosters that pieced together an economic 
development plan. The 10-point proposal was pitched to borough council last week and two days 
later to our editorial board. 


We’re not professional planners but from our layman’s perspective it strikes us as a sensible plan 
that targets all the right areas. Borough council should support it. 


Among the key points: rebuild neighborhoods; create financial tools to support investment in home 
purchases and rehabilitation; rebuild the business district; protect the town’s historic fabric; support 
arts and culture; grow the business base; revamp parking to relieve congestion; enforce borough 
codes. Those are just some of the good ideas. 


Perhaps the most intriguing of the bunch and the one that could accelerate all the others is recruiting 
and organizing volunteers. The reasoned belief is that government — local government in particular 
— can only do so much. ―We cannot do this alone,‖ Pezza told members of our panel, saying 
borough citizens need to view themselves as stakeholders in the community. 


Few would argue that point. Problem is, about 40 percent of borough homes are owned by absentee 
landlords and so are not maintained at a high level. This leads to concerns about the borough’s 
historic fabric, as quick fixes and slap dash rehabs have stripped older homes of their appealing 
ornateness and treasured finery. Tenants, who don’t have a financial investment in the community, 
lack monetary motivation to get involved — or even care. 


Turning that mindset around is among the plan’s focal points. To that end, the group is 
spearheading a campaign it has anointed ―Raising the Bar.‖ Folks are asked to volunteer in areas 
where they believe they can make a contribution. ―Bristol residents need to step up,‖ says Pezza. 


So do members of the business community and government officials. It will take a coordinated 
effort to fit the pieces together. 


Bristol has always had potential. It is a historic riverfront community with a thriving performing arts 
center, many restaurants, a host of well maintained public places, and a calendar of events that ought 
to appeal to families everywhere. That said, it is missing pieces ... among them, involved citizens 
committed to making their town as attractive to others as it is to them. 



http://www.phillyburbs.com/





7 


 
Op-Ed supported by Bucks County Commissioners and all county elected officials in the five-county region 
 
Transportation Funding is Crucial to Commonwealth Economy 
Few assets are as clearly regional as transportation. Our roads and transit lines are the very 
foundation of our region, allowing people and goods to move safely and reliably from home to work 
to marketplace. So it’s not surprising that it would be one of the key areas of interest and agreement 
of the regionally-focused Metropolitan Caucus, a convening body of County officials from the five 
counties in Southeastern Pennsylvania that works to build consensus around regional objectives, 
achieve shared priorities, and promote regional prosperity.  
 
While infrastructure upgrade and repair needs exist statewide, the Caucus would like to highlight 
the needs in Southeastern Pennsylvania not only because of the importance to our region, but 
because of the importance of our transportation infrastructure to the entire Commonwealth.  


Southeastern Pennsylvania is the geographic anchor of Pennsylvania’s economy. Situated on less 
than 5 percent of the state’s land area, the City of Philadelphia and Bucks, Chester, Delaware, 
and Montgomery counties are home to 31 percent of the state’s residents and account for 40 
percent of total annual economic activity in Pennsylvania.   


Communities across the Commonwealth depend upon the economic well-being of southeastern 
Pennsylvania. By value, approximately 34% of all domestic freight in the Commonwealth 
originates or arrives in southeastern Pennsylvania. The region’s airports handle nearly 83% of 
the Commonwealth’s domestic air freight by value, while ports in southeastern Pennsylvania 
accommodate 94% of domestic port shipments in the Commonwealth, by value. Freight-related 
industries in the five-county region provide more than 320,000 jobs. 


More than 26 billion miles are traveled on southeastern Pennsylvania’s roads annually, 
accounting for nearly one-quarter of all miles traveled statewide each year.  And those roads are 
less congested because 77% of all transit rides in the state are taken on SEPTA – providing 
essential transportation service to residents making over 333 million trips to and from work, 
school, appointments,  shopping or entertainment.   


For all of those reasons and more, the members of the Caucus were glad to see Governor 
Corbett establish transportation as an early priority of his administration and commend him and 
his Transportation Funding Advisory Commission for their work on this issue.  The 
Commission met the formidable challenge of identifying revenue sources to begin closing the 
funding gap that jeopardizes the safety of our roads, transit systems, and bridges.  


We applaud the Senate for passing Senator Rafferty’s bill to increase funding and urge the House 
to pass legislation this session to adequately fund transportation, using the revenue sources 
identified by the Governor’s Commission as a guide. 


As the Transportation Funding Advisory Commission stated in its report, ―The importance of our 
transportation system to the state’s economy cannot be overstated. Our transportation system 
facilitates the movement of workers to jobs, students to schools, consumers to stores, and products 
to their next stop in the global supply chain. As our economy becomes more integrated into the 
global economy, Pennsylvania requires an efficient and effective transportation system.‖ 
 
Our region’s ability to provide reliable, effective, and efficient transportation options will 
determine our ability to remain competitive – and to ensure economic opportunity for the 







8 


residents of each of our counties. We’ve waited long enough – it is time to take action and 
provide the funding needed to ensure that Bucks County, Southeastern PA and all of 
Pennsylvania have a transportation system worthy of this great Commonwealth.  
 
Robert Loughery, Chair, Bucks County Commissioners 
Joshua Shapiro, Chair, Montgomery County Commissioners 
John McBlain, Delaware County Council 
Ryan Costello, Chair, Chester County Commissioners 
Michael A. Nutter, Mayor, City of Philadelphia  
 
Members of the Metropolitan Caucus include the Mayor of Philadelphia, county commissioners from Bucks, Chester, 
and Montgomery counties, and county council members of Delaware County. The Caucus is staffed by the Economy 
League of Greater Philadelphia.  
 


  







Municipal Economic Development Initiative 


B U C K S  C O U N T Y  C O M P R E H E N S I V E  P L A N     2 0 1 0  T R A N S P O R TAT I O N  E C O N O M I C  D E V E L O P M E N T  I N  B U C K S  C O U N T Y    


  Bucks to Invest 


Bucks 
Rebuilt 


• Revitalization and reuse of older 
abandoned or underused industrial 
and commercial sites 


• $2,600,000 


Bucks 
Renewed 


• Leverage private investment in 
downtowns and Main Streets 


• $1,000,000 


VC4BC 


• Joint venture with Ben Franklin 
Technology partners 


• $2,000,000 


Bucks 
Guaranteed 


• Use CDBG program to guarantee 
Section 108 loans 


• $5,000,000 


 


Taste & Tour 
Bucks 


County 


• Work with farmers, agri-business, 
farmers’ markets, tourism 


• $500,000 


 


Innovation 
Bucks 


County 


• Innovation/Entrepreneurial Center for 
start-up ventures 


• $7,000,000 


Bucks County Industrial Development Authority will administer the following programs: 











9 


BUCKS COUNTY MUNICIPAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVE 
Municipalities in Program 
June 2013 
 


Municipality Type of Assistance 


Bensalem Work jointly with Lower Southampton on Brownsville Road concept 
plan. Development of riverfront area. 


Bristol Borough Working with Borough’s economic development committee on Mill 
Street and general borough upgrades through their ―Raising the Bar‖ 
initiative. Completed assistance on their 5-year economic development 
plan and presentation to Borough Council. 


Buckingham Farming; Pennsylvania Biotechnology Center, the Cross Keys area. 


Chalfont Invited to be part of revitalization project. Draft report issued. 


Dublin Member of steering committee on revitalization. Final report completed 
and presented to Borough Council. 


East Rockhill Conducted township visioning session in June. 


Langhorne Updating master plan – focus on town center issues. 


Lower Makefield Updating comprehensive plan with focus on economic issues – older 
shopping centers; Edgewood Village; filling Class A office space  
Scheduled information gathering meetings with township’s boards and 
commissions. First meeting held May 13, with the Citizens’ Traffic 
Committee, Farmland Preservation, Historic Commission, Historic 
Architectural Review Board. 


Lower Southampton Study and concept plan for Brownsville Road – Street Road to Bristol 
Road. 


Middletown Review planning for economic development and develop strategic plan. 


Morrisville Borough visioning session. 


New Britain Borough  Working with their economic development committee. Held 
Community Town Hall meeting March 5, 2013. 


New Hope Standards for riverfront development – Bucks County Playhouse area.  
Finalizing the zoning standards. 


Northampton Working on Holland area; industrial areas. Report to be presented to 
BCPC on July 3. 


Perkasie Updating comprehensive plan for the borough with emphasis on the 
town center. 


Plumstead  Plumsteadville area – Town Hall meeting for businesses and residents. 
Met with officials from the township and toured various sites. 


Riegelsville Parking issues. 


Sellersville Industrial area redevelopment; downtown area. 


Solebury Villages; river businesses and tourism. 


Springfield Growth capacity of their industrial/commercial district, looking at 
constraints. 


Tinicum Villages; river businesses and tourism; farming. Working on concepts 
for Ottsville. 


Upper Makefield Developing a program to study Washington Crossing. 







10 


Upper Southampton  Standards for industrial area. 


Warrington Gateway zoning for Route 611 corridor. Met with township planning 
commission. 


West Rockhill Study of area around Grand View Hospital and Village of Almont. 


Yardley Downtown/Main Street – parking, cooperation of merchants, zoning. 


  







11 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Staff Report 


June 2013 
 


PLANNING SERVICES 
 
COMMUNITY PLANNING 
 


 Meeting Attendance—Attended the regular planning commission meetings of Sellersville 
Borough and the Quakertown Area Planning Committee.  


 Bristol Borough—Generated market reports and demographic information for use in the 
Borough’s economic development efforts.  


>  New Britain Borough—Prepared a summary of the March community meeting and developed 
goals and action statements based upon the results of the community meeting. Met with 
Community and Business Committee to discuss results of the community meeting and what the 
next steps should be. 


 Langhorne Borough Comprehensive Plan—Prepared the draft economic development 
chapter and continued work on the draft future land use plan chapter.  


 Lower  Makefield Township Comprehensive Plan—Prepared the first draft of the natural 
resources chapter in the comprehensive plan update.  


 Perkasie Borough Comprehensive Plan—Presented Part 1 of 2 of the Economic 
Development chapter to the comprehensive plan committee. Solicited comments and questions 
from attendees. Continued data collection and draft narrative production for Part 2 of the 
chapter.  


 New Hope Borough—Waiting for results of review by borough officials of the draft 
subdivision and land development ordinance. 


 Solebury Township Comprehensive Plan—Began preparation of the second draft of the 
Plan. 


 Tinicum Township Comprehensive Plan—Prepared Hazard Mitigation and Solid Waste 
chapters. Attended a comprehensive plan committee meeting to discuss Community Facilities, 
Hazard Mitigation, and Solid Waste chapters. Held a meeting with staff members to discuss 
strategies on development of the Village Planning section. Began preparing Village Planning 
section.  


 Lower Southampton and Bensalem townships— Completed study area mapping. 


 Plumstead Township—Completed study area mapping, coordinated with township manager 
regarding preparation for visioning meeting, and conducted site visit.  


 Northampton Township—Continued development of Implementation section, including the 
production of digital mockups demonstrating possible improvements, coordination with GIS for 
the production of maps, and the development of an implementation plan. Met with the 
Township Economic Development Corporation to present transportation-land use concepts for 
the redevelopment of Holland Village.  


 East Rockhill Township—Facilitated a community visioning meeting with township officials 
and residents. A PowerPoint presentation summarized recent demographic trends, current 
planning and zoning policies, and the township’s assets/success stories. A three-tier visioning 
session resulted in various priorities and potential strategies that may be a precursor for 
determining potential changes moving forward.  The results will be summarized for use by 
township officials.  







12 


 Buckingham and Plumstead townships—Initiated study of the Cross Keys Area. Prepared 
parcel, land use, demographic, and socioeconomic information and began developing study area 
mapping.  
 


Planning Information and Agency Coordination 


 Provided information to the public on various topics including, but not limited to, development 
proposals, review letters, local zoning and municipal regulations. 


 Attended Bucks County Homeless Continuum of Care meetings. 


 Reviewed Act 14, 67, 68 NPDES permit applications. 


 Continued production of census and American Community Survey datasheets. 


 Assisted Morrisville Borough in preparing revised data for a census count challenge. 
 


Act 247 and 537 Review Activity 


 14 Subdivision and Land Development Proposals 


 3 Sketch Plans 


 5 Municipals 


 2 Sewage Facility Planning Modules  


 1 Traffic Impact Study 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING 
 


Neshaminy Watershed Sediment Reduction Study (FY2012) CZM-funded project). 


 Continued to conduct stream assessments within Pine Run sub-watershed and stormwater 
facilities assessments within Pine Run and West Branch watersheds. 


 Took pictures of stream reaches assessed and documented problem areas. 


 Documented findings in the field, compiled list of problems areas and potential solutions, 
and prepared reports to submit to the consultants. 


 Contacted municipal managers and engineers via email and phone regarding problem areas that 
could be contributing to sediment loads within the Neshaminy Creek watershed. 


 Sent out email to May 30th meeting participants to include presentations and meeting minutes.  


 Worked with BCPC and MCPC to prepare GIS maps to use while conducting stream and 
stormwater facilities assessments. 


 Worked with GIS staff and intern to develop a build-out scenario for the Pine Run sub-
watershed and surrounding land parcels (3/4 mile outside of sub-watershed boundary) to 
determine impacts on the sub-watershed based on developable land remaining. 
 


Stormwater Education 


 Prepared presentation for June ―Save Water, Save Land, Save Money‖  workshop, in partnership 
with the Heritage Conservancy, Silver Lake Nature Center, DCNR, and PA Landchoices.   


 
Bucks County Open Space & Greenway Planning 


 Began field work for the Upper Neshaminy Creek trail feasibility study to assess environmental 
and other constraints and identify potential trail alignment. 


 Met with various stakeholders relative to location of potential trail types and needs of different 
trail users. 


 Attended seminar on designing accessible trails. 


 Continued assembling a grant application for a trail feasibility study under the Greenways, Trails 
and Recreation component of the Act 13 Marcellus Legacy Fund for a 5-mile section of the 







13 


Middle Neshaminy Creek, extending from the confluence with Core Creek to the Bensalem 
Township border.  This would complete the trail feasibility work needed for the Neshaminy 
Creek. 


 Initiated matrix project with summer volunteer designed to identify municipal support for trails, 
zoning and subdivision and land ordinance requirements relative to trails, and whether trails are 
allowed within the floodplain area. 
 


Recycling and Solid Waste 


 Met with regional recycling coordinators at regular monthly meeting. 


 Submitting annual recycling reports to PaDEP. 


 Working on issues arising from the second HHW event in Upper Bucks. 


 Examining offering an electronic recycling RFP for a drop-off container. 


 Updating the Hard-to-Recycle Guidebook. 
 


Bucks Employees Green Initiative (BEGIN) Committee 


 Held quarterly BEGIN Committee (Green Committee) meeting. 


 Vetted ―Paper Reduction Needs Assessment Survey‖ to the Green Committee. Planning to 
distribute survey electronically to department heads in conjunction with upcoming directive 
by COO to reduce paper usage and increase paper recycling. 


 Discussed CNG planning issues and strategies for locating a CNG fueling station for fleet 
vehicles. 


 Reviewed and discussed draft ―Green Policy‖ for county employees. 


 Developing an employee guide to reduce paper consumption.  
 
Municipal Comprehensive Planning 


 Working on various environmental sections of the Langhorne, Tinicum, and Lower Makefield 
Comprehensive Plan updates. 


 


TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) 
 
General Transportation Planning  


 Attended Holland Prep-meeting to discuss presentation to Northampton Economic 
Development Corporation (NEDC). Presented photographic simulations to NEDC. Continued 
to produce photographic simulations for Village Study. 


 Conducted Bucks County Bicycle Task Force Meeting. 


 Attended tour of trail obstructions for East Coast Greenway. 


 Attended Neshaminy Crossing Project Task Force Meeting. 


 Attended meeting to discuss village concepts for Ottsville. 
   
Public Transportation 


 Reviewed SEPTA Board Meeting Materials. 


 Continued composing report for SEPTA Rail Station Visibility Enhancement Study. Developed 
computer-enhanced images for project report. 


 Attended TMA Bucks Board Luncheon. 


 Reviewed Chalfont’s Transit Oriented Design Study. 


 Participated in teleconference for Roosevelt Boulevard Transit Study. 
 







14 


Transportation Assistance to Planning Staff 


 Discussed transportation related issues with staff for subdivision and land development reviews. 
  
Transportation Improvement Program 


 Provided Transportation Improvement Program information to various individuals and 
agencies. 


 
Delaware Valley Regional Planning Commission (DVRPC)  


 Processed FY2014 Transit Support DVRPC contracts. 


 Processed FY2014 SEPTA Station Visibility Report contracts. 


 Attended DVRPC Regional Transit Advisory Committee Meeting. 


 Attended DVRPC Regional Technical Committee Meeting. 
 
Geographic Information Systems (GIS) 


 Continued development of County-Wide Enterprise GIS program. 


 Continued database development of site addresses and EMS, Fire, and Police response zones. 


 Continued updating of Enterprise Geodatabase and ArcGIS Server. 


 Continued coordination with GIS consultant on the Land Records and EMS projects. 


 Continued development and support of County GIS Consortium efforts. 


 Continued updating and editing of county Road Centerline database. 


 Continued GIS technical software support to IT and GIS staff at Board of Assessment. 


 Continued support of County hosted GIS web server connection and interface. 


 Provided GIS technical support to Emergency Communication staff. 


 Continued technical support for County GIS Web Viewer. 


 Continued editing of county-wide data layers using GIS Data Reviewer tool. 


 Continued upgrade of county GIS Enterprise hardware, software, and applications with 
GeographIT and county GIS staff. 


 Continued editing procedures on land base parcel annotation features. 


 Continued field testing of Health Department mobile web handheld and web viewer application. 


 Attended User and Administrator training in support of the Health Department Mobile Wells 
Collection Project. 


 Continued GIS and GPS support related to the Neshaminy Creek Stream Assessment project. 


 Provided technical assistance to Doylestown Borough Crime Mapping Initiative. 


 Participated in S.E. Pa Regional Data Sharing Conference call. 


 Provided county-wide data to PADOT in support of their Type 5 township mapping updates. 


 Scanned and plotted copies of floor plans of the District Attorney's new offices. 


 Provided guidance and assistance to summer GIS Intern. 
 
GIS Map Production 


 Produced presentation maps for Community, Environmental and Preservation Planning units. 
 
GIS Transportation 


 Continued development of Region-wide GIS Transportation initiative. 
 







Bucks County Planning Commission


Municipal Reviews


June 5, 2013


Municipality


BCPC 


Number Applicant


Tax Parcel 


Number(s) Proposal


Hilltown Township 15-13-2(P)R Sustainable Waste Solutions, LLC 15-1-8 Zoning Map Change: From LI to HI


Hilltown Township 15-13-1 (P)R J. R. Associates  15-32-3 Zoning Map Change:


From RR to PC-1


Middletown Township 22-13-SD1 Neshaminy School Board Sale of School


Sellersville Borough 39-13-2 Borough Council Zoning Ordinance & Map Amendment:


From I to MR-1


Upper Southampton 


Township


48-06-2R4 Board of Supervisors Zoning Ordinance Amendment:


Electrically or Mechanically Controlled 


Display Sign















































































Bucks County Planning Commission


Subdivision and Land Development Reviews


May 28 to June 21, 2013


Municipality


BCPC 


Number


Tax Parcel 


Number(s) Applicant


Submission 


Level Proposal


Bedminster Township 10773 1-2-49 The Preserve - Phase I RF 2 Single-family Lots


Falls Township 8326-A 13-28-75 & -88-2 Waste Gas / Conrail P Lot Line Change


Lower Makefield 


Township


10961 20-34-129 Freeman's Farm at Makefield  


(Ferri )


RF 15 Single-family Lots


4 Open Space Lots


Lower Makefield 


Township


11942 20-3-36-1 Moon Tract S 15 Single-family Lots


Morrisville Borough 11949 24-8-213 & -224 Morrisville Fire Company P Lot Line Change


Newtown Township 6019-A 29-11-240 Newtown Place P Commercial Land Development:


2,600 Square Feet


Newtown Township 11768 29-3-45-1 Flores S 3 Single-family Lots


Newtown Township 11943 29-10-42, -42.1, -


42-8


IHM Properties S Commercial Land Development: 


93,400 Square Feet


Newtown Township 5020-C 29-10-52-2 Newtown Townhomes P 56 Attached Units


Nockamixon Township 4874-A 30-11-17-3 Smith P 2 Single-family Lots


Northampton Township 11945 31-10-26-3 Nolte P 3 Single-family Lots


Quakertown Borough 11948 35-8-202, -203, -


204, -206, -207


Roselon P 2 Lot Line Changes


Richland Township 11057-A 36-5-83 & -83 Firestone Complete Auto Care P Lot Line Change


Commercial Land Development:


8,500 Square Feet


Richland Township 8754-E 36-17-32-1 US Cold Storage P Industrial Land Development:


514,581 Square feet


Upper Makefield 


Township


11347-A 47-4-57 & -62 Plan C P Lot Line Change


Warminster Township 11946 49-9-79-3-1 & -79-


3-2


Pierce Aluminum P 2 Industrial Lots


Industrial Land Development: 


67,580 Square Feet


Warrington Township 11944 50-24-41 Pisechko F 2 Single-family Lots































































































































































































































Bucks County Planning Commission


Planning Module Reviews


June 5, 2013


Municipality Development


BCPC 


Number


Tax Parcel 


Number(s)


PaDEP Code 


Number


Plan Review 


Number


Richland Township US Cold Storage 8754-E 36-17-32-1 1-09940-305-3J 20080-0152


Bensalem Township School Lane Charter School 11102-A 2-61-94 & -96 1-09004-330-3J 20080-0155





































		Agenda

		Minutes

		Executive Director's Report

		MEDI Update

		Staff Report

		Municipal Reviews

		Subdivision & Land Development Reviews

		Planning Modules










BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
MEETING 


 
Wednesday, August 7, 2013 


2:00 P.M. 
 


Robert H. Grunmeier Room 
1260 Almshouse Road 
Doylestown, PA 18901 


 
 


 


AGENDA 
 
 


 
1. Call to Order 


 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 


 
3. Approval of Minutes of July 3, 2013 


 
4. Executive Director’s Report 


- Municipal Economic Development Initiative Update 
 


5. Bucks County Agricultural Land Preservation Program Update 


- Richard Harvey, Program Director 
 


6. Act 247 Reviews 
 


7. Old Business 
 


8. New Business 
 
9. Public Comment  
 
10. Adjournment 


 
 


 
Please remember to contact us at 


215-345-3400 if you cannot attend. Thank you. 
 


AGENDA SUBJECT TO CHANGE PRIOR TO MEETING 
 


  







2 


  







3 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Minutes of Meeting 


July 3, 2013 
 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Joseph A. Cullen, Jr.; Raymond (Skip) W. Goodnoe; Edward Kisselback, Jr.; 


Robert M. Pellegrino; Carol A. Pierce; Walter Wydro 
 


STAFF PRESENT: 
 
 


Richard G. Brahler; Lynn T. Bush; David P. Johnson; Timothy A. Koehler; 
Charles T. McIlhinney; Margaret A. McKevitt; Michael A. Roedig; Maureen 
Wheatley 
 


Guests: David Rivet, Manager, Sellersville Borough; Michael Patterson, Intern, 
Bucks County Office of Public Information 


 
1. CALL TO ORDER 


Mr. Pellegrino called the meeting to order at 2:00 PM. 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 


All rose for the pledge of allegiance. 
 
3. SELLERSVILLE BOROUGH ACTIVITIES 


Mr. Rivet welcomed the board to Sellersville Borough and thanked Ms. Pierce for 
recommending to the board to hold their public meeting in the borough’s facility. Mr. Rivet 
stated that there are a number of exciting milestones the borough is celebrating this year: 
 


1) Borough’s 275th Anniversary of its founding 
2) Fire Company’s 125th Anniversary (parade had 100 entries) 
3) Grandview Hospital’s 100th Anniversary 
 


Ms. Bush added that there is a zoning change recommendation from Sellersville Borough 
(BCPC No. 39-13-2) in the board’s packet for consideration. Ms. Bush stated that a Business in 
Our Sites loan application was submitted to the Pennsylvania Department of Community and 
Economic Development for industrial reuse of the former Ametek site on Clymer Avenue. 


 
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF JUNE 5, 2013 


Upon motion of Mr. Goodnoe, seconded by Ms. Pierce, with the vote being 6-0 the motion 
carried to approve the minutes of the June 5, 2013 meeting. There were no abstentions. 
 


5. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
Ms. Bush introduced Michael Patterson, an intern with the Bucks County Office of Public 
Information who was in attendance at the meeting. 
 
Municipal Economic Development Initiative 
Ms. Bush provided an update on the Municipal Economic Development Initiative (MEDI). Ms. 
Bush stated that she continues to work with New Hope Borough officials and representatives of 
the Bucks County Playhouse on their efforts to renovate the facility and property. She said that 
staff is working with the Lower Makefield Planning Commission on updating their 
comprehensive plan. Staff is assisting with public outreach efforts to Lower Makefield’s various 
boards and authorities, which has generated discussion that may not have otherwise occurred. 







4 


Ms. Bush stated that the township will be conducting a resident survey as well. Ms. Bush 
reported that work with Bristol Borough on their 5-year Economic Development Strategic 
Action Plan has commenced. She stated that staff is working with Buckingham Township and 
surrounding municipalities on the Cross Keys area. She also stated that staff will be working with 
Upper Makefield on a program to study Washington’s Crossing. Most recently, Ms. Bush added 
that staff conducted a tour of various sites in Plumstead Township to prepare for their public 
workshop being held on July 25.  
 
Ms. Bush reported that the Commissioner’s Economic Development Council met on June 13. 
At the meeting, Commissioner Loughery provided an update on the county’s economic 
development program: Bucks to Invest. Ms. Bush stated that she provided an update and a 
presentation on the MEDI program to the council as well. 
 
Ms. Bush stated that an Op-ed on the state’s transportation funding bill was prepared, 
supported, and submitted to the state on behalf of the Philadelphia Metropolitan Caucus. Ms. 
Bush reported that the funding bill unfortunately failed.  


 
Mr. Pellegrino polled the board for questions. 


 
6. HOLLAND MASTER PLAN UPDATE  


Mr. Brahler and Mr. Roedig provided a presentation on the Holland Master Plan Update 
(Attachment A). Mr. Roedig provided information on the study area identified, local existing 
conditions, and potential improvements that can be made. Mr. Brahler provided information to 
address transportation issues in the village including redesign of Buck and Holland roads, 
widening of the bridge to include a pedestrian walking path, creation of gateways, and parking 
improvements. 
 
Mr. Pellegrino polled the board for questions. 
 
Mr. Pellegrino stated that the staff did a really great job with this project and the board members 
agreed. 
 


7. ACT 247 REVIEWS 
The reviews of July 3, 2013, were mailed to the board for their review prior to the meeting. 
Upon motion of Mr. Kisselback, seconded by Ms. Pierce, the motion carried to approve the July 
3, 2013, Act 247 reviews. There were no abstentions. 
 
Mr. Pellegrino polled the board for questions. 


 
8. OLD BUSINESS 


Ms. Bush stated that she spoke with Jody Holton, the new executive director of the 
Montgomery County Planning Commission, regarding a joint meeting. She said that she is 
waiting to hear back on potential dates, but that potential topics may include stormwater 
management and transportation planning. 
 


9. NEW BUSINESS 
Mr. Goodnoe discussed inviting representatives from the Newtown Joint Municipal Authority to 
the September meeting so that the board can receive information on their recent activities.  
 
Mr. Kisselback also suggested potentially meeting at the Museum in Andalusia. 







5 


 
10. PUBLIC COMMENT 


There was no public comment. 
 


11. ADJOURNMENT 
Mr. Goodnoe made a motion, seconded by Mr. Cullen that the meeting be adjourned at 3:00 
P.M. 


 
 
Submitted by: 
 
Margaret A. McKevitt, Staff Secretary 


 
 


  







6 


  







7 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Executive Director’s Report 


July 2013 


 
 


Ceremonial Groundbreaking – I-95 Turnpike Connection 
You recall that the Board had a presentation earlier this year on the status of the I-95-Turnpike 
connection, which is a large, long-term project to connect these two interstate roads. There was a 
ceremonial groundbreaking on July 30. There is some earthmoving going on along the Turnpike, just 
before the Galloway Road bridge, between the Bensalem exit and the Route 13 exit. The event was 
attended by Governor Corbett and other state, federal, and local officials. Bucks County Planning 
Commission was acknowledged in the remarks. 
 
Economic Development Activities 
Plumstead Township – We organized a town hall meeting for Plumsteadville which was held on July 
25. This is the largest concentration of commercial development in Plumstead Township, and there 
are opportunities to make it more attractive and walkable. There is a large residential development 
adjacent to the village which can be connected to the town center. Supervisors were appreciative. 
We will have to do some follow-up with the business community, which was not well represented. 
 
Washington Crossing – I met with the Upper Makefield Township representatives about a project to 
look at the commercial corner of Taylorsville Road and Rt. 532. 
 
New Hope Borough – We are getting close to establishing a new zoning district that would 
accommodate the activities of the Bucks County Playhouse. They want to be able to serve food and 
drinks at the playhouse and use the outdoor deck. There is some neighbor opposition based on 
noise concerns, but the ordinance will address that. 
 
County Economic Development Loan Programs 
Our staff is working with the Commissioners and the Bucks County Industrial Development 
Authority to prepare guidelines for new loan programs designed to address downtowns, older 
industrial areas, and farming, food, and tourism. 
 
Municipal Planning Projects  
Lower Makefield – We are working on the update of their comprehensive plan, taking a slightly 
different approach.  The township has many appointed boards and commissions, and we are inviting 
all the boards to attend one of the Planning Commission work meetings and comment on their 
concerns so that these can be considered for future planning.  
 
Tinicum Township – Update of their comprehensive plan is underway by our staff. 
  







8 


  







9 


BUCKS COUNTY MUNICIPAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVE 
Municipalities in Program 
May 2013 
 


Municipality Type of Assistance 


1. Bensalem Work jointly with Lower Southampton on Brownsville Road concept plan. Development 
of riverfront area. 


2. Bristol Borough Working with Borough’s economic development committee on Mill Street and general 
borough upgrades through their ―Raising the Bar‖ initiative. Completed assistance on 
their 5-year economic development plan and presentation to Borough Council. 


3. Buckingham Farming; Pennsylvania Biotechnology Center, the Cross Keys area. 


4. Chalfont Invited to be part of revitalization project. Draft report issued. 


5. Dublin Member of steering committee on revitalization. Final report completed and presented to 
Borough Council. 


6. East Rockhill Conducted township visioning session in June. 


7. Langhorne Updating master plan – focus on town center issues. 


8. Lower Makefield Updating comprehensive plan with focus on economic issues – older shopping centers; 
Edgewood Village; filling Class A office space  
Scheduled information gathering meetings with township’s boards and commissions. First 
meeting held May 13, with the Citizens’ Traffic Committee, Farmland Preservation, 
Historic Commission, Historic Architectural Review Board. 


9. Lower Southampton Study and concept plan for Brownsville Road – Street Road to Bristol Road. 


10. Middletown Review planning for economic development and develop strategic plan. 


11. Morrisville Borough visioning session. 


12. New Britain Borough  Working with their economic development committee. Held Community Town Hall 
meeting March 5, 2013. 


13. New Hope Standards for riverfront development – Bucks County Playhouse area.  Finalizing the 
zoning standards. 


14. Northampton Working on Holland area; industrial areas. Report to be presented to BCPC on July 3. 


15. Perkasie Updating comprehensive plan for the borough with emphasis on the town center. 


16. Plumstead  Plumsteadville area – Town Hall meeting for businesses and residents. Met with officials 
from the township and toured various sites. 


17. Riegelsville Parking issues. 


18. Sellersville Industrial area redevelopment; downtown area. 


19. Solebury Villages; river businesses and tourism. 


20. Springfield Growth capacity of their industrial/commercial district, looking at constraints. 


21. Tinicum Villages; river businesses and tourism; farming. Working on concepts for Ottsville. 


22. Upper Makefield Developing a program to study Washington Crossing. 


23. Upper Southampton  Standards for industrial area. 


24. Warrington Gateway zoning for Route 611 corridor. Met with township planning commission. 


25. West Rockhill Study of area around Grand View Hospital and Village of Almont. 


26. Yardley Downtown/Main Street – parking, cooperation of merchants, zoning. 


 







10 


  







11 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Staff Report 


May 2013 
 


PLANNING SERVICES 
 
COMMUNITY PLANNING 
 


 Chalfont Borough—Prepared a courtesy review of Chalfont’s Revitalization and TOD Plan. 


 Langhorne Borough Comprehensive Plan—Continued work on the draft future land use 
plan chapter.  


 Lower  Makefield Township Comprehensive Plan—Prepared the first draft of the parks and 
recreation chapter in the comprehensive plan update. Began preparing housing and community 
facilities chapters. 


 Perkasie Borough Comprehensive Plan—Continued narrative production for Part 2 of 2 of 
the Economic Development chapter. 


 Solebury Township Comprehensive Plan—Continued preparation of the second draft of the 
Plan. 


 Tinicum Township Comprehensive Plan—Attended a comprehensive plan committee 
meeting to discuss Hazard Mitigation and Solid Waste chapters. Prepared chapter on Mining, 
Gas Exploration, Telecommunications and Power Transmission. 


 Lower Southampton and Bensalem townships—Refined parcel information for the study 
area. 


 Plumstead Township—Facilitated a Plumsteadville Town Hall meeting for residents and 
business owners to express their opinions about various characteristics of the village. Staff 
presented an overview of the village’s assets and sought input on issues of importance to 
community members to help create a vision for the future of the village. Refined parcel 
information and mapping. 


 Northampton Township—Continued development of the Implementation section, including 
the production of digital mockups demonstrating possible improvements, coordination with 
GIS for the production of maps, and the development of an implementation plan. Presented 
transportation-land use concepts for the redevelopment of Holland Village to the BCPC board.  


 Buckingham and Plumstead townships—Completed Cross Keys study area mapping.  


 Springfield Township—Initiated study of the Route 309 development area corridor. Prepared 
parcel, land use, and soil suitability mapping and database. Initiated development capacity 
analysis. 
 


Planning Information and Agency Coordination 


 Provided information to the public on various topics including, but not limited to, development 
proposals, review letters, local zoning and municipal regulations. 


 Attended Bucks County Homeless Continuum of Care meetings. 


 Reviewed Act 14, 67, 68 NPDES permit applications. 


 Continued production of census and American Community Survey datasheets. 
 


Act 247 and 537 Review Activity 


 12 Subdivision and Land Development Proposals 


 1 Municipal 







12 


ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING 
 
Neshaminy Watershed Sediment Reduction Study (FY2012) CZM-funded project). 


 Conducted stormwater facilities inventories in Pine Run and West Branch sub-watersheds. 


 Met with consultant to walk selected stream segments and to inspect stormwater facilities. 


 Continue to prepare final reports and pictures to quantify and document findings related to 
stream assessments and stormwater facilities inventories. 


 
Stormwater Education 


 Attended the Upstream Suburban Philadelphia Strategic Planning session meeting held by 
Temple University’s Center for Sustainable Communities (SCS) and the PA Environmental 
Council (PEC). 


 Began reaching out to municipal officials, watershed groups and conservation districts 
regarding participation in the CSC/PEC initiative.   


 Began review of existing Rivers Conservation Plans and Act 167 Stormwater Management 
plans for the Pennypack and Poquessing Watersheds. 


 
Bucks County Open Space & Greenway Planning 


 Finalized field work for the Upper Neshaminy Creek trail feasibility study to assess 
environmental and other constraints and identify potential trail alignment.   


 In conjunction with our consulting engineer, began developing proposed trail alignment and 
options for the Upper Neshaminy Creek Trail. 


 Met with various stakeholders relative to proposed location of different trail sections. 


 Finalized grant application for a trail feasibility study under the Greenways, Trails and 
Recreation component of the Act 13 Marcellus Legacy Fund for a 5-mile section of the Middle 
Neshaminy Creek, extending from the confluence with Core Creek to the Bensalem Township 
border.  This would complete the trail feasibility work needed for the Neshaminy Creek. 


 Initiated field work on the Mill-Queen Anne-Black Ditch Creek trail feasibility study. 


 Presented an overview of the Mill-Queen Anne-Black Ditch Creek project at the July meeting of 
the Bristol Township Environmental Advisory Council. 
 


Recycling and Solid Waste 


 Met with regional recycling coordinators at regular monthly meeting. Discussed billing problem 
regarding our new HHW contractor. DEP was there to offer input. 


 Attended statewide recycling meeting. 


 Attended several meetings with our HHW contractor and their subcontractor to discuss ways to 
improve the collections and billing. 


 Engaged several Waste Haulers into discussions on the new CDRA (Covered Device Recycling 
Act). 


 Working with several municipalities on trash/recycling contracts. 


 Preparing for third HHW event in Central Bucks. 


 Debating the merits of an electronic waste drop-off program. 


 Updating the Hard-to-Recycle Guidebook. 


 Preparing HHW bill for DEP. 


 Preparing a paper reduction guide for county employees. 


 Working with General Services on the County Trash/Recycling contract. 


 Working with the DA and Training Center on disposal of some hazardous materials. 







13 


Bucks Employees Green Initiative (BEGIN) Committee 


 Distributed ―Paper Reduction Needs Assessment Survey‖ electronically to department heads in 
conjunction with upcoming directive by COO to reduce paper usage and increase paper 
recycling. 


 Coordinated with Human Resources department on article for The Bridge encouraging green 
employee practices. 


 Work with County Recycling Coordinator on developing an employee guide to reduce paper 
consumption. 


 
Municipal Comprehensive Planning 


 Working on various environmental sections of the Lower Makefield Comprehensive Plan 
updates. 


 


TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM 


 
TRANSPORTATION PLANNING 
 
General Transportation Planning 


 Presented Holland Village Study photographic simulations to BCPC Board. 


 Provided photographic simulations to project manager for Perkasie Borough Comprehensive 
Plan. 


 Reviewed Morrisville Borough Bridge Street Trail Obstruction Proposals for PEC. 


 Participated in Pennsylvania Long Range Transportation Plan Webinar. 


 Conducted Bicycle Task Force Meeting. 
 
Public Transportation 


 Reviewed SEPTA Board Meeting Materials. 


 Completed composing report for SEPTA Rail Station Visibility Enhancement Study. 
 
Transportation Assistance to Planning Staff 


 Discussed transportation related issues with staff for subdivision and land development reviews. 
 
Transportation Improvement Program 


 Provided Transportation Improvement Program information to various individuals and 
agencies. 


 Attended County Bridge (Act 13 Funding) Meeting. 


 Participated in Conference Call regarding TIP funding for County Bridges. 
 
Delaware Valley Regional Planning Commission (DVRPC)  


 Attended DVRPC Regional Congestion Management Program Committee Meeting. 


 Attended DVRPC Regional Technical Committee Meeting. 


 Processed DVRPC monthly progress reports and quarterly invoices. Produced Annual Report 
for Supportive Regional Highway Planning Program. 


 
GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEMS (GIS) 


 Continued development of County-Wide Enterprise GIS program. 


 Continued database development of site addresses and EMS, Fire, and Police response zones. 







14 


 Continued updating of Enterprise Geodatabase and ArcGIS Server. 


 Continued coordination with GIS consultant on the Land Records and EMS projects. 


 Continued development and support of County GIS Consortium efforts. 


 Continued updating and editing of county Road Centerline database. 


 Continued GIS technical software support to IT and GIS staff at Board of Assessment. 


 Continued support of County hosted GIS web server connection and interface. 


 Provided GIS technical support to Emergency Communication staff. 


 Continued technical support for County GIS Web Viewer. 


 Continued editing of county-wide data layers using GIS Data Reviewer tool. 


 Continued editing procedures on land base parcel annotation features. 


 Continued GIS and GPS support related to the Neshaminy Creek Stream Assessment project. 


 Provided guidance and assistance to summer GIS Intern Steve Tyrrell. 


 Met with intern academic advisors and provided status report. 


 Update HMIS Web Viewer to include commuter bus and rail routes. 


 Created Bucks County Polling Locations Web Viewer. 


 Attended GeoEvent Processor for ArcGIS Server Webinar. 


 Provided GIS data to East Rockhill Township. 


 Met with BoA and EOC GIS Staff to discuss road centerline edits of unnamed roads. 


 Met with United Way and Community Development staff to discuss GIS use. 


 Met with summer interns to discuss Build-Out Analysis project in the Pine Run Watershed. 


 Began preparation of GIS data to both Yardley Borough and Wrightstown Township. 
 
GIS Map Production 


 Produced presentation maps for Community, Environmental and Preservation Planning units. 
 
GIS Transportation 


 Continued development of Region-wide GIS Transportation initiative. 
 

























































































































































































		Agenda

		Minutes

		Executive Director's Report

		MEDI

		Staff Report

		Municipal Reviews

		Subdivision and Land Development Reviews






BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
MEETING 


 
Wednesday, September 4, 2013 


2:00 P.M. 
 
 


The Chancellor Center 
Council Rock School District 


30 N. Chancellor Street 
Newtown, PA 18940-2202 


 
 


AGENDA 
 
 


1. Call to Order 
 


2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 


3. Sellersville Borough Activities 
 


4. Approval of Minutes of August 7, 2013 
 


5. Executive Director’s Report 


- Municipal Economic Development Initiative Update 
 


6. Newtown Area Joint Municipal Authority 


- Warren Gormley, Director 
 


7. Act 247 Reviews 
 


8. Old Business 


- Montgomery County Planning Commission Joint Meeting 
Date:  October 25, 2013 
Location: Horsham Township 


 
9. New Business 
 
10. Public Comment 
 
11. Adjournment 


 
 


 
Please remember to contact us at 


215-345-3400 if you cannot attend. Thank you. 
 


AGENDA SUBJECT TO CHANGE PRIOR TO MEETING  







2 


  







3 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Minutes of Meeting 


August 7, 2013 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Joseph A. Cullen; James J. Dowling; Jr.; Ed Kisselback, Jr.;  Raymond (Skip) 


W. Goodnoe; David R. Nyman; Robert M. Pellegrino; Carol A. Pierce; 
Evan J. Stone; Walter Wydro 
 


STAFF PRESENT: 
 
 


Charles T. McIlhinney; Lynn T. Bush; Timothy A. Koehler; David P. 
Johnson; Donna W. Byers; Richard B. Harvey; Patricia Stockett; Bryan 
Guthrie, Intern; Danielle Cicero, Intern 
 


Guests: James McGinnis, Reporter 


 
1. CALL TO ORDER 


Mr. Pellegrino called the meeting to order at 2:00 PM. 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 


All rose for the pledge of allegiance. 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF JULY 3, 2013 


Upon motion of Ms. Pierce, seconded by Mr. Goodnoe, with the vote being 8-0-1 the motion 
carried to approve the minutes of the July 3, 2013 meeting. Mr. Dowling abstained as he was not 
present. 
 


4. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
Ms. Bush introduced summer interns Danielle Cicero and Bryan Guthrie. Both Danielle and 
Bryan attend Bloomsburg University and are assisting with environmental projects. 
 
Ms. Bush introduced new staff member, Pat Stockett, Administrative Assistant. The board 
welcomed Ms. Stockett to the BCPC. 
 
On July 30th, Ms. Bush attended a ceremonial groundbreaking for the I-95 Turnpike Connection. 
Ms. Bush said the event was attended by Governor Corbett and other elected officials. While 
funding for the project is still in question, people are committed to seeing it through. 
 
Municipal Economic Development Initiative 
Ms. Bush reported on a town hall meeting BCPC staff organized for Plumsteadville. 
Plumsteadville has the largest commercial center in Plumstead Township, and there is 
opportunity to make it more attractive and walkable. Although the meeting was well attended by 
residents, there was not a good representation for businesses. Ms. Bush said the BCPC staff will 
reach out to the business community on the initiative. 
 
Ms. Bush met with Upper Makefield Township on a study/project to improve the intersection 
of Taylorsville Road and Route 532. Discussions with residents in the area will be held in 
September. 
 
Ms. Bush said New Hope Borough is getting close to resolving zoning ordinances for proposed 
activities for the Bucks County Playhouse. 







4 


Ms. Bush reported on the county’s ―Bucks to Invest‖ economic development program, stating 
that the county, along with the Bucks County Industrial Development Authority, is making 
progress on realigning loan programs to reflect the current economy. A segment of the Bucks to 
Invest program will focus on providing low interest loans to the local farming and tourism 
community.  
 
Ms. Bush provided the board with the highlights of the BCPC displays and handouts prepared 
for the Middletown Grange Fair. The fair is August 14 – 18, 2013. 
 
Ms. Bush said she is still waiting to hear from the Montgomery County Planning Commission on 
potential dates to hold a joint planning commission meeting. Ms. Bush met with the director of 
the Washington Crossing Visitors Center. The BCPC is on track to hold an offsite meeting this 
fall at the center. 
 


5. BUCKS COUNTY AGRICULTURAL LAND PRESERVATION PROGRAM UPDATE 
Mr. Harvey provided the board with a copy of the 2012 Annual Report of the Bucks County 
Agricultural Land Preservation Program. Mr. Harvey provided a background on the program 
that began in 1989, and continues to be a leader in farmland preservation in Pennsylvania. Mr. 
Harvey said Pennsylvania is also the leader in farmland preservation in the United States with 
over 4,500 farms preserved. Bucks County is in the top ten counties in number of farms 
preserved in the state. Mr. Harvey highlighted program funding, application requirements, 
preservation goals, and he provided a snapshot of the 8 farms preserved in 2012 that total 800 
acres. To date, 24 out of 54 municipalities in Bucks County have preserved farmland bringing 
the total to 13,514 acres. The goal of the program remains to preserve 17,000 acres by the year 
2017. Mr. Harvey commended the Bucks County Commissioners for their commitment to the 
program. 
 
Board discussion focused on funding, cost of acreage, preservation guidelines, farmland 
preservation in adjacent counties, and bond issues. 


 
Mr. Nyman requested a digital copy of the Annual Report and Map of Preserved Lands be 
provided to the board. Mr. Wydro requested the percentage of farmland preserved in Bucks 
County. Mr. Harvey will follow-up with these requests. 
 
Mr. Pellegrino polled the board for further questions. 
 
Farming in Bucks County: Changes to Farm Businesses 
Ms. Bush provided a handout (Attachment A) on farming in Bucks County. Ms. Bush 
highlighted changes to farm businesses and the role the county can take in terms of low interest 
loans to the farming industry. Ms. Bush provided examples on how the county can reach out to 
this community and where through the small loan program it would have the most impact to 
help the economy. Proposed loans will be available for the Taste & Tour Bucks County program 
through Bucks County and the Bucks County Industrial Development Authority (IDA). 
 
Discussion followed on the role of the IDA, cattle versus dairy farmers, and the Lundale Farm 
(a sustainable farming community) in Chester County. 
 


6. ACT 247 REVIEWS 
The reviews of August 7, 2013 were mailed to the board for their review prior to the meeting. 
Upon motion of Mr. Wydro, seconded by Mr. Stone, the motion carried to approve the August 







5 


7, 2013 Act 247 reviews. Ms. Pierce abstained on Hilltown Township review: BCPC #15-12-
3(P)R1– Telegraph Investment Company zoning map change. 


 
7. OLD BUSINESS 


There was no old business. 
 


8. NEW BUSINESS 
Ms. Bush announced the September BCPC Board meeting will be held at the Chancellor Center 
in Newtown. 
 


9. PUBLIC COMMENT 
There was no public comment. 
 


10. ADJOURNMENT 
Mr. Dowling made a motion, seconded by Mr. Nyman that the meeting be adjourned at 2:40 
PM. 


 
 
Submitted by:  
Donna Byers, Staff Secretary 


  







6 


 
  







7 


BUCKS COUNTY MUNICIPAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVE 
Municipalities in Program 
August 2013 
 


Municipality Type of Assistance 


Bensalem Work jointly with Lower Southampton on Brownsville Road concept 
plan. Development of riverfront area. 


Bristol Borough Working with Borough’s economic development committee on Mill 
Street and general borough upgrades through their ―Raising the Bar‖ 
initiative. Completed assistance on their 5-year economic development 
plan and presentation to Borough Council. 


Buckingham Farming; Pennsylvania Biotechnology Center, the Cross Keys area. 


Chalfont Invited to be part of revitalization project. Draft report issued. 


Dublin Member of steering committee on revitalization. Final report completed 
and presented to Borough Council. 


East Rockhill Conducted township visioning session in June. Preparing detailed 
summary report on session which will include future goals and actions. 


Langhorne Updating master plan – focus on town center issues. 


Lower Makefield Updating comprehensive plan with focus on economic issues – older 
shopping centers; Edgewood Village; filling Class A office space.  
Scheduled information gathering meetings with township’s boards and 
commissions. First meeting held May 13, with the Citizens’ Traffic 
Committee, Farmland Preservation, Historic Commission, Historic 
Architectural Review Board. 


Lower Southampton Study and concept plan for Brownsville Road – Street Road to Bristol 
Road. 


Middletown Review planning for economic development and develop strategic plan. 


Morrisville Preparing for borough visioning session. 


New Britain Borough  Working with their economic development committee. Held 
Community Town Hall meeting March 5, 2013. Preparing detailed 
summary report on session which will include future goals and actions. 


New Hope Standards for riverfront development – Bucks County Playhouse area.  
Finalizing the zoning standards. 


Northampton Working on Holland area; industrial areas. Report presented to BCPC 
on July 3. 


Perkasie Updating comprehensive plan for the borough with emphasis on the 
town center. 


Plumstead  Plumsteadville area – Town Hall meeting for businesses and residents. 
Met with officials from the township and toured various sites. Preparing 
detailed summary report on session which will include future goals and 
actions. 


Riegelsville Parking issues. 


Sellersville Industrial area redevelopment; downtown area. 


Solebury Villages; river businesses and tourism analysis as part of the 
Comprehensive Plan Update. 


Springfield Growth capacity of their industrial/commercial district, looking at 







8 


constraints. Continued preparation of the analysis and modeling for 
development area capacity for the Route 309 corridor.   


Tinicum Villages; river businesses and tourism; farming. Working on concepts 
for Ottsville as part of the Comprehensive Plan Update. 


Upper Makefield Preparing for town hall meeting with businesses and residents of the 
Taylorsville Road area of Washington Crossing (September 10, 2013 @ 
7:00 p.m.) 


Upper Southampton  Standards for industrial area. Initiated process of development industrial 
standards. 


Warrington Gateway zoning for Route 611 corridor. Met with township planning 
commission. 


West Rockhill Preparing a proposal for a study of the Village of Almont, an analysis of 
the Lawn Avenue Corridor, and an update to the Comprehensive Plan. 


Yardley Downtown/Main Street – parking, cooperation of merchants, zoning. 
Preparing detailed summary report on session which will include future 
goals and actions. 


  







9 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Staff Report 
August 2013 


 


PLANNING SERVICES 
 
COMMUNITY PLANNING 
 


 Langhorne Borough Comprehensive Plan—Continued work on the draft future land use 
plan chapter and began preparation of the draft plan. 


 Lower  Makefield Township Comprehensive Plan—Met with officials from the township’s 
Park and Recreation department to obtain up-to-date information for the Park and Recreation 
Planning chapter of the Plan. Prepared the first drafts of the population and housing sections of 
the Development Today and Projected Changes chapter in the comprehensive plan update.  
Began reviewing information for the Existing Land Use map. 


 Perkasie Borough Comprehensive Plan—Presented Part 2 of the Economic Development 
Chapter to the Comprehensive Plan Committee. A consensus was reached by the Committee 
and attendees to approve the draft. Continued working on the Future Land Use Chapter. 


 Solebury Township Comprehensive Plan—Continued preparation of the second draft of the 
Plan. 


 Tinicum Township Comprehensive Plan—Attended a comprehensive plan committee 
meeting to discuss the Park and Recreation chapter.  


 Plumstead Township—Compiled responses from attendees at the Plumsteadville Town Hall 
meeting indicating characteristics that are important to the future of the village. Refined parcel 
information and mapping. 


 Northampton Township—Continued development of the Implementation section, including 
the production of digital mockups demonstrating possible improvements, coordination with 
GIS for the production of maps, and the development of an implementation plan.  


 Buckingham and Plumstead townships—Began refining parcel information for the Cross 
Keys study area.  


 Springfield Township—Continued preparation of the development capacity analysis for the 
Route 309 development area corridor. 


 Morrisville Borough—Initiated preparation of 2010 population and housing estimates as an 
alternative to Census figures that are believed to be inaccurate based on past analysis. 


 Upper Makefield Township—Prepared maps and a parcel database for the Taylorsville study 
area. Conducted reconnaissance of the study area and began preparation of presentation and 
preference boards for a visioning meeting. 


 Upper Southampton Township—Evaluated comprehensive plan recommendations and began 
analysis of the industrial zoning district requirements. 


 West Rockhill Township—Prepared proposals for a comprehensive plan update, Almont 
Village study, and Lawn Avenue Corridor study. 
 


Planning Information and Agency Coordination 


 Provided information to the public on various topics including, but not limited to, development 
proposals, review letters, local zoning and municipal regulations. 


 Attended Bucks County Homeless Continuum of Care meetings. 


 Reviewed Act 14, 67, 68 NPDES permit applications. 


 Continued production of census and American Community Survey datasheets. 







10 


Act 247 and 537 Review Activity 


 18 Subdivision and Land Development Proposals 


 8 Municipals 


 1 Sewage Facility Planning Modules  


 4 Traffic Impact Studies 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING 
 


Neshaminy Watershed Sediment Reduction Study (FY2012) CZM-funded project). 


 Prepared and submitted to the consultant, final reports and pictures to quantify and document 
findings related to stream assessments and stormwater facilities inventories. 


 Worked with MCPC and BCPC GIS staff to obtain land use data to create watershed maps to 
use when conducting stormwater facilities inventories. 
 


Stormwater Management  


 Reviewed comprehensive plans, river conservation plans, open space and stormwater 
management plans for municipalities located with the Pennypack and Poquessing watersheds.  
Prepared a list of problem areas and goals/projects as outlined in these plans. 


 Reached out to municipal EACs and township managers and park & recreation directors to 
solicit their input regarding priority areas and to inquire if any restoration and/or stormwater 
management-related projects have been proposed, or are required. 


 Attended the Pennypack and Poquessing subwatershed follow up meetings to the Upstream 
Suburban Philadelphia Strategic Planning session meeting held by Temple University’s Center 
for Sustainable Communities (SCS) and the PA Environmental Council (PEC). Coordinating 
strategic plan development with Temple University, PEC and stakeholders.  


 
Watershed Planning 


 Began investigating integrated water resources plans developed and began compiling a list of 
items to include in an integrated water resources plan for Bucks County. 


 
Bucks County Open Space & Greenway Planning 


 Continued field work for the Mill-Queen Anne-Black Ditch Creek trail feasibility study to assess 
environmental and other constraints and identify potential trail alignment.   


 Continued development and mapping of proposed trail alignment and options for the Upper 
Neshaminy Creek Trail. 


 Met with various stakeholders relative to proposed location of different trail sections. 


 Submitted revised grant application for a trail feasibility study under the Greenways, Trails and 
Recreation component of the Act 13 Marcellus Legacy Fund for a 5-mile section of the Middle 
Neshaminy Creek, extending from the confluence with Core Creek to the Bensalem Township 
border.  Revision focused on match requirement for grant that resulted in a new project budget. 


 
Recycling and Solid Waste 


 Met with regional recycling coordinators at regular monthly meeting. Discussed contractor Clean 
Harbor’s new billing system. DEP was there to offer input. Agreed it was a major improvement. 


 Attended statewide recycling meeting. 


 Attended several meetings with our HHW contractor and their subcontractor to discuss ways to 
improve the collections and billing. 


 Working with several municipalities on trash/recycling contracts. 







11 


 Preparing for fourth HHW event in LBTHS. 


 Debating the merits of an electronic waste drop-off program. 


 Updating the Hard-to-Recycle Guidebook. 


 Finalizing HHW reimbursement grant for DEP. 


 Preparing a paper reduction guide for county employees. 
 


Bucks Employees Green Initiative (BEGIN) Committee 


 Analyzing results of ―Paper Reduction Needs Assessment Survey‖. 
 


Municipal Comprehensive Planning 


 Working on water, wastewater, energy, and hazard mitigation sections of the Lower Makefield 
Comprehensive Plan update. 


 Working to obtain riparian buffer study information from Heritage Conservancy in order to 
assess riparian buffer health within Perkasie Borough and to develop recommendations for 
inclusion in the borough’s comprehensive plan.   


 
Hazard Mitigation Planning 


 Hosted a meeting of FEMA and PEMA staff to discuss Bucks County being one of FEMA’s 
model hazard mitigation implementation counties. 


 
Coastal Zone Management Planning 


 Attended annual summer planning meeting of PADEP CZM’s Delaware Estuary Advisory 
Committee. 


 


TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) 
 
General Transportation Planning 


 Participated in Multi-Agency Hazard Mitigation Meeting. 


 Conducted Bicycle Task Force Meeting. 


 Participated in site visit for Upper Makefield Township project in Washingtons Crossing. Began 
to develop conceptual sketches for study area. 


 Reviewed Penndel Borough Bellevue Avenue/Hulmeville Avenue Intersection Conceptual 
Study. 


 Attended Morrisville Borough Bridge Street East Coast Greenway Obstruction Study Site 
Visit/Project Kick-off Meeting. 


 Attended meeting to discuss Lower Makefield Township Comprehensive Plan Review. 
Reviewed draft text and provided review to project manager. 


 Continued to revise Village of Holland Study graphics. 
 
Public Transportation 


 Reviewed SEPTA Board Meeting Materials. 


 Began developing information for SEPTA Rail Station Visibility Enhancement Study Phase II. 
 
Transportation Assistance to Planning Staff 


 Discussed transportation related issues with staff for subdivision and land development reviews. 
 
  







12 


Transportation Improvement Program 


 Provided Transportation Improvement Program information to various individuals and 
agencies. 


 
Delaware Valley Regional Planning Commission (DVRPC)  


 Coordinated with DVRPC regarding County Bridge Act 13 Funding. 
 
Geographic Information Systems (GIS) 


 Continued development of County-Wide Enterprise GIS program. 


 Continued database development of site addresses and EMS, Fire, and Police response zones. 


 Continued updating of Enterprise Geodatabase and ArcGIS Server. 


 Continued coordination with GIS consultant on the Land Records and EMS projects. 


 Continued development and support of County GIS Consortium efforts. 


 Continued updating and editing of county Road Centerline database. 


 Continued GIS technical software support to IT and GIS staff at Board of Assessment. 


 Continued support of County hosted GIS web server connection and interface. 


 Provided GIS technical support to Emergency Communication staff. 


 Continued technical support for County GIS Web Viewer. 


 Continued editing of county-wide data layers using GIS Data Reviewer tool. 


 Continued editing procedures on land base parcel annotation features. 


 Provided guidance and assistance to summer GIS Intern Steve Tyrrell. 


 Provided GIS data to Wrightstown Township. 


 Met with ESRI Business Representative to discuss ESRI Discovery Initiative. 


 Attended ArcGIS Online web seminar hosted by ESRI. 


 Provided floodplain map to Tinicum Township. 


 Attended County GIS Professionals Association Meeting webinar. 


 Provided GIS data updates to both Lower Makefield and Warrington Townships. 
 


GIS Map Production 


 Produced presentation maps for Community, Environmental and Preservation Planning units. 
 
GIS Transportation 


 Continued development of Region-wide GIS Transportation initiative. 





































































































































































































































































































































































		Agenda

		Minutes

		MEDI Update

		Staff Report

		Municipal Reviews

		Subdivision & Land Development Reviews

		Planning Module Reviews










BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
MEETING 


 
Wednesday, October 2, 2013 


2:00 P.M. 
 


Robert H. Grunmeier Room 
1260 Almshouse Road 
Doylestown, PA 18901 


 
 


 


AGENDA 
 
 


 
1. Call to Order 


 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 


 
3. Approval of Minutes of September 4, 2013 


 
4. Executive Director’s Report 


- Municipal Economic Development Initiative Update 
 


5. Bucks County Bridge Update 
 


6. Act 247 Reviews 
 


7. Old Business 
 


8. New Business 
 
9. Public Comment  
 
10. Adjournment 


 
 


 
Please remember to contact us at 


215-345-3400 if you cannot attend. Thank you. 
 


AGENDA SUBJECT TO CHANGE PRIOR TO MEETING 
  







2 


 
 


  







3 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Minutes of Meeting 
September 4, 2013 


 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Joseph A. Cullen; Raymond (Skip) W. Goodnoe; David R. Nyman; Robert 


M. Pellegrino; Carol A. Pierce; Evan J. Stone; Walter Wydro 
 


STAFF PRESENT: 
 
 


Charles T. McIlhinney; Lynn T. Bush; Timothy A. Koehler; Dennis P. 
Livrone; Donna W. Byers 
 


Guests: Warren Gormley, Director and J. Eric Johnson, Chairman of Newtown 
Bucks County Joint Municipal Authority; Edward L. Woyden, Jr., P.E., Vice 
President and Anthony G. Elberti, P.E., LEED Green Associate of Gannett 
Fleming Inc.; Jenifer Fields, Environmental Program Manager, Beth 
Mahoney, Sewer Planning Supervisor and Kelly Boettlin, Sewer Planning 
Specialist II of Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection; 
James McGinnis, Reporter; Linda Oshatz, Elizabeth Tatham, Paul Thatte, 
Shirley Yannich, Eric Bankoff, Winfield Tatham, John Weghorst, Joe New, 
Eileen New, Karen Barton 
 


 
1. CALL TO ORDER 


The regular meeting of the Bucks County Planning Commission was held at the Chancellor Center in 
Newtown, Pennsylvania. Mr. Pellegrino called the meeting to order at 2:00 PM. 


 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 


All rose for the pledge of allegiance. 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF AUGUST 7, 2013 


Upon motion of Mr. Goodnoe, seconded by Mr. Stone, with the vote being 7-0 the motion carried to 
approve the minutes of the August 7, 2013 meeting. There were no abstentions. 
 


4. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
Municipal Economic Development Initiative 
Ms. Bush reported staff are preparing for a September 10th town hall meeting in Upper Makefield 
Township. The visioning meeting will be open to residents and businesses of the Taylorsville Road and 
Route 532 area of Washington Crossing. 
 
Ms. Bush reported BCPC staff has completed their portion of the economic development study for 
Perkasie Borough. There is developer interest in the downtown area of the borough. 
 
Ms. Bush said staff continues updating Lower Makefield Township’s comprehensive plan with emphasis 
on economic development. 
 
Ms. Bush will provide a future report on a proposal for a study of the Lawn Avenue Corridor in West 
Rockhill Township. 
 


5. NEWTOWN AREA JOINT MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY 
On behalf of the Newtown, Bucks County, Joint Municipal Authority (NBCJMA), Mr. Gormley and Mr. 
Johnson thanked the BCPC board for the invitation and opportunity to present on the potential 







4 


wastewater treatment plant option. Mr. Johnson provided introductions for attending staff from 
Gannett Fleming and the Department of Environmental Protection (DEP). 
 
Mr. Woyden provided a PowerPoint presentation on the preliminary plant option designed to handle the 
area’s growing sewage needs. The $68 million proposed plant would be located at the former treatment 
plant in Newtown Township. Mr. Woyden gave a brief history of the NBCJMA and the wastewater 
treatment plant (WWTP) site. He said the NBCJMA owned and operated the WWTP until 1988 when 
they abandoned the facility and regionalized with the Bucks County Water and Sewer Authority 
(BCWSA). At that time DEP was pushing regionalization and this was the most cost effective solution 
to upgrading and expanding the plant to meet new treatment standards. Over the past 20 years the 
authority has undergone an average 9 percent annual increase in conveyance costs imposed by BCWSA. 
Mr. Woyden provided a projected life cycle cost comparison for BCWSA versus a new NBCJMA 
treatment plant and highlighted other issues that were taken into consideration. The NBCJMA is 
recommending evaluating an alternative to build a water reclamation facility at the existing WWTP site. 
Mr. Woyden highlighted the pros and cons associated with the proposed site plan. 
 
Mr. Elberti spoke on conventional WWTPs and membrane bioreactor facilities (MBR). Mr. Elberti 
provided pictures of an MBR facility tour in Lewes, Delaware, and highlighted an MBR facility example 
in Fulton County, Georgia. Mr. Elberti addressed concerns of odors, effluent quality, flooding potential, 
and real estate values relating to MBR facilities. 
 
Mr. Pellegrino polled the board for questions. 
 
Mr. Cullen asked what is the term of the lease agreement with BCWSA. Mr. Johnson responded that he 
expects this to be the last year or until the bonds are paid. Mr. Cullen asked what the cost would be to 
get out of the contract. Mr. Johnson answered he was not sure. 
 
Mr. Goodnoe asked if it would be beneficial if Newtown were removed from the connection. Mr. 
Johnson responded that DEP identified a problem with hydraulic overload; removing Newtown would 
help. 
 
Mr. Wydro asked how much of the old WWTP could be utilized. Mr. Elberti answered there may be 
some salvage value. Mr. Johnson added that the cost estimate for a potential new plant assumed the 
most expensive facility and he explained how the cost was projected. 
 
Mr. McIlhinney asked what is the condition of the infrastructure of Newtown Borough. Mr. Johnson 
said the Newtown Borough system is in excellent condition. 
 
Mr. Pellegrino opened the floor to public comment. 
 
Mr. Woyden responded to questions Eric Bankoff, resident of Newtown, asked on residential distances 
to the Lewes, Delaware facility versus residential proximities to the proposed Newtown WWTP, 
amendments/applications to Act 537 Sewage Facilities Plans, standing water/mosquito populations, and 
raw sewage dispersal at an MBR facility. Mr. Bankoff said he opposes the proposed WWTP. 
 
Mr. Pellegrino stated that this is an informational meeting set up for the BCPC board and planners to 
learn what is going on in the county. Mr. Pellegrino said the BCPC will see the 537 application if the 
proposal moves forward as a 537 Plan, but the BCPC does not vote on any matters concerning the 
potential WWTP option. 
 







5 


Winfield Tatham, resident of Holland, suggested that before moving forward with the proposed WWTP 
option, an informational meeting with the BCWSA should be scheduled to address questions 
concerning costs to residents if Newtown were eliminated from the connection. He proposed that 
before a 537 Plan is prepared there needs to be a better overview between the county, municipalities, 
and other authorities, as well as alternative considerations. 
 
Linda Oshatz, realtor and resident of Newtown, stated that once the newspaper reported on the 
potential for the WWTP option, her house showings went down for a property listed in a desirable 
residential area adjacent to the site. Ms. Oshatz said she is concerned if the plan goes through it will 
stifle her business and could impact the real estate values for the township as a whole. 
 
Paul Thatte, retired engineer and resident of Newtown, said he has had the opportunity to work on EPA 
projects and discussed old wastewater plants and associated health problems. He addressed financial and 
environmental risks with the proposal. Mr. Thatte suggested there are good and less expensive 
alternatives to the proposed WWTP, which he opposes. 
 
Karen Barton, resident of Newtown, addressed the potential for flooding of the Neshaminy Creek. Ms. 
Barton said residents want to know what other options are being considered by the authority, and 
suggested that this issue needs to be looked at as a regionalized solution. Ms. Barton is united in 
opposition of the plan and said there needs to be correct infrastructure in place before moving forward. 
 
Betty Tatham, resident of Holland, said she lives along the Neshaminy Creek. She requested the 
township and authority not move forward with a 537 Plan until there has been an opportunity for the 
public to speak out on this issue in public hearing. Ms. Tatham said they are considering moving to 
Pennswood Village, but feels that the odors from the plant will impact their lifestyle and the lifestyle of 
thousands of people. Ms. Tatham said it is unfortunate no one is looking at the cost to people who live 
outside of Newtown, who may need to pick up the pieces for Newtown pulling out of the connection. 
 
Jackie Palmer, resident of Northampton Township, expressed environmental concerns associated with 
the WWTP. Ms. Palmer requested this matter be put as a question on a ballot and voted on by residents 
as to whether they want to pay for a new WWTP. Ms. Palmer said she would like to see a regional 
discussion and a regional fix. 
 
Mr. Pellegrino thanked the public for their comments. Discussion followed on estimated rates to 
ratepayers and process of 537 Plans. 
 


6. ACT 247 REVIEWS 
The reviews of September 4, 2013 were mailed to the board for their review prior to the meeting. Upon 
motion of Mr. Nyman, seconded by Mr. Stone, the motion carried to approve the September 4, 2013 
Act 247 reviews. There were no abstentions. 


 
7. OLD BUSINESS 


Ms. Bush announced a joint meeting with the Montgomery County Planning Commission has been 
arranged for October 25th in Horsham Township. Ms. Bush will confirm if 2:00 PM will be a suitable 
meeting time and follow-up with the board on the time and location. 
 


8. NEW BUSINESS 
There was no new business. 
 


  







6 


9. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Mr. Pellegrino polled the public for comment. There was no further public comment. 
 


10. ADJOURNMENT 
Mr. Nyman made a motion, seconded by Ms. Pierce that the meeting be adjourned at 3:30 PM. 


 
 
Submitted by: 
Donna Byers, Staff Secretary 


  







7 


BUCKS COUNTY MUNICIPAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVE 
PROGRESS REPORT 
September 2013 
 


Municipality Type of Assistance 


Bensalem Work jointly with Lower Southampton on Brownsville Road concept plan. 
Development of riverfront area. 


Bristol Borough Working with Borough’s economic development committee on Mill Street and 
general borough upgrades through their ―Raising the Bar‖ initiative. Completed 
assistance on their 5-year economic development plan and presentation to 
Borough Council. Attended first meeting of the implementation team, with 
representatives of all elected officials. There is a proposal to improve the Mill 
Street gateway. BCPC contribution to the implementation phase is to provide 
detailed market data that will be made available to potential investors and 
developers. We will prepare an analysis of market conditions based on ESRI 
data. 


Buckingham Farming; Pennsylvania Biotechnology Center, the Cross Keys area. Met with 
township and developer regarding the construction of a new Mercedes 
dealership at cross keys on the Doylestown Lumber site. This will be part of 
our future planning considerations. 


Chalfont Invited to be part of revitalization project. Draft report issued. 


Dublin Member of steering committee on revitalization. Final report completed and 
presented to Borough Council and reviewed by BCPC. Met with the manager 
to go over their next steps, to identify the potential funding sources and role for 
the county. We will attend a public meeting on 10/17 at 8 am where the plan 
will be presented. BCPC reviewed their revitalization plan, which is being 
adopted as an amendment to their comprehensive plan. 


East Rockhill Conducted township visioning session in June. Preparing detailed summary 
report on session which will include future goals and actions. 


Langhorne Updating master plan – focus on town center issues. 


Lower Makefield Updating comprehensive plan with focus on economic issues – older shopping 
centers; Edgewood Village; filling Class A office space. Completed outreach to 
all township boards and commissions for input into plan. Preparing revised 
plan narrative and meeting monthly with planning commission to discuss 
revision. 


Lower Southampton Study and concept plan for Brownsville Road – Street Road to Bristol Road. 


Middletown Review planning for economic development and develop strategic plan. 


Morrisville Preparing for borough visioning session. 


New Britain Borough  Working with their economic development committee. Held Community Town 
Hall meeting March 5, 2013. Preparing detailed summary report on session 
which will include future goals and actions. Preparing a report on their visiting 
session and other actions. Brought Steve Barth to a meeting of their economic 
development committee. 


New Hope Standards for riverfront development – Bucks County Playhouse area.  
Finalizing the zoning standards. Served as mediator between the borough and 
Bucks County Playhouse on changing the zoning to accommodate the 
expansion of the Playhouse area. We are very close to agreeing on an ordinance. 







8 


Northampton Working on Holland area; industrial areas. Report presented to BCPC on July 3. 
Preparing review draft. Met with the township about expanding our project to 
the Richboro area. 


Perkasie Updating comprehensive plan for the borough with emphasis on the town 
center. Began production of 2nd draft of the Plan Update moving towards final 
review and plan adoption. This Comprehensive Plan was funded in part by the 
Transportation and Community Development Initiative, a grant program of 
DVRPC that supports local development and redevelopment efforts in 
qualifying municipalities of the Delaware Valley. A primary focus of the 
Economic Development chapter was to foster downtown revitalization within 
the Town Center, creating a more vibrant, walkable, mixed use environment 
while maintaining Perkasie’s small town character. Working alongside the 
borough’s Economic Development Director has resulted in an effective means 
for planning, marketing, and brokering of businesses—both the retention of 
existing and formation of new—throughout the borough. 


Plumstead  Plumsteadville area – Town Hall meeting for businesses and residents. Met with 
officials from the township and toured various sites. Preparing detailed 
summary report on session which will include future goals and actions. 


Riegelsville Parking issues. 


Sellersville Industrial area redevelopment; downtown area. County assisted the Industrial 
Development Authority with a ―Business in our Sites‖ loan application to the 
State for the U.S. Gauge (AMETEK) property. The Borough supported the 
application. The loan was approved by the State’s Commonwealth Financing 
Authority for $5 million with a local match of $500,000. 


Solebury Villages; river businesses and tourism analysis as part of the Comprehensive 
Plan Update. 


Springfield Growth capacity of their industrial/commercial district, looking at constraints. 
Continued preparation of the analysis and modeling for development area 
capacity for the Route 309 corridor.   


Tinicum Villages; river businesses and tourism; farming. Working on concepts for 
Ottsville as part of the Comprehensive Plan Update. 


Upper Makefield Conducted town hall meeting with businesses and residents of the Taylorsville 
Road area of Washington Crossing on September 10, 2013. Held a town hall 
meeting on September 10 to discuss the gateway to Washington Crossing. The 
meeting was well received, but much of the discussion involved the future of 
Washington Crossing State Park. 


Upper Southampton  Standards for industrial area. Initiated process of development industrial 
standards. 


Warrington Gateway zoning for Route 611 corridor. Working with the township planning 
commission on refining a proposed ordinance for Route 611 which would 
result in adding new commercial uses to the corridor. We are preparing graphics 
for them to illustrate what the corridor should look like. 


West Rockhill Prepared a proposal for a study of the Village of Almont, an analysis of the 
Lawn Avenue Corridor, and an update to the Comprehensive Plan. 


Yardley Downtown/Main Street – parking, cooperation of merchants, zoning. Met with 
the manager and zoning officer on next steps. We will write up our visioning 
results and recommendations that will be incorporated into a revision of their 
comprehensive plan. 


  







9 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Staff Report 


September 2013 
 


PLANNING SERVICES 


 
COMMUNITY PLANNING 
 


 Langhorne Borough Comprehensive Plan—Continued work on the draft future land use plan 
chapter and preparation of the draft plan. 


 Lower Makefield Township Comprehensive Plan—Attended the Township’s Park and Recreation 
Board meeting in September to discuss proposed changes to the Park and Recreation Planning chapter 
of the comprehensive plan update. Prepared the first draft of the Transportation Planning chapter of the 
Plan. Continued reviewing information for the Existing Land Use map. 


 Perkasie Borough Comprehensive Plan—Presented the Future Land Use Chapter to the 
Comprehensive Plan Committee. A consensus was reached by the Committee and attendees to approve 
the draft with minor revisions. Continued working on Plan Recommendations and the remainder of the 
2nd Draft. 


 Solebury Township Comprehensive Plan—Continued preparation of the second draft of the Plan. 


 Tinicum Township Comprehensive Plan—Attended a comprehensive plan committee meeting to 
discuss the Agriculture and Source Water Protection chapters. Continued preparation of the Village 
Planning chapter. 


 Plumstead Township—Provided the Township manager with a compilation of responses from 
attendees at the Plumsteadville Town Hall meeting indicating characteristics they feel are important to 
the future of the village. Began preparing a detailed summary of the meeting. 


 Northampton Township—Began corrections to complete the first draft of the Holland Village Master 
Plan per the comments of supervisory staff. Met with the Township manager regarding the potential 
development of a master plan for the village of Richboro. 


 Buckingham and Plumstead townships—Began refining parcel information for the Cross Keys 
study area. 


 Springfield Township—Continued preparation of the development capacity analysis for the Route 309 
development area corridor. Completed the initial soil suitability and capacity model and the development 
capacity model. 


 Morrisville Borough—Completed the 2010 population and housing estimates as an alternative to 
Census figures that are believed to be inaccurate based on past analysis. 


 Upper Makefield Township—Conducted a visioning session with Township representatives and 
residents to discuss the future of the Taylorsville study area. Compiled responses of the meeting 
attendees from the visioning exercises and began preparing a meeting summary. 


 Upper Southampton Township—Continued analysis of the industrial zoning district requirements. 


 West Rockhill Township—Waiting for response from Township officials concerning proposals for a 
comprehensive plan update, Almont Village study, and Lawn Avenue Corridor study. 


 Yardley Borough—Initiated development of an enhanced report consisting of a compilation of the 
Town Hall meeting presentation and visioning summary, goals and priority actions, and market place 
profile. 


 New Britain Borough—Initiated development of an enhanced report consisting of a compilation of 
the Town Hall meeting presentation and visioning summary, goals and priority actions, and market place 
profile. 
 


  







10 


Planning Information and Agency Coordination 


 Provided information to the public on various topics including, but not limited to, development 
proposals, review letters, local zoning and municipal regulations. 


 Attended Bucks County Homeless Continuum of Care meetings. 


 Reviewed Act 14, 67, 68 NPDES permit applications. 


 Continued production of census and American Community Survey datasheets. 
 


Act 247 and 537 Review Activity 


 8 Subdivision and Land Development Proposals 


 6 Municipals 


 1 Sewage Facility Planning Modules 


 1 Traffic Impact Study 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING 
 


Neshaminy Watershed Sediment Reduction Study (FY2012) CZM-funded project). 


 Working with the consultant, established parameters for the draft plan and recommendations to be 
included in the final plan. 


 Worked with BCPC GIS staff to incorporate land cover GIS data to maps to help facilitate the location 
of open space and municipal land use cover information. 


 Prepared progress reporting documents to submit to DEP. 


 Reviewed comprehensive plans, river conservation plans, open space and stormwater management plans 
for municipalities located within the Coastal Zone Management Zone in order to identify ways in which 
to connect greenspace corridors and create wildlife habitat corridors. 


 Began preparing CZM grant application for phase II of the Neshaminy Creek Sediment Reduction Plan 
for Municipal Implementation. Selected two subbasins to undergo a more detailed field assessment. 


 
Stormwater Management 


 Coordinated efforts with the Friends of the Poquessing regarding implementation plan project proposal 
for William Penn Foundation funding. 


 Attended Sustainable Stormwater Programs and Financing: Using green infrastructure and dedicated 
funding to improve your community's stormwater services workshops, hosted by AMEC. 


 Coordinated with other counties, ongoing MS4 compliance and stormwater management assistance to 
municipalities. 


 
Watershed Planning 


 Began investigating integrated water resources plans developed and began compiling a list of items to 
include in a table of contents of an integrated water resources plan for Bucks County. 


 
Bucks County Open Space & Greenway Planning 


 Analyzed data for the Mill-Queen Anne-Black Ditch Creek trail feasibility study. 


 Met with Upper Neshaminy Creek Trail Study steering committee to discuss trail alignment options to 
be presented at the next public meeting. 


 
Recycling and Solid Waste 


 Met with regional recycling coordinators at regular monthly meeting. 


 Toured ReCommunity, a recycling facility in Delaware, with regional group. 


 Attended statewide recycling meeting. 







11 


 Working with several municipalities on trash/recycling contracts. 


 Preparing for last HHW event in LMCC. 


 Updating the Hard-to-Recycle Guidebook. 


 Preparing a paper reduction guide for county employees. 
 
Municipal Comprehensive Planning 


 Working on water, wastewater, energy, waste and recycling, and hazard mitigation sections of the 
Tinicum and Lower Makefield Comprehensive Plan updates. 


 
Hazard Mitigation Planning 


 Working with FEMA and PEMA staff to host a meeting rolling out FEMA’s model hazard mitigation 
implementation plan. 


 


TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) 
 
General Transportation Planning 


 Conducted Bicycle Task Force Meeting. 


 Continued to develop conceptual sketches for Upper Makefield Township project in Washington 
Crossing. 


 Reviewed Lower Makefield Township Draft Transportation Section for Comprehensive plan. Attended 
Lower Makefield Township Planning Commission Meeting to discuss Lower Makefield Township 
Comprehensive Plan Review. 


 Attended several meetings to discuss Ottsville Village Study in Tinicum Township. Performed site visit 
to Ottsville to obtain photography for the village. 


 
Public Transportation 


 Reviewed SEPTA Board Meeting Materials. 


 Attended TMA of Bucks County Board Meeting. 


 Performed site visit for stations located along Trenton and Warminster Regional Rail Lines for SEPTA 
Rail Station Visibility Enhancement Study Phase II. 


 Attended TMA Policy Review Meeting. 


 Attended Trenton Line Access Study Committee Meeting. 
 
Transportation Assistance to Planning Staff 


 Discussed transportation related issues with staff for subdivision and land development reviews. 
 
Transportation Improvement Program 


 Provided Transportation Improvement Program information to various individuals and agencies. 


 Coordinated with DVRPC regarding upcoming Transportation Improvement Program Update process. 
 
Delaware Valley Regional Planning Commission (DVRPC) 


 Coordinated with DVRPC regarding County Bridge Act 13 Funding. 


 Attended Regional Transportation Committee Meeting. 


 Reviewed meeting notes from DVRPC Household Travel Survey Project. 
 
Geographic Information Systems (GIS) 


 Continued development of County-Wide Enterprise GIS program. 







12 


 Continued database development of site addresses and EMS, Fire, and Police response zones. 


 Continued updating of Enterprise Geodatabase and ArcGIS Server. 


 Continued coordination with GIS consultant on the Land Records and EMS projects. 


 Continued development and support of County GIS Consortium efforts. 


 Continued updating and editing of county Road Centerline database. 


 Continued GIS technical software support to IT and GIS staff at Board of Assessment. 


 Continued support of County hosted GIS web server connection and interface. 


 Provided GIS technical support to Emergency Communication staff. 


 Continued technical support for County GIS Web Viewer. 


 Continued editing of county-wide data layers using GIS Data Reviewer tool. 


 Continued editing procedures on land base parcel annotation features. 


 Provided GIS data updates to both Doylestown and Warminster Townships. 


 Provided GIS data updates to Chalfont-New Britain Joint Sewer Authority. 


 Provided GIS data to both Yardley Borough and Yardley Sewer Authority. 


 Attended Information Resources Exchange Group meeting at DVRPC. 


 Met with City of Philadelphia Public Safety GIS Manager, Grant Ervin. 


 Met with Doylestown officials to discuss GIS Consortium initiative. 


 Provided SEPTA GIS with Bucks County TMA route data. 
 
GIS Map Production 


 Produced presentation maps for Community, Environmental and Preservation Planning units. 
 
GIS Transportation 


 Continued development of Region-wide GIS Transportation initiative. 





















































































































































































































































































		BCPC Packet

		Agenda

		Minutes

		MEDI Update

		Municipal Reviews

		Subdivision & Land                Development Reviews

		Planning Modules








BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
MEETING 


 
Wednesday, November 6, 2013 


2:00 P.M. 
 


Robert H. Grunmeier Room 
1260 Almshouse Road 
Doylestown, PA 18901 


 
 


AGENDA 
 
 


 
1. Call to Order 


 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 


 
3. Approval of Minutes of October 2, 2013 


 
4. Executive Director’s Report 


- Municipal Economic Development Initiative Update 
 


5. Commissioner’s Economic Development Council 
- Progress Report 


 
6. Report on Floodplain Maps 
 
7. Act 247 Reviews 


 
8. Old Business 


- Montgomery County Planning Commission Joint Meeting 
Date: November 22, 2013 
Time: 9:30 A.M. 
Location: Horsham Township Building 
 


9. New Business 
 
10. Public Comment  
 
11. Adjournment 


 
 


 
Please remember to contact us at 


215-345-3400 if you cannot attend. Thank you. 
 


AGENDA SUBJECT TO CHANGE PRIOR TO MEETING 







  


 2







 
BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 


Minutes of Meeting 
October 2, 2013 


 
MEMBERS PRESENT: James J. Dowling; Jr.; Ed Kisselback, Jr.;  Raymond (Skip) W. Goodnoe; 


David R. Nyman; Robert M. Pellegrino; Carol A. Pierce; Evan J. Stone; 
Walter Wydro 
 


STAFF PRESENT: 
 


Charles T. McIlhinney Lynn T. Bush; Timothy A. Koehler; David P. 
Johnson; Donna W. Byers; Richard G. Brahler, Jr.; Maureen Wheatley; 
Patricia Stockett 
 


Guests: James McGinnis, Reporter; Larry Menkes, resident  


 
1. CALL TO ORDER 


Mr. Pellegrino called the meeting to order at 2:00 PM. 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 


All rose for the pledge of allegiance. 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 4, 2013 


Upon motion of Mr. Wydro, seconded by Ms. Pierce, with the vote being 6-0-2 the motion 
carried to approve the minutes of the September 4, 2013 meeting. Mr. Dowling and Mr. 
Kisselback abstained as they were not present. 
 


4. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
Municipal Economic Development Initiative (MEDI) 
The September 2013 MEDI Progress Report was submitted to the board prior to the meeting. 
Ms. Bush reported on the status of the MEDI for the following municipalities: 
 


Bristol Borough–Ms. Bush said Bristol Borough organized an implementation team and 
invited representatives and elected officials to their first joint meeting. Bristol Borough is 
moving forward with Mill Street upgrades. Mr. Koehler and BCPC staff are assisting the 
Borough with market data the Borough can present to investors. 
 
Buckingham Township–A meeting was held with the municipalities that make up the Cross 
Keys area (Doylestown, Buckingham, Plumstead townships, and Doylestown Borough). Ms. 
Bush told the board a new Mercedes dealership may be constructed at the Doylestown 
Lumber site. Doylestown Township is considering sidewalks/walkways in the Cross Keys 
area for pedestrian accessibility to restaurants and businesses along Swamp Road. 
 
New Britain Borough–Ms. Bush reported New Britain Borough is working toward having 
Steve Barth assist them, and they are moving along with preparing future goals and actions. 
 
New Hope Borough–The Borough is getting close to resolving zoning ordinances for 
proposed activities for the Bucks County Playhouse. Ms. Bush and BCPC staff are helping to 
develop an ordinance that is acceptable to New Hope Borough and the Playhouse. 
 


 3







Northampton Township–Ms. Bush reported BCPC staff is continuing work on the Holland 
expansion area. 
 
Perkasie Borough–The Borough continues to focus on economic development. Ms. Bush 
said the borough has met with some developers who have shown interest in the downtown 
area. 
 
Sellersville Borough–Ms. Bush reported that Bucks County assisted the Industrial 
Development Authority (IDA) with a Business in our Sites loan application. The IDA will use 
the $5 million loan to redevelop the former U.S. Gauge (AMETEK) a 40-acre property 
located in the borough. 
 
Upper Makefield Township–The BCPC held a town hall meeting at the township on 
September 10th to discuss the Taylorsville Road area of Washington Crossing. Ms. Bush said 
that although the meeting was well-received, most public comments focused on Washington 
Crossing State Park. 
 
Warrington Township–BCPC staff are working with the township on refining ordinances for 
the Route 611 corridor. 
 
Yardley Borough–Ms. Bush said she met with the borough’s manager and zoning officer on 
downtown visioning. The borough’s downtown area has been active this summer due to 
outdoor dining. BCPC staff are assisting the borough with recommendations that will be 
incorporated into the borough’s updated comprehensive plan. Mr. Nyman asked if there 
were any parking issues downtown with the increased activity. Ms. Bush responded that the 
parking issues have improved through the efforts of borough staff. 
 
Mr. Wydro suggested there be community outreach on the MEDI progress. Ms. Bush 
responded the BCPC is working on a document to post on the county website.  
 
Discussion followed on municipalities and their ability to hire consultants through funding 
sources. 


 
Ms. Bush announced that David Johnson is doing a superb job with the Open Space Program 
(OSP) in lieu of Kris Kern’s departure. Any questions concerning the OSP may be directed to 
Mr. Johnson. 


 
5. BUCKS COUNTY BRIDGE UPDATE 


Mr. Brahler provided a PowerPoint presentation on bridges in Bucks County. Mr. Brahler stated 
that of the 833 bridges, 115 are county-owned and 53 are locally-owned; the remaining bridges 
are owned by the state. Mr. Brahler presented on the nation’s aging infrastructure, bridge 
monitoring, bridge inspections, deficient bridges, current conditions, weight restriction 
implications, repairs, and funding through the Transportation Improvement Program. 
Discussion followed on current bridge closures, the rating of bridge closings, right-of-way 
restrictions, bridge ownership and responsibility, historical bridge considerations, community 
pressure to repair some bridges, timelines for bridge repairs, funding for repairs, and inventory 
of county bridges. 
 
Mr. Pellegrino polled the board for questions. 
 


 4







Mr. Menkes, of Warminster Township, asked if bike lanes are considered when bridges are 
repaired. Mr. Brahler responded bike lanes are always part of the design considerations, but 
other considerations are factored into the overall bridge profile.  
 
Mr. Nyman requested the board be provided with a copy of the PowerPoint presentation. Mr. 
Pellegrino thanked Mr. Brahler for the excellent report. 
 


6. ACT 247 REVIEWS 
The reviews of October 2, 2013 were mailed to the board for their review prior to the meeting. 
Upon motion of Mr. Nyman, seconded by Ms. Pierce, the motion carried to approve the 
October 2, 2013 Act 247 reviews. Mr. Stone recused himself from BCPC review #11964. 


 
7. OLD BUSINESS 


Ms. Bush announced the joint meeting with the Montgomery County Planning Commission has 
been rescheduled to Friday, November 22, 2013 at 9:30 a.m. The meeting will be held in the 
Horsham area and include a tour of the Willow Grove Naval Air Station. Ms. Bush will provide 
further details. Mr. Kisselback said he will not be able to attend the meeting as he will be away. 
 


8. NEW BUSINESS 
There was no new business. 
 


9. PUBLIC COMMENT 
There was no public comment. 
 


10. ADJOURNMENT 
Mr. Dowling made a motion, seconded by Ms. Pierce that the meeting be adjourned at 2:45 PM. 


 
 
Submitted by:  
Donna Byers, Staff Secretary 


 
 


  


 5







 
BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 


Staff Report 
October 2013 


 
PLANNING SERVICES 


 
COMMUNITY PLANNING 
 
> Langhorne Borough Comprehensive Plan—Continued work on the draft future land use 


plan chapter and preparation of the draft plan. Evaluated potential zoning issues related to 
future land use categories and boundaries. 


> Lower Makefield Township Comprehensive Plan—Attended the Township’s September 
Planning Commission meeting to discuss the Transportation Planning chapter draft and changes 
to the Park and Recreation Planning chapter of the comprehensive plan update. Prepared the 
first drafts of the Vision for the Future and Community Facilities and Services chapters of the 
Plan. Continued reviewing information for the Existing Land Use map. 


> Perkasie Borough Comprehensive Plan—Reviewed the 2nd draft of the plan and 
incorporated revisions during the meeting. The Comprehensive Plan Committee agreed to 
extend the review period through the end of October. The Executive Summary Brochure was 
forwarded to the committee. Additional revisions of the draft plan and brochure will be 
addressed at their November meeting. Met with the Perkasie Olde Towne Association board to 
present an overview of the plan’s status and contents.  


> Solebury Township Comprehensive Plan—Continued preparation of the second draft of the 
Plan. 


> Tinicum Township Comprehensive Plan—Attended a comprehensive plan committee 
meeting to discuss the Mining, Natural Gas, and Electric Power chapter. Continued corrections 
to Hazard Mitigation and Park and Recreation chapters. 


> Plumstead Township—Provided the Township manager with a draft report consisting of a 
detailed summary of the Plumsteadville Town Hall meeting presentation and visioning session, 
goals and priority actions, and market place profile. 


> Northampton Township—Completed the first draft of the Holland Village Master Plan per 
the comments of supervisory staff and forwarded it to administrative staff for initial draft 
production.  


> Buckingham and Plumstead townships—Continued refining parcel information for the 
Cross Keys study area and prepared a draft market analysis.  


> Springfield Township—Continued preparation of the development capacity analysis for the 
Route 309 development area corridor. Continuing refinement of the soil suitability and capacity 
model and the development capacity model based on researched soil suitability characteristics. 


> Upper Makefield Township—Initiated development of an enhanced report of the public 
visioning meeting for the Taylorsville study area. The report will compile the meeting 
presentation and visioning summary, goals and priority actions, and market place profile.  


> Upper Southampton Township—Continued analysis of the industrial zoning district 
requirements. Completed a land use survey of the industrial zoning district. 


> West Rockhill Township—Waiting for response from Township officials concerning 
proposals for a comprehensive plan update, Almont Village study, and Lawn Avenue Corridor 
study. 


 6







> Yardley Borough—Continued development of an enhanced report consisting of a compilation 
of the Town Hall meeting presentation and visioning summary, goals and priority actions, and 
market place profile. Met with the borough zoning officer concerning the preparation of an 
update to the borough comprehensive plan. Began preparation of maps and completed 
demographic and socioeconomic comparison tables for the update. 


> New Britain Borough—Continued development of an enhanced report consisting of a 
compilation of the Town Hall meeting presentation and visioning summary, goals and priority 
actions, and market place profile. 


> Lower Southampton and Bensalem townships—Conducted a site visit of the Brownsville 
Road study area and prepared a draft market place profile. 


> Sellersville Borough—Attended meetings regarding future plans for redevelopment of the U.S. 
Gauge (AMETEK) property. Researched previous plans of the site and adjacent properties. 


> Warrington Township—Prepared a streetscape analysis of major parcels of the Route 611 
corridor as part of the Gateway project. 


 
Planning Information and Agency Coordination 
> Provided information to the public on various topics including, but not limited to, demographic 


and socioeconomic data, development proposals, review letters, local zoning and municipal 
regulations. 


> Attended Bucks County Homeless Continuum of Care meetings. 
> Reviewed Act 14, 67, 68 NPDES permit applications. 
> Continued production of census and American Community Survey datasheets. 
> Attended a meeting with representatives of the Delaware River Joint Toll Bridge Commission 


regarding the I-95/Scudder Falls Bridge Improvement Project. 
 
Act 247 and 537 Review Activity 
> Subdivision and Land Development Proposals 
> Sketch Plans 
> Municipals 
> Sewage Facility Planning Modules  
> Traffic Impact Study 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING 
 
Neshaminy Watershed Sediment Reduction Study (FY2012 CZM-funded project). 
> Working with consultant to establish parameters for draft plan and recommendations to be 


included in final plan. 
> Prepared progress reporting documents to submit to DEP. 
> Prepared and mailed invitation letters for the second municipal meeting to take place on 


November 21.   
> Began preparing agenda and presentation for the November 21 meeting.  
> Prepared and submitted FY2014 CZM grant for Neshaminy Creek Sediment Reduction 


Assessment: West Branch 3 and Neshaminy Tributary 3 (Phase II) grant application. 
 
Stormwater Management  
> Assisted municipalities regarding Act 167 plans completed prior to 2005, when DEP shifted 


requirements. 


 7







> Prepared stormwater management section of the Lower Makefield Comprehensive Plan. 
> Attended the Stormwater Management Tools: Real-Life Solutions for a Resilient Community 


Workshop, sponsored by the MCPC. 
 
Bucks County Open Space & Greenway Planning 
> Continued with proposed mapping of Upper Neshaminy Creek and Levittown proposed trail 


routings. 
> Met with Heritage Conservancy to discuss easements needed as part of the Upper Neshaminy 


Creek Trail. 
> Met with representatives from PennDOT and Jacobs Engineering relative to proposed crossing 


of Pennsylvania Turnpike as part of the Levittown Trail project. 
> Participating in the Circuit Coalition meeting at DVRPC. 
> Prepared and submitted progress reports for the Levittown and Upper Neshaminy Creek trail 


studies. 
> Conducted additional field work for the Levittown Trail Feasibility Study. 
> Selected and sent out invitations for the Middle Neshaminy Creek Trail Feasibility Study. 
> Requested Right-of-Way information from PennDOT relative to several state roads as part of 


trail feasibility studies. 
> Met with Bob Thomas to gain insight into easements, shared bike lanes, managing trail access in 


areas where hunting is allowed. 
> Scheduled presentation of proposed Upper Neshaminy Creek Trail to Doylestown Township 


Board of Supervisors. 
> Attended Quakertown Regional Trails planning meeting. 


 
Recycling and Solid Waste 
> Met with regional recycling coordinators at regular monthly meeting.  
> Toured Community Recycling, a clothing recycling facility in Falls Twp. 
> Attended statewide recycling meeting in Harrisburg. 
> Preparing annual reports for HHW events. 
> Preparing HHW billing and invoices. 
> Planning for next year’s HHW 
 
Municipal Comprehensive Planning 
> Working on water, wastewater, energy, waste and recycling, and hazard mitigation sections of the 


Tinicum and Lower Makefield Comprehensive Plan updates. 
 
Hazard Mitigation Planning 
> Working with FEMA and PEMA staff to host an October 30th meeting rolling out FEMA’s 


model hazard mitigation integration plan. 
> Attended conference call regarding the FEMA/PEMA October workshop to review FEMA’s 


model hazard mitigation implementation plan. 
> Attended FEMA/PEMA model hazard mitigation implementation plan workshop. 
 


TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) 
 
General Transportation Planning 
> Coordinated with Bicycle Task Force. 


 8







> Began to develop conceptual sketches for Ottsville Village Study in Tinicum Township. 
> Presented County Bridge Program Update to BCPC Board. 
> Participated in Lincoln Highway Road Safety Audit. 
> Began assisting PennDOT in Local Roads Data Collection Project. 
 
Public Transportation 
> Reviewed SEPTA Board Meeting Materials. 
> Began report development for SEPTA Rail Station Visibility Enhancement Study Phase II. 


Reviewed 1st quarter invoices for TMA Bucks. 
> Participated in Roosevelt Boulevard Transit Study Teleconference. 
> Reviewed Neshaminy Mall Transit Center Study and provided comments to DVRPC. 
 
Transportation Assistance to Planning Staff 
> Discussed transportation related issues with staff for subdivision and land development reviews. 
 
Transportation Improvement Program 
> Provided Transportation Improvement Program information to various individuals and 


agencies. 
> Coordinated with DVRPC regarding upcoming Transportation Improvement Program Update 


process. Participated in conference call to discuss TIP Update scheduling and financial guidance. 
Participated in conference call to discuss MAP21 Funding Categories. 


 
Delaware Valley Regional Planning Commission (DVRPC) 
> Coordinated with DVRPC regarding County Bridge Act 13 Funding. 
> Attended Regional Transportation Committee Meeting. 
> Attended TMA Policy Review Committee Meeting. 
> Coordinated with Pennsylvania Subcommittee of the RTC regarding Transit Support Program 


Special Studies Program. 
 
Geographic Information Systems (GIS) 
 
> Continued development of County-Wide Enterprise GIS program. 
> Continued database development of site addresses and EMS, Fire, and Police response zones. 
> Continued updating of Enterprise Geodatabase and ArcGIS Server. 
> Continued coordination with GIS consultant on the Land Records and EMS projects. 
> Continued development and support of County GIS Consortium efforts. 
> Continued updating and editing of county Road Centerline database. 
> Continued GIS technical software support to IT and GIS staff at Board of Assessment. 
> Continued support of County hosted GIS web server connection and interface. 
> Provided GIS technical support to Emergency Communication staff. 
> Continued technical support for County GIS Web Viewer. 
> Continued editing of county-wide data layers using GIS Data Reviewer tool. 
> Continued editing procedures on land base parcel annotation features. 
> Attended 2015 aerial acquisition meeting at DVRPC. 
> Attended ESRI hosted workshop on latest software capabilities. 
> Attended the Delaware Valley Intelligence Center (DVIC) meeting in Philadelphia. 


 9







 10


> Met with ESRI business representative to discuss Business Analyst software. 
> Provided GIS data update to Bristol Township Consortium member. 
 
GIS Map Production 
> Produced presentation maps for Community, Environmental and Preservation Planning units. 
> Produced floodplain map for Tinicum Township. 
 
GIS Transportation 
> Continued development of Region-wide GIS Transportation initiative. 







Jody L. Holton, AICP 


EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 


Board Members 


MARC D. JONAS, ESQ., CHAIR 


DULCIE FLAHARTY, VICE-


CHAIR 


JILL BLUMHARDT 


SCOTT EXLEY 


MELISSA GILBERT 


ROY RODRIGUEZ 


CHARLES TORNETTA 


REV. JOHN WEST III 


SCOTT ZELOV 


Lynn T. Bush 


EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/COUNTY CHIEF CLERK 


Board Members 


ROBERT M. PELLEGRINO, CHAIR 


DAVID R. NYMAN, VICE-CHAIR 


WALTER S. WYDRO, SECRETARY 


JOSEPH A. CULLEN, ESQ. 


JAMES J. DOWLING 


RAYMOND W. GOODNOE 


EDWARD KISSELBACK 


CAROL A. PIERCE 


EVAN J. STONE 


 


  


 
 
 
 


Joint Meeting Between 
Montgomery County Planning Commission 


and 
Bucks County Planning Commission 


 


AGENDA 
 


Horsham Township Building 
1025 Horsham Road, Horsham PA  19044 


Friday, November 22, 2013 
9:30 AM 


 
 


1. Call to Order/Welcome 9:30 AM – 9:35 AM 


2. Transportation Update & 611 Corridor Study – Leo Bagley 9:35 AM – 9:45 AM 


3. Stormwater & Watershed Planning Update – Drew Shaw 9:45 AM – 9:55 AM 


4. MONTCO 2040 Comprehensive Plan Update – Brian O’Leary 9:55 AM – 10:05 AM 


5. Municipal Economic Development Initiative – Lynn Bush 10:05 AM – 10:15 AM 


6. Open Space and Farmland Preservation 10:15 AM – 10:25 AM 


7. Greenways, Trails, and Bicycle Paths 10:25 AM – 10:35 AM 


8. Introduction to Tours – Bill Walker and Mike McGee 10:35 AM – 10:45 AM 


9. Adjournment 


 
 


Tour of Willow Grove Naval Air Station and Warminster Naval Warfare Center 
which immediate follows the meeting 


 





















































































































































































































































































































































		AGENDA

		Minutes

		Staff Report

		Joint Meeting Agenda

		Municipal Reviews

		Subdivision and Land Development Reviews 

		Planning Module Reviews






 
 


 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 


MEETING 
 


 


 


 


Robert H. Grunmeier Room 


1260 Almshouse Road 


Doylestown, PA 18901 


 


 


 


 


AGENDA 


 


 
1. Call to Order 


2. Pledge of Allegiance 


3. Approval of Minutes of November 6, 2013 


4. Act 247 Reviews 


5. New Business 


- Appoint Nominating Committee 


- 2014 Board Meeting Schedule 


 


6. Adjournment 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Please remember to contact us at 


215-345-3400 if you cannot attend. Thank you. 


 


AGENDA SUBJECT TO CHANGE PRIOR TO MEETING  


Wednesday, December 4, 2013 


1:00 P.M. 







2 


 


  







3 


 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Minutes of Meeting 


November 6, 2013 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: James J. Dowling; Ed Kisselback, Jr.;  Raymond (Skip) W. Goodnoe; David R. 


Nyman; Robert M. Pellegrino; Carol A. Pierce; Evan J. Stone; Walter Wydro 
 


STAFF PRESENT: 
 


Charles T. McIlhinney Lynn T. Bush; Timothy A. Koehler; David P. Johnson; 
Donna W. Byers; Robert H. Keough; David A. Sebastian; Maureen Wheatley; 
Margaret A. McKevitt; Patricia A. Stockett 
 


Guests: Edward Levenson, Correspondent 


 
1. CALL TO ORDER 


Mr. Pellegrino called the meeting to order at 2:05 PM. 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 


All rose for the pledge of allegiance. 
 


3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF OCTOBER 2, 2013 


Upon motion of Mr. Wydro, seconded by Mr. Goodnoe, with the vote being 8-0 the motion carried to 


approve the minutes of the October 2, 2013 meeting.  


 
4. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 


Municipal Economic Development Initiative (MEDI) 
Ms. Bush reported that the BCPC continues to move forward with the MEDI. A progress report for the 
initiative will be finalized and ready to present to the Montgomery County Planning Commission at the 
joint meeting scheduled for November 22nd. Ms. Bush presented the board with the joint meeting 
Agenda and highlighted the scheduled presentations and tour. Following Mr. Pellegrino’s motion, the 
board unanimously agreed to the Agenda for the November 22nd joint meeting between the Montgomery 
County Planning Commission and the BCPC. Mr. Stone will not be present at the meeting. 
 
Ms. Bush provided the board with a draft Agenda for the December 4th BCPC board meeting. 
Discussion followed on the concept of a workshop meeting on economic development and timelines for 
presentation and scheduling of the holiday lunch. Mr. Koehler suggested Chalfont Borough be included 
as a participant on the Agenda. The board agreed to the concept as presented on the Agenda and hosting 
lunch prior to the BCPC meeting. 


 
5. COMMISSIONER’S ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL – PROGRESS REPORT 


Ms. Bush announced Margaret McKevitt’s new position as the Coordinator of Planning and Economic 
Development Services. Ms. McKevitt is still on staff with the BCPC, but her role is dedicated with the 
new position. 
 
Ms. McKevitt reported on the activities for the Industrial Development Authority (IDA). She stated the 
IDA is improving the former lumber yard located at 1 M-Y Lane in Falls Township.  
Ms. McKevitt reported that work continues with the development of a business park on the former 
Sellersville Borough U.S. Gauge (AMETEK) property. Ms. Bush added that Bucks County assisted the 
IDA with a Business in our Sites $5 million loan application to develop the site. 
 







4 


 


The IDA closed on a loan for Gorski Engineering, Inc. on 5th Street in Quakertown. Ms. McKevitt said 
the Borough will hold a press conference on this matter the end of November. 
 
Ms. McKevitt announced an open house will be held by the IDA in January and the BCPC board will be 
invited. They continue to work on loan guidelines and developing their website. 
 
Mr. Dowling asked if New Britain Borough is still holding a meeting on November 14th. Ms. Bush 
answered yes, that a landscape architect working for the Delaware Valley College will be hosting the 
meeting.  
  


6. REPORT ON FLOODPLAIN MAPS 
Mr. Keough provided a PowerPoint presentation on the Bucks County GIS Floodplain Web Viewer. The 
Web Viewer is an update and improvement to former digital floodplain mapping. The interactive 
mapping tool enables residents, municipalities, and developers access to floodplain boundaries to help 
determine floodplain designations. Mr. Keough said the mapping is based on building parcels in Bucks 
County which makes it more accurate than the Federal Emergency Management Agency’s (FEMA) 
floodplain maps that uses Google maps based on street addresses. He said FEMA is revising their maps, 
but adoption is not anticipated until 2015. Mr. Keough provided comparisons between the Bucks County 
GIS Floodplain Web Viewer and FEMA’s website that presented different results on the same parcel and 
could result in a change in flood insurance needs. Mr. Keough said a public hearing will be held prior to 
FEMA adopting the revised Bucks County flood maps. 
 
Discussion focused on resident notification of flood insurance requirements by lenders, flood insurance 
determinations, and Google mapping versus parcel and hydrology mapping. 
 
Mr. Pellegrino polled the board for questions. Mr. Pellegrino requested a copy of the PowerPoint 
presentation and website addresses be provided to the board. The Bucks County GIS Floodplain Viewer 
may be accessed at:  https://gisweb.co.bucks.pa.us/apps/floodplainviewer/ 


 
7. ACT 247 REVIEWS 


The reviews of November 6, 2013 were mailed to the board for their review prior to the meeting. Upon 
motion of Mr. Dowling, seconded by Mr. Stone, the motion carried to approve the November 6, 2013 
Act 247 reviews. There were no abstentions. 


 
8. OLD BUSINESS 


The Montgomery County Planning Commission/Bucks County Planning Commission Joint Meeting was 
discussed under the Executive Director’s Report. 
 


9. NEW BUSINESS 
There was no new business. 
 


10. PUBLIC COMMENT 


There was no public comment. 


 


11. ADJOURNMENT 


Mr. Nyman made a motion, seconded by Mr. Stone that the meeting be adjourned at 2:50 PM. 


 


 


Submitted by:  


Donna Byers, Staff Secretary 
 



https://gisweb.co.bucks.pa.us/apps/floodplainviewer/





5 


 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Staff Report 


November 2013 


 
PLANNING SERVICES 


 
COMMUNITY PLANNING 


 Langhorne Borough Comprehensive Plan—Began preparation of the second draft of the Plan.  


 Lower Makefield Township Comprehensive Plan—Attended the Township’s October Planning 
Commission meeting to discuss portions of the Community Facilities and Services chapter and the Vision 
for the Future chapter of the Plan update. Prepared the first draft of the Open Space and Conservation 
Planning chapter of the Plan. Continued reviewing information for the Existing Land Use map. 


 Perkasie Borough Comprehensive Plan—Meet with the Comprehensive Plan Committee to review 
the 2nd Draft of the plan. The committee made a motion to incorporate several changes into the 3rd 
Draft, which will be used for public review. The public meeting to present the 3rd Draft is scheduled for 
Dec. 11th.   


 Solebury Township Comprehensive Plan—Completed preparation of the second draft of the Plan. 


 Tinicum Township Comprehensive Plan—Attended a comprehensive plan committee meeting to 
discuss the Source Water Protection chapter. Began corrections to Mining, Natural Gas, and Electric 
Power chapter. 


 Northampton Township––Presented plan to Northampton Township Economic Development 
Corporation at Northampton Township for review and comment.   


 Buckingham and Plumstead townships—Continued refining parcel information for the Cross Keys 
study area.  


 Springfield Township—Continued preparation of the development capacity analysis for the Route 309 
development area corridor. Continuing refinement of the soil suitability and capacity model and the 
development capacity model based on researched soil suitability characteristics. 


 Upper Makefield Township—Continued development of an enhanced report of the public visioning 
meeting for the Taylorsville study area. The report will compile the meeting presentation and visioning 
summary, goals and priority actions, and market place profile.  


 Upper Southampton Township—Met with Township officials to discuss land use survey of the 
industrial zoning district area and possible next steps for revitalization of the area. 


 West Rockhill Township—Waiting for response from Township officials concerning proposals for a 
comprehensive plan update, Almont Village study, and Lawn Avenue Corridor study. 


 Yardley Borough—Finalized development of an enhanced report consisting of a compilation of the 
Town Hall meeting presentation and visioning summary, goals and priority actions, and market place 
profile. Met with the borough zoning officer several times to discuss draft maps and various information 
he needs to work on an update to the borough comprehensive plan. 


 New Britain Borough—Completed enhanced report consisting of a compilation of the Town Hall 
meeting presentation and visioning summary, goals and priority actions, and market place profile. 


 Brownsville Rd Corridor Study (Lower Southampton/Bensalem townships)—Commenced study 
of the corridor to determine what improvements can be undertaken to enhance the appearance, function 
and economic development. 


  







6 


 


Planning Information and Agency Coordination 


 Provided information to the public on various topics including, demographic and socioeconomic data, 
development proposals, review letters, local zoning and municipal regulations. 


 Attended Bucks County Homeless Continuum of Care meetings. 


 Reviewed Act 14, 67, 68 NPDES permit applications. 


 Continued production of census and American Community Survey datasheets. 
 
Act 247 and 537 Review Activity 


  8 Subdivision and Land Development Proposals 


  0 Sketch Plans 


  8 Municipals 


  1 Sewage Facility Planning Module 


  0 Traffic Impact Studys 
 
 
ENVRIONMENTAL PLANNING 
 
Neshaminy Watershed Sediment Reduction Study (FY2012 CZM-funded project). 


 Draft report prepared. (URL created to access link to review/download plan.)  


 Emailed and mailed meeting reminder letter containing project status updates, information requests, next 
steps and comment period information to municipal mangers, municipal engineers and Watershed 
Advisory Planning Committee members, and project partners.  


 Prepared and emailed/mailed invitation letters for the second municipal meeting on November 21.   


 Prepared agenda and presentation for the November 21 meeting.  


 Worked with GIS to have maps printed for meeting. 
 
Stormwater Management  


 Assisted municipalities and residents regarding stormwater management issues. 


 Coordinated with DEP, information regarding Act 167 planning and MS4 program. 


 
Bucks County Open Space & Greenway Planning 


 Continued with mapping of proposed routing of Upper Neshaminy Creek and Levittown proposed 
trails. 


 Met with representatives from PennDOT and DVRPC relative to proposed trail routings. 


 Conducted additional field work for the Levittown Trail Feasibility Study. 


 Requested Right-of-Way information from PennDOT relative to several state roads as part of trail 
feasibility studies. 


 
Recycling and Solid Waste 


 Met with regional recycling coordinators at regular monthly meeting.  


 Attended statewide recycling meeting in Harrisburg. 


 Preparing annual reports for HHW events. 


 Verifying DEP recycling and HHW grant awards. 


 Planning for next year’s HHW events. 
 
Municipal Comprehensive Planning 


 Working on various environmental sections of the Tinicum and Lower Makefield Comprehensive Plan 
updates. 







7 


 


Hazard Mitigation Planning 


 Working on PEMA Grant application to obtain funding for updating the Bucks County Hazard 
Mitigation Plan Update – 2011 to be completed by end of 2016. 


 
SEPA- Environmental Planners Meeting 


 Presentations were made on current projects and updates given by the various county environmental 
planners in attendance. 


 


TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) 


 
General Transportation Planning   


 Continued to develop conceptual sketches for Ottsville Village Study in Tinicum Township. 


 Reviewed Lincoln Highway Road Safety Audit.  


 Continued assisting PennDOT in Local Roads Data Collection Project. Provided several grids to 
DVRPC and PennDOT. 


 Attended Neshaminy Crossing Project Public Meeting at Neshaminy State Park. 


 Attended Northampton Township Economic Development Corporation Meeting to discuss Holland 
Village Study Report. 


 Reviewed Brownsville Road Vehicle Crash Data for Brownsville Road Study. 


 Participated in PennDOT Long Range Plan Webinar. 


 Reviewed Silverdale Borough Draft Comprehensive Plan. 


 Attended Joint MCPC/BCPC Board Meeting. 
  
Public Transportation 


 Reviewed SEPTA Board Meeting Materials. 


 Continued report development for SEPTA Rail Station Visibility Enhancement Study Phase II. Reviewed 
1st quarter invoices for TMA Bucks. Developed quarterly report to DVRPC. 


 Attended TMA of Bucks County Board Meeting. 


 Participated in Roosevelt Boulevard Transit Study Workshop. 


 Attended SEPTA City/County Committee Meeting. 


 Attended meeting with NJ Transit to discuss West Trenton Track Separation Project. 
 
Transportation Assistance to Planning Staff 


 Discussed transportation related issues with staff for subdivision and land development reviews. 


 Attended Review Design Meeting to discuss Healthcare Facility in Bensalem Township. 
  
Transportation Improvement Program 


 Provided Transportation Improvement Program information to various individuals and agencies. 


 Coordinated with DVRPC regarding upcoming Transportation Improvement Program Update process. 
Attended TIP Subcommittee Meetings and participated in teleconference to discuss new project funding 
criteria development.  


 
Delaware Valley Regional Planning Commission (DVRPC)  


 Attended Regional Transportation Committee Meeting. 
 
 
 
 







 
 







 
 


 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
 


Proposed 2014 Meeting Schedule 
 


 


Meetings are proposed to be held on the first Wednesday, 2:00 P.M. at the  


Bucks County Planning Commission office in the Robert H. Grunmeier Room 


1260 Almshouse Road, Doylestown, PA. 


 


January 8 


February 5 


March 5 


April 2 


May 7 


June 4 


July 2 


August 6 


September 3 


October 1 


November 5 


December 3 


 













































































































































































































































		Agenda

		Minutes

		Staff Report

		Proposed 2014 Meeting Schedule

		Municipal Reviews

		Subdivision and Land Development Reviews

		Planning Module Review






 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
MEETING 


 
Wednesday, January 2, 2013 


2:00 P.M. 
 


Robert H. Grunmeier Room 
1260 Almshouse Road 
Doylestown, PA 18901 


 
 


 


AGENDA 
 
 


 
1. Call to Order 


 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 


 
3. Approval of Minutes of December 5, 2012 


 
4. Executive Director’s Report 


 
5. Discussion of Municipal Economic Development Initiative 


 


- Continuation of presentations: New Britain Borough 


- Program Update 
 
6. Outlook for 2013  


 
7. Act 247 Reviews  


 
8. Report of Nominating Committee and Election of Officers 


 
9. Old Business 


 
10. New Business 
 
11. Public Comment  
 
12. Adjournment 


 
 


 
Please remember to contact us at 


215-345-3400 if you cannot attend. Thank you. 
 


AGENDA SUBJECT TO CHANGE PRIOR TO MEETING  







1 


 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Minutes of Meeting 
December 5, 2012 


 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Joseph A. Cullen, Jr.; James J. Dowling; Raymond (Skip) W. Goodnoe; 


Darrin M. Hoffman; Ed Kisselback, Jr.; David R. Nyman; Robert M. 
Pellegrino; Carol A. Pierce; Walter Wydro 
 


STAFF PRESENT: 
 
 


Charles T. McIlhinney; Lynn T. Bush; Timothy A. Koehler; David P. 
Johnson; Donna W. Byers; Maureen Wheatley; David A. Sebastian 


GUESTS: Bicycle Advisory Task Force: Steven Nelson; Andrew Hamilton; Richard 
Grafius; Michael Olszewski 
 


 
CALL TO ORDER: Mr. Kisselback called the meeting to order at 2:00 PM with a moment of silence 


and the pledge of allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF NOVEMBER 7, 2012:  
 Upon motion of Mr. Nyman, seconded by Mr. Dowling, with the vote being 9-0 the minutes of 


the November 7, 2012 meeting were approved.  
 


INFORMATION ITEMS: CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORTS 
 Chairman’s Report 


Mr. Kisselback announced the Nominating Committee will provide their report at the January 
2013 meeting. He reminded the board to let the Nominating Committee know at their earliest 
convenience if they are interested in being nominated to an officer position on the board. 
 


 Executive Director’s Report 
Ms. Bush followed up on the board’s request to have a joint meeting with the board of the 
Montgomery County Planning Commission (MCPC). Ms. Bush spoke with Mark Janas, 
chairman of the MCPC board, who was enthusiastic about the idea of having a joint meeting. 
Following discussion, Ms. Bush said she would make the arrangements to meet with the MCPC 
board at their regularly scheduled meeting time and at a mutually decided location. 
 
Ms. Bush announced the 202 Parkway opened on December 3rd following a ribbon cutting 
ceremony. 
 
Ms. Bush met with the dean of the Delaware Valley College to discuss what trends the college 
faculty may see affecting agriculture’s future in Bucks County. For many communities in Bucks 
County, farming is any important industry that must be considered as we work to foster 
economic vitality in the county. 
 
Ms. Bush said Bucks County received a $40,000 grant for a trail feasibility study along the 
Neshaminy Creek. The grant was received from the Department of Conservation and Natural 
Resources and will be a study from the Forks of the Neshaminy into the Core Creek area. 


 
 BCPC Staff and Members of the Bicycle Task Force 


Present at the meeting were members of the Bucks County Bicycle Task Force: Steven Nelson; 
Andrew Hamilton; Richard Grafius; and Michael Olszewski. Following introductions, Mr. 







2 


 


Nelson told the board that the Bucks County Bicycle Plan has been finalized and following 
today’s presentation, the Task Force will ask the BCPC board to recommend the Plan to the 
Commissioners for adoption. Mr. Nelson said the Plan comes at a great time with the 202 
Parkway opening which has both a multiuse path and an on-road bicycle lane. 
 
Mr. Johnson highlighted elements and components of the Plan, stating the final element was the 
November 8th public meeting held at Tyler Hall of the Bucks County Community College. Mr. 
Johnson commended the Task Force in their marketing of the Plan which generated good public 
interest and comment. 
 
Mr. Johnson summarized the major recommendations of the Plan which included: create major 
spines; establish connections; promote bike and driver education; safety; and create partnerships 
to implement and foster a bicycle-friendly culture. 
 
Mr. Hoffman asked if there was a recreational program. Mr. Johnson responded that the 
recreational component will probably be taken up by municipalities. Discussion followed on trial 
connectivity and the major spine component of the plan.  
 
Mr. Cullen asked if the Plan were recommended to the Commissioners, would there be any 
expense to the County to fund the plan. Mr. Johnson responded, no. Ms. Bush added that the 
county has limited its trail building to trails within county parks. 
 
Mr. Pellegrino questioned whether there would be any improvements to road shoulders. Mr. 
Johnson said improvements would be more toward completing trail links. Discussion followed 
on PennDOT involvement/interest in the plan. 
 
Mr. Hoffman asked how often this Plan would be updated. Discussion focused on amendments 
and the update timeline on the Bucks County Comprehensive Plan as well as developer ability to 
continue making bike paths. 
 
Mr. Cullen asked if there is a statewide bike plan for the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. Mr. 
Hamilton said there is an established bike route but no formal document; DVRPC has a plan. 


 
Mr. Nelson stressed the importance of the educational/safety component of the plan. Mr. 
Nyman suggested reemphasis may be needed on the new 4-foot bicycling passing law. Ms. 
Pierce presented the board with a newsletter sent out by State Representative Katharine Watson 
which addressed the new bike passing law.  
 
Mr. Dowling asked what happens once the Plan is recommended. Mr. Johnson responded the 
Plan would be placed on the Commissioners’ January meeting agenda to approve the Plan as a 
component of the Bucks County Comprehensive Plan. The Plan would be made available 
digitally and through other outreach. 
 
Mr. Kisselback polled the board for further questions. Upon motion of Mr. Dowling, seconded 
by Mr. Nyman, the board voted unanimously to recommend that the Bucks County Bicycle Plan 
be adopted by the Bucks County Board of Commissioners. 
 


  







3 


 


ACTION ITEMS 
 Act 247 Reviews 


The reviews of December 5, 2012 were mailed to the board for their review prior to the 
meeting. On motion of Mr. Nyman, seconded by Ms. Pierce, the board approved the December 
5, 2012 Act 247 reviews. There were no abstentions. 
 


OLD BUSINESS: There was no old business.   
 
NEW BUSINESS: There was no new business.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT AND PRESS QUESTIONS: There were no public comments or press questions. 


 
ADJOURNMENT: Mr. Kisselback made a motion, seconded by Mr. Pellegrino that the meeting be 


adjourned at 2:35 PM. 
 


Submitted by:  
 
Donna Byers, Staff Secretary 


  







4 


 


 
  







5 


 


 
BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 


Executive Director’s Report 
December 2012 


 
 
Success of BCPC Workshop – The December 5 workshop and discussions on municipal 
economic development were very helpful to the staff, and we are grateful to the board members for 
their time in listening and discussing some of the communities in Bucks County. Since that time, we 
learned that Steve Barth has been hired to work in Perkasie, and he is eager to collaborate with us. 
We will continue at our regular monthly meetings to go over the three communities that we did not 
get a chance to discuss, beginning with New Britain Borough in January. 
 
Dublin Borough Meeting – Dublin Borough is working on a ―visioning‖ plan, and we have been 
invited to participate on the task force and in the public meetings. Two of our own board members 
– Messrs. Pellegrino and Nyman – are active in this effort as well. At their community meeting on 
December 13, there was good discussion among about 35 community members about what the 
future of Dublin could be. The participants seemed genuinely pleased to be asked for their opinions 
and excited that there was a concerted effort to plan for the future.   
 
Bristol Borough Meeting – I attended Bristol Borough’s meeting on December 5 and was able to 
share the comments that BCPC board members made about the borough. I think that we can assist 
them in organizing their thoughts and efforts. They have collected a lot of ideas and information. 
 
BCPC Budget – The County adopted its budget on December 19. While we lost three staff people 
this year, we are pleased that funding for our economic initiatives has been enhanced. There may be 
some new internal efficiencies that can help us in 2013 as the Community and Business 
Development Department undergoes some restructuring. 
 
Delaware Valley Regional Planning Commission Annual Meeting – Each December the 
DVRPC Board meets for a half-day retreat on a specific topic. This year’s topic was transportation 
funding. We understand that Governor Corbett plans to address the shortfall in transportation 
funding in 2013. His transportation funding commission recommended in August, 2011, that 
meeting transportation needs will require new sources of funding and suggested changes such as 
increasing the vehicle registration fees, shifting the state police costs out of the transportation 
budget, and lifting the cap on the oil franchise tax. There were a series of potential revenue sources 
evaluated. The decline in transportation funds has resulted in part from the delay in passing a federal 
transportation bill, the inability to toll I-80, and the lack of growth in gas tax revenues. The gas tax, 
which is a flat fee per gallon of gas sold, is generating less revenue as cars become more efficient and 
as inflation continues to erode the value of the tax collected. 
 
SEPTA – SEPTA is also affected by the transportation funding because their revenues come 
partially from the fare box and partially from public sources. Each holiday season, they visit with our 
staff to tell us what capital projects are underway that will affect Bucks County. In addition to the 
new fare collection system, they continue to work on the Levittown Train Station. Plans will be 
made moving forward to handle additional riders on regional rail lines during the repair of I-95. This 
may involve expanded park-and-ride facilities. New hybrid buses have been purchased. 


  







6 


 


 
  







7 


 


 
BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 


Staff Report 
December 2012 


 


PLANNING SERVICES 
 
COMMUNITY PLANNING 
 


 Langhorne Borough Comprehensive Plan—Continued work on draft chapters related to the 
comprehensive plan. Created a draft template for committee members to use to identify positive 
characteristics of other town centers.  


 Perkasie Borough Comprehensive Plan—Conducted a meeting with the Borough’s 
Comprehensive Plan Committee to discuss the Housing Trends and Environmental and Natural 
Resources sections of the plan. Solicited comments and questions from the committee and 
public attendees. Continued data collection and draft narrative production of the plan, including 
community facilities and transportation.  


 Perkasie Borough Zoning Ordinance Update—Borough continues to move forward with 
the adoption process. 


 Northampton Township—Held Town Hall meeting for Village of Holland Master Plan with 
residents to discuss issues and help develop a vision for the future of the village. Continued 
development of land use and transportation drafts. Draft proposal for the preparation of design 
guidelines for Northampton Township’s village commercial overlay continues to be reviewed by 
the Executive Director.  


 Quakertown Borough—Participated in a conference call with borough officials to discuss the 
revised draft of the proposed Pedestrian-Oriented, Mixed-Use Overlay district. Made several 
changes based on officials’ input and forwarded the draft to the borough for Council’s review at 
their January 2013 workshop.  


 New Hope Borough—Completed preparing revisions to a draft subdivision and land 
development ordinance and submitted to borough officials for review. 


> Newtown Area Joint Municipal Zoning Ordinance—Completed a review of the Joint 
Municipal Zoning Ordinance regarding inconsistencies between the district regulations and the 
Table of Use Regulations. 


 Solebury Township Comprehensive Plan—Presented a summary of the findings from the 
survey results to the Township planning committee. Discussed community vision, goals, and 
objectives as well as the future trends facing the community. Continued preparation of draft 
chapters for the plan update.  


 Yardley Borough—Conducted field work to obtain information on parking within the 
downtown area of the borough. Information gathered includes: determining the number of on-
street and off-street spaces; identifying what spaces are publicly/privately owned; identification 
of land uses associated with various privately-owned spaces; and noting the number and 
locations of accessible spaces. Other information related to parking lot lighting, directional 
signage and as well as signage related to parking restrictions, and pedestrian connectibility was 
also noted. 
 


Bucks County Comprehensive Plan 


 Continued work on research and writing of a report on Transit Oriented Design. 
 


  







8 


 


Planning Information and Agency Coordination 


 Provided information to the public on various topics including, but not limited to, development 
proposals, review letters, local zoning and municipal regulations. 


 Attended Bucks County Homeless Continuum of Care meetings. 


 Reviewed Act 14, 67, 68 NPDES permit applications. 


 Continued production of census and American Community Survey datasheets. 


 Completed review draft of Bucks County Analysis of Impediments report regarding fair housing. 
 


Act 247 and 537 Review Activity 


 13 Subdivision and Land Development Proposals 


 5 Municipals 


 2 Transportation Impact Studies 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING 
 
Coastal Zone Management (CZM) Planning 


 Prepared consultant Request for Qualifications for Neshaminy Creek Sediment Reduction 
Municipal Implementation Plan (FY2012 CZM-funded project). 


 
Stormwater and Flood Management Planning 


 Reviewed FEMA flood map and policy information regarding ongoing assistance to 
municipalities. 


 Held conference call with FEMA and DCED representatives on FEMA flood mapping. 


 Responded to municipal engineer’s inquiries regarding stormwater management.  
 
Perkasie Borough Comprehensive Plan 


 Prepared and revised draft narratives of natural resources, water supply and infrastructure, 
wastewater facilities, and stormwater management, and energy conservation sections. 


 
Bucks County Open Space & Greenway Plan 


 Finalized grant contracts for the Mill (Otter) – Queen Anne Creek and Upper Neshaminy Creek 
Greenway trail feasibility studies. 


 Began to develop plan outline for these trail feasibility studies including components to be 
included, public outreach process, development of steering committees, and methodology used 
to identify opportunities and constraints.    


 Initiated research on parcel ownership and existing easements for parcels in the two project 
study areas. 


 Met with Warrington Township EAC chairman to advise on  
 


Recycling and Solid Waste 


 Prepared for next quarterly meeting of the Bucks County Solid Waste Advisory Committee. 


 Scheduling follow-up meeting with DEP for Waste Capacity Plan requirements and grant 
availability. 


 Implementing a work plan, timeline, and a 901 grant application for county’s waste capacity plan. 


 Worked on HHW events sites selection for 2013. 


 Preparing annual recycling survey. 


 Working with Montgomery County on an electronic recycling RFP. 







9 


 


Bucks County Employees Green Initiative (BEGIN) Committee 


 Met with committee co-chair to discuss 2013 committee initiatives and potential for applying for 
a grant for CNG vehicles. 


 
TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM 
 
General Transportation Planning 


 Continued composing various sections of Route 202 Bicycle Lane Project Report. Continued 
developing base mapping information. 


 Continued developing base information for transportation section of Northampton/Holland 
Study. Continued developing digitally enhanced photographs. Continued developing Study Tasks 
1 through 3. Conducted town hall meeting. 


 Continued developing base information for Perkasie Borough Comprehensive Plan 
Transportation Section. Continued developing digitally enhanced photographs. Continued 
composing Transportation Section. Provided draft transportation section to project manager. 


 Attended County Bridge meeting to discuss proposals received for contract for county-wide 
bridge inspections. 


 Presented draft Bicycle Master Plan to planning commission board and received approval from 
board for same. 


   
Public Transportation 


 Reviewed SEPTA Board Meeting Materials. 


 Continued developing base information for SEPTA Visibility Enhancement Study.  


 Participated in Job Access Reverse Commute teleconference. 


 Attended TMA Bucks Board Meeting. 


 Attended meeting with SEPTA staff to discuss FY 2014 Capital Budget. 
 
Transportation Assistance to Planning Staff 


 Discussed transportation related issues with staff for subdivision and land development reviews. 


 Attended preparation meeting for Bucks County Municipal Economic Development Initiative. 


 Presented Northampton/Holland Study at planning commission board workshop. 


 Reviewed transportation section of draft New Hope Subdivision and Land Development 
Ordinance. 


 Attended meeting to discuss Yardley Parking Study. 
 
Transportation Improvement Program 


 Provided Transportation Improvement Program information to various individuals and 
agencies. 


 Attended Route 202 Parkway Grand Opening. 


 Attended Pennsylvania Subcommittee of the Regional Transportation Committee TIP meeting. 
 


Delaware Valley Regional Planning Commission (DVRPC)  


 Reviewed FY 2014 New Freedoms listing and provided recommendation to DVRPC. 


 Attended DVRPC Long Range Planning Committee Meeting. 
 
Geographic Information Systems (GIS) 


 Continued development of County-Wide Enterprise GIS program. 







10 


 


 Continued database development of site addresses and EMS, Fire, and Police response zones. 


 Continued updating of Enterprise Geodatabase and ArcGIS Server. 


 Continued coordination with GIS consultant on the Land Records and EMS projects. 


 Continued development and support of County GIS Consortium efforts. 


 Continued updating and editing of county Road Centerline database. 


 Continued GIS technical software support to IT and GIS staff at Board of Assessment. 


 Continued support of County hosted GIS web server connection and interface. 


 Provided GIS technical support to Emergency Communication staff. 


 Continued technical support for MapJazz GIS Web Viewer. 


 Continued editing of county-wide data layers using GIS Data Reviewer tool. 


 Continued project management support to IT staff integrating new GIS hardware. 


 Continued field verification and identification of 911 common area sites throughout the county. 


 Continued upgrade of county GIS Enterprise hardware, software, and applications with 
GeographIT and county GIS staff. 


 Met with GeographIT to discuss Phase 3 GIS and CAD Geo-File EMS Block Boundary 
Maintenance Procedures. 


 Attended DVRPC event at Burlington County College dealing with the use of Mobile LIDAR 
collection and tools in ARCGIS 10.1. 


 Attended the 85th meeting of the Information Resources Exchange Group (IREG) at DVRPC. 


 Met with GeographIT staff to review the county GIS upgrades as well as existing on-going 
projects and future county GIS initiatives. 


 
GIS Map Production 


 Produced presentation maps for Environmental and Preservation units. 
 
GIS Transportation 


 Continued development of Region-wide GIS Transportation initiative. 
 
















































































































































































































































































































































































 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
MEETING 


 
Wednesday, February 6, 2013 


2:00 P.M. 
 


Robert H. Grunmeier Room 
1260 Almshouse Road 
Doylestown, PA 18901 


 
 


 


AGENDA 
 
 


 
1. Call to Order 


 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 


 
3. Approval of Minutes of January 2, 2013 


 
4. Executive Director’s Report 


 
5. Municipal Economic Development Initiative 


- Continuation of Presentations: Yardley and Langhorne boroughs 
 
6. 2012 Annual Report of Review Activity 


 
7. Act 247 Reviews 


 
8. Old Business 


- Off-site Board Meetings 


- Meeting at Montgomery County Planning Commission 
 


9. New Business 
 
10. Public Comment  
 
11. Adjournment 


 
 


 
Please remember to contact us at 


215-345-3400 if you cannot attend. Thank you. 
 


AGENDA SUBJECT TO CHANGE PRIOR TO MEETING  







1 


 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Minutes of Meeting 


January 2, 2013 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: James J. Dowling; Raymond (Skip) W. Goodnoe; Darrin M. Hoffman; Ed 


Kisselback, Jr.; David R. Nyman; Robert M. Pellegrino; Carol A. Pierce; 
Walter Wydro 
 


STAFF PRESENT: 
 


Charles T. McIlhinney; Lynn T. Bush; Timothy A. Koehler; David P. 
Johnson; Donna W. Byers; Maureen Wheatley 
 


GUESTS: James McGinnis, Reporter  


 
CALL TO ORDER: Mr. Kisselback called the meeting to order at 2:05 PM with a moment of silence 


and the pledge of allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF DECEMBER 5, 2012: Upon motion of Mr. Wydro, 


seconded by Mr. Goodnoe, with the vote being 8-0 the minutes of the December 5, 2012 
meeting were approved.  
 


EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
Ms. Bush thanked Mr. Kisselback, Mr. Cullen, and Mr. McIlhinney for contributing to the staff 
holiday luncheon. 
 
Ms. Bush said she attended a Dublin Borough Vision Plan meeting. Dublin Borough hired a 
consultant to do visioning for them. The meeting was well attended and received by community 
members. 
 
Ms. Bush announced the County adopted a 2013 budget and funds have been allocated to the Bucks 
County Municipal Economic Development Initiative.  
 
Ms. Bush attended the annual meeting of the Delaware Valley Regional Planning Commission. The 
topic of the meeting was transportation funding. Ms. Bush said a 2011 report from the 
Transportation Funding Commission stated transportation needs would require new sources of 
funding. Although recommendations were provided in the report, nothing happened in 2012. Ms. 
Bush briefly highlighted reasons for the decline of transportation funds. Ms. Bush said one-half of 
SEPTA’s revenues are sourced from transportation funding. SEPTA has purchased new hybrid 
buses and they continue to work on the Levittown Train Station. 


 
MUNICIPAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVE 
Ms. Bush provided an overview of New Britain Borough, highlighting current land use and zoning. 
The borough has residential areas off the main road, Butler Avenue (formerly Route 202), as well as 
mixed industrial, commercial, and institutional uses. Population is 3,150. Ms. Bush said the borough 
has formed an economic development committee. 
 
Ms. Bush pointed out New Britain Borough’s assets that include Delaware Valley College, an ample 
employment base, borough stability, train station, preservation of open space, historical buildings, 
the opening of the 202 Parkway reducing traffic on Butler Avenue, and bike paths. 
 







2 


 


The issues Ms. Bush addressed include the borough’s relationship with the college, lack of cohesive 
pattern with commercial uses, no pedestrian ways on the main road, an outdated shopping center 
that is not thriving, no housing for college students, the 7-acre John Knoll property no longer in use, 
concerns for viability of business, and distressed properties – buildings in floodplain along 
Neshaminy Creek and former dry cleaning business on a contaminated site. 
 
Board discussion focused on:   


 Relationship/connectivity with the college and borough regarding pedestrian walkways, housing, 
and potential for commercial business; 


 Contacting business owner Bill Vandergrift and ask what prompted him to stay in the borough 
and make improvements; 


 Butler Avenue streetscape and lack of intersection turn lanes that contribute to traffic jams; 


 Potential for Knoll property development; 


 Appealing commercial development (e.g. American Credit Union); 


 Borough reaching out to businesses (surveys/meetings); 


 Encourage development of pedestrian walkways and engage college students in a study; 


 Possibility of moving toward commercial village such as Newtown Borough. 
 
OUTLOOK FOR 2013 
Ms. Bush handed the board the Bucks County Planning Commission Planning Program for 2013. Ms. Bush 
summarized projects and goals for County comprehensive planning, environmental planning, the 
Municipal Economic Development Initiative, the Commissioners’ Economic Development Council, 
geographic information systems, open space and agricultural land preservation, municipal planning 
assistance, bridges, transportation, regional projects, public information, and plan reviews. Mr. 
Koehler added that it may be time to update the continuum. 
 
ACT 247 REVIEWS 
The reviews of January 2, 2013 were mailed to the board for their review prior to the meeting. On 
motion of Mr. Nyman, seconded by Mr. Wydro, the board approved the January 2, 2013 Act 247 
reviews. There were no abstentions. 


 
REPORT OF THE NOMINATING COMMITTEE AND ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
Mr. McIlhinney instructed the board on the procedure for electing officers. 
 
Mr. Kisselback requested the report of the Nominating Committee. On behalf of the Nominating 
Committee, Mr. Goodnoe nominated Robert Pellegrino as Chairman, David Nyman as Vice 
Chairman, and Walter Wydro as Secretary for 2013. Mr. Kisselback asked if there were any 
nominations from the floor. Having no further nominations, Mr. Hoffman made a motion, 
seconded by Ms. Pierce to close the nominations. Mr. Kisselback called for a vote for the election of 
the officers. The board voted unanimously to elect Robert Pellegrino as Chairman, David Nyman as 
Vice Chairman, and Walter Wydro as secretary. 
 
Mr. Kisselback turned the meeting over to Mr. Pellegrino as Chairman. 


 
ADJOURNMENT: Mr. Nyman made a motion, seconded by Ms. Pierce that the meeting be 


adjourned at 2:55 PM. 
 


Submitted by:  
Donna Byers, Staff Secretary 


  







3 


 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Staff Report 
January 2013 


 


PLANNING SERVICES 
 
COMMUNITY PLANNING 
 


 Meeting Attendance—Attended the regular planning commission meetings of Sellersville and 
Perkasie boroughs, Buckingham Township, and the Quakertown Area Planning Committee. 


 Bristol Borough—Generated market reports and demographic information for use in the 
Borough’s economic development efforts. 


 New Britain Borough—Met with the New Britain Borough Community & Business 
Committee to discuss organizing and facilitating a meeting with residents to discuss economic 
development and the future of the Borough. The community meeting will be held on March 5th. 


 Langhorne Borough Comprehensive Plan—Continued work on draft chapters related to the 
comprehensive plan.  


 Perkasie Borough Comprehensive Plan—Conducted a meeting with the Borough’s 
Comprehensive Plan Committee to discuss community facilities and services and transportation 
and circulation sections of the plan. Solicited comments and questions from the committee and 
public attendees. Continued data collection and draft narrative production of the plan. 


 Perkasie Borough Zoning Ordinance Update—The Borough continues to move forward 
with the adoption process. The public hearing is scheduled for Borough Council’s meeting on 
February 19, 2013. 


 Northampton Township—Continued to develop and revise drafts for Land Use tasks. 
Summarized survey results from the business survey and town hall meeting. Began to develop 
Vision and Goal statements for the plan document. Held an internal meeting to discuss possible 
transportation-land use concepts to explore in analysis and implementation chapters.  


 Quakertown Borough—Prepared a final draft of the Pedestrian-Oriented, Mixed-Use Overlay 
district regulations for review by the Quakertown Borough Planning Commission.  


 New Hope Borough—Completed preparing revisions to a draft subdivision and land 
development ordinance and submitted to borough officials for review. 


 Newtown Area Joint Municipal Zoning Ordinance—Completed a review of the Joint 
Municipal Zoning Ordinance regarding inconsistencies between the district regulations and the 
Table of Use Regulations. Prepared a summary of issues to be discussed by the Joint Zoning 
Council. 


 Solebury Township Comprehensive Plan—Prepared draft press release of survey results and 
continued preparation of draft chapters for the plan update.  


 Springfield Township—Evaluating a potential project requested by the Township that would 
analyze the development potential of the central business district using on-lot and community 
subsurface and land application wastewater systems. 


 Tinicum Township Comprehensive Plan—Held initial meeting with the Township to discuss 
work program, products, and project goals, including timelines and draft responsibilities.  


 Yardley Borough—Continued field work to obtain information on parking within the 
downtown area of the Borough. Information gathered includes: determining the number of on-
street and off-street spaces; identifying what spaces are publicly/privately owned; identification 







4 


 


of land uses associated with various privately-owned spaces; and noting the number and 
locations of accessible spaces. Other information related to parking lot lighting, directional 
signage as well as signage related to parking restrictions, and pedestrian connectibility also was 
noted. Summarized the information that was gathered for Borough Council discussion. 


 
Bucks County Comprehensive Plan 


 Continued work on research and writing of a report on Transit Oriented Design. Commencing 
station evaluation. 
 


Planning Information and Agency Coordination 


 Provided information to the public on various topics including, but not limited to, development 
proposals, review letters, local zoning and municipal regulations. 


 Attended Bucks County Homeless Continuum of Care meetings. 


 Reviewed Act 14, 67, 68 NPDES permit applications. 


 Continued production of census and American Community Survey datasheets. 


 Reviewed revised draft of the Bucks County Analysis of Impediments report on fair housing. 


 Participated in an APA webinar that focused on Zoning for Small-Scale Businesses. The 
presentation included options for removing regulatory barriers, simplifying mixed use 
regulations, and addressing the needs of new types of emerging businesses.  


 Participated in a webinar addressing Non-Retail Uses in Retail Spaces hosted by Vibrant Streets. 
The presentation discussed the hierarchy of retail tenancy and ways non-retail businesses can 
complement and enhance the surrounding retail environment. 


 Prepared the draft 2012 Annual Report of Review Activity. 
 


Act 247 and 537 Review Activity 


 15 Subdivision and Land Development Proposals 


 1 Sketch Plans 


 6 Municipals 


 2 Sewage Facility Planning Modules  
 


ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING 
 
Neshaminy Watershed Sediment Reduction Study (FY2012 CZM-funded project). 


 Conducted Pre-submission Information Meeting for consultants interested in submitting a 
Qualifications Statement. 


 Compiled questions comments and prepared answers and BCPC responses which were 
forwarded to engineers and consultants having attended the pre-submission meeting. 


 Review of existing TMDL plans and assessments. 


 Began identifying existing information to be used in Plan development.  
 


Stormwater and Flood Management Planning 


 Responded to municipal engineer’s inquiries regarding stormwater management.  


 Discussed MS4/TMDL requirements with DEP staff. 


 Review of existing stormwater management plans and PADEP policy changes in Act 167 
planning. 


 Researched potential to submit a Five Star & Urban Waters Restoration Program 2013 Request 
for Proposals. 







5 


 


Bucks County Open Space & Greenway Plan 


 Finalized budget for Upper Neshaminy Creek Trail Feasibility Study through DVRPC. 


 Conducted internal steering committee meeting to discuss study contents, public outreach 
process, development of steering committees, and methodology used to identify opportunities 
and constraints for the trail feasibility studies.    


 Continued research on parcel ownership and existing easements for parcels in the two project 
study areas. 


 Met with Montgomery County Planning Commission and Bob Thomas of Campbell-Thomas 
Architects to discuss trail feasibility planning. 
 


Recycling and Solid Waste 


 Worked on HHW events sites selection for 2013. 


 Preparing annual recycling survey. 


 Working on reviewing electronic recycling RFP in conjunction with Montgomery County. 


 Researching approaches to addressing various issues around the recent passage of PA electronics 
recycling legislation. 


 
TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM 
 
General Transportation Planning 


 Continued composing various sections of Route 202 Bicycle Lane Project Report. Continued 
developing base mapping information. 


 Continued developing base information for transportation section of Northampton/Holland 
Study. Continued developing digitally enhanced photographs. Attended Study Status Meeting. 
Began developing Study Tasks 4 through 6.  


 Completed developing digitally enhanced photographs for Perkasie Comprehensive Plan. 
Provided draft transportation section to project manager. Presented draft Transportation section 
to Perkasie Borough Planning Commission. Provided follow-up information to Borough 
Consultant regarding potential use of SEPTA rail line. 


 Presented draft Bicycle Master Plan to Board of County Commissioners and received approval 
from board for same. Conducted status meeting with Bicycle Task Force Board Chairman. 
Presented Bicycle Master Plan to Bucks County Recreational Council. 


 Added 3 bridges to PennDOT’s LPN capital assessment management system. 
 


Public Transportation 


 Reviewed SEPTA Board Meeting Materials. 


 Continued developing base information for SEPTA Visibility Enhancement Study. Processed 
contract information. 


 Reviewed proposed TMA Bucks’ work program for FY 2014. 


 Attended meeting to discuss potential improvements to SEPTA Route 55 Bus Route. 


 Coordinated with DVRPC regarding Neshaminy Mall Transit Center Study. 
 


Transportation Assistance to Planning Staff 


 Discussed transportation related issues with staff for subdivision and land development reviews. 


 Attended Review Design Meeting to discuss land development in Newtown Township. 
 
  







6 


 


Transportation Improvement Program 


 Provided Transportation Improvement Program information to various individuals and 
agencies. 


 
Delaware Valley Regional Planning Commission (DVRPC)  


 Reviewed Job Access Reverse Commute applications and provided scores to DVRPC. 


 Attended DVRPC Long Range Planning Committee Meeting. 


 Attended DVRPC Regional Technical Committee Meeting. 


 Participated in teleconference for Household Travel Survey Project. 


 Processed contract invoicing for Supportive Regional Highway Planning Program and Transit 
Support Program. 


 
Geographic Information Systems (GIS) 


 Continued development of County-Wide Enterprise GIS program. 


 Continued database development of site addresses and EMS, Fire, and Police response zones. 


 Continued updating of Enterprise Geodatabase and ArcGIS Server. 


 Continued coordination with GIS consultant on the Land Records and EMS projects. 


 Continued development and support of County GIS Consortium efforts. 


 Continued updating and editing of county Road Centerline database. 


 Continued GIS technical software support to IT and GIS staff at Board of Assessment. 


 Continued support of County hosted GIS web server connection and interface. 


 Provided GIS technical support to Emergency Communication staff. 


 Continued technical support for MapJazz GIS Web Viewer. 


 Continued editing of county-wide data layers using GIS Data Reviewer tool. 


 Continued upgrade of county GIS Enterprise hardware, software, and applications with 
GeographIT and county GIS staff. 


 County GIS and Emergency Communication staff attended EMS Block training with 
GeographIT. 


 Attend Health Department Mobile GIS hardware and software requirements meeting. 


 Attended staff meeting on Land Assessment application for Springfield Township. 


 Met with ESRI business representative to discuss acquisition of ArcGIS online cloud based 
storage subscription for County GIS. 


 Provided 2010 U.S. Census data to Upper Makefield Township EMA Coordinator. 


 Staff provided support and verification of local county parks for PA DCNR mapping project 
using online viewer. 


 Provided data updates requested by Springfield and Northampton townships. 
 


GIS Map Production 


 Produced presentation maps for Environmental and Preservation units. 
 
GIS Transportation 


 Continued development of Region-wide GIS Transportation initiative. 
  







7 


 


BUCKS COUNTY MUNICIPAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVE 
SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS 
 


 
DATE MUNICIPALITY/LOCATION 
 
February 6 Bristol Borough Hall 
7:00 pm  Economic Development Committee 
 
February 13 Perkasie Borough Hall 
7:00 pm Joint meeting on Economic Development with Borough Council, Planning 


Commission, Perkasie Olde Towne Association, Pennridge Chamber of 
Commerce, and Representatives from Sellersville Borough 


 
March 5 New Britain Borough Hall 
7:30 pm Public Community Meeting 


 
 








































































































































































































































































































































 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
MEETING 


 
Wednesday, March 6, 2013 


2:00 P.M. 
 


Robert H. Grunmeier Room 
1260 Almshouse Road 
Doylestown, PA 18901 


 
 


 


AGENDA 
 
 


 
1. Call to Order 


 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 


 
3. Approval of Minutes of February 6, 2013 


 
4. Executive Director’s Report 


 
5. Municipal Economic Development Initiative Update 


 
6. Act 247 Reviews 


 
7. Old Business 


- Off-site Board Meetings 


- Meeting at Montgomery County Planning Commission 
 


8. New Business 
 
9. Public Comment  
 
10. Adjournment 


 
 


 
Please remember to contact us at 


215-345-3400 if you cannot attend. Thank you. 
 


AGENDA SUBJECT TO CHANGE PRIOR TO MEETING 
 
  







2 


 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Minutes of Meeting 


February 6, 2013 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Joseph A. Cullen, Jr.; Raymond (Skip) W. Goodnoe; Ed Kisselback, Jr.; 


David R. Nyman; Robert M. Pellegrino; Carol A. Pierce 
 


STAFF PRESENT: 
 
 


Charles T. McIlhinney; Lynn T. Bush; Timothy A. Koehler; David P. 
Johnson; Donna W. Byers; Lisa M. Wolff; Maureen Wheatley; Michael A. 
Roedig; Catherine H. Gauthier 
 


GUESTS: James McGinnis, Reporter  
 


 
1. CALL TO ORDER 


Mr. Pellegrino called the meeting to order at 2:05 PM. 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 


All rose for the pledge of allegiance. 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF JANUARY 2, 2013 


Upon motion of Mr. Nyman, seconded by Ms. Pierce, with the vote being 6-0 the motion 
carried to approve the minutes of the January 2, 2013 meeting. 
 


4. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT:  
Ms. Bush updated the board on the Bucks County Economic Development Initiative. To date, 
15 municipalities have signed up for the Initiative. Ms. Bush said staff will be meeting with 
Lower Southampton next week on the Brownsville Road corridor. Marketing data is being 
researched for marketing trends. 
 
Ms. Bush highlighted some of Governor Corbett’s budget items proposed earlier this month 
that include increasing Pennsylvania driver license renewals from 4 to 6 years; eliminating vehicle 
registration stickers on license plates; and lifting the cap on the Oil Company Franchise  
Tax which would increase funds available for road/bridge repairs. The board discussed possible 
impacts to municipalities and transit if the cap is lifted on the tax. 
 


5. MUNICIPAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVE 
 
Yardley Borough 
Planner, Lisa Wolff, provided an overview of Yardley Borough in a PowerPoint presentation. 
Ms. Wolff highlighted the purpose of community discussion, and pointed out the boroughs 
special attributes that included: natural and historic character, residential neighborhoods, 
business/employment, open space and recreation opportunities, transportation/mobility, 
community events, current planning efforts and landmark town projects. Ms. Wolff identified 
the strengths of the municipality, particularly the quaintness of the town, diversity of business, 
canal towpath, relative affordability of housing, strong organization, and safety of the town. 
Among the challenges identified were the need for shared parking, connectivity and walkability, 
limited access to the river and canal, large truck traffic, limited signage, increase use of historic 
resources and arts community, and maintenance improvements. 
 







3 


 


Ms. Wolff provided the board with the results of a parking study survey, and opened the floor 
for discussion on whether the borough can encourage businesses to share their parking areas 
and how the borough can improve connectivity and walkability. 
 
Ms. Bush commended Ms. Wolff on her great overview. 
 
Board discussion focused on:   


 The prospect of the borough renting business parking spaces during off hours; 


 Associated liability with renting business parking spaces; 


 Financial incentive of adding parking meters to business parking spaces; 


 Council relationship with and possibility of approaching landowners concerning parking; 


 Popular and well received opening of The Vault establishment and the parking demands it 
has created; 


 Cross-easements to improve connectivity, associated repairs, and insurance coverage; and 


 Use Doylestown Borough as a model in leasing parking spaces. 
 


Mr. Pellegrino polled the board for further questions/discussion. 
 


Langhorne Borough 
Planner, Catherine Cauthier, provided an overview of Langhorne Borough in a PowerPoint 
presentation. Ms. Gauthier highlighted what makes Langhorne Borough special: a strong 
community-base, attractive streetscape, a walkable/attractive pedestrian area with some housing 
conversion, historic attributes, and a quaint small town character. In identifying weaknesses of 
the borough, Ms. Gauthier suggested the borough may benefit from no permissions of 
residential uses in the town core, a more forward concept for the Pine Watson Shopping Center, 
and become more community oriented to steer their image away from Sesame Place. Ms. 
Gauthier said the borough contains a great deal of nonprofit organizations that do not generate 
income for the borough and there is no anchored draw to the municipality; better business to fill 
commercial vacancies in the town center as well as Routes 413 and 213 would help to support 
the community. Unlike Yardley Borough, Ms. Gauthier said available parking is not an issue. A 
new business did relocate to the corner of Pine and Maple and has become popular. 
 
Ms. Pierce asked how large the borough is; Ms. Gauthier responded one mile. Ms. Pierce 
commented that in looking at the borough’s website she noticed a farm has been preserved. Ms. 
Gauthier said that a farm was preserved, and the borough also has pocket parks, playgrounds 
and a nice garden at the Peace Center. If the municipality preserves more open space the 
property will be taken off the tax rolls. 
 
Ms. Gauthier asked the board for their feedback. 
 
Board discussion focused on:   


 Added emphasis placed on the historic district; 


 Attract small businesses such as artists, antiques shops, coffee shops, rather than establish 
a ―magnet‖ store due to competition in the surrounding area; 


 Develop a pleasing streetscape and sidewalk in front of the Pine Watson Shopping Center 
to make more welcoming; 


 Office-type uses rather than all commercial to maximize; 


 Main streetscape project with lighting and street trees; 


 Relax zoning to encourage economic development; 


 Connectivity of parking areas; 







4 


 


 Funding for a main street manager; and 


 Relationships/priorities between business associations and council. 
 


Mr. Pellegrino polled the board for further discussion. 
 
6. 2012 ANNUAL REPORT OF REVIEW ACTIVITY 


Mr. Roedig gave a PowerPoint presentation and overview on the 2012 Annual Report of Review 
Activity. The report is based on reviews completed by BCPC staff in 2012. Mr. Roedig said the 
255 total reviews conducted for proposals submitted to the BCPC in 2012 is the second lowest 


number of reviews in 10 years. Mr. Roedig highlighted development trends and proposals and 
discussed comparative results with previous years’ development in Bucks County. There was a 
slight increase in major and sketch reviews, while a slight reduction in minor and municipal 
reviews. Land impacted by development was 369 acres which is the lowest amount since 
recording such data and is 23 acres less than recorded in 2011. The 2012 number of proposed 
residential units (487) is a 17 percent decrease from last year’s 588 units; and for the second year 
in a row, there were no development proposals for age-qualified housing. The amount of 
proposed nonresidential area (1.2 million square feet) is a decrease of 56 percent from the 
amount reviewed in 2011. For the second year in a row Lower Bucks communities accounted 
for the majority of total proposed nonresidential development in the county (37 percent). 
Industrial development made up most of the proposed development with 47 percent of 
proposed nonresidential space; 62 percent of which was located in upper Bucks County and 
nearly 90 percent of this was associated with a warehouse facility proposed in Milford Township.  
 
Mr. Pellegrino polled the board for questions. Mr. Nyman thanked Mr. Roedig for a wonderful 
job done. 
 


7. ACT 247 REVIEWS 
The reviews of February 6, 2013 were mailed to the board for their review prior to the meeting; 
BCPC review #7-13-1 (Chalfont Borough proposal to amend the zoning ordinance – sale of 
motor fuel, outside eating) was added to the packet at the meeting. Upon motion of Mr. Cullen, 
seconded by Mr. Nyman, the motion carried to approve the February 6, 2013 Act 247 reviews 
and BCPC review #7-13-1. There were no abstentions. 
 


8. OLD BUSINESS 
 


Off-site Board Meetings/Meeting at Montgomery County Planning Commission – Ms. Bush requested input 
from the board for potential 2013 meeting locations prior to the meeting. Ms. Bush will schedule 
a meet and greet with the Montgomery County Planning Commission and an offsite BCPC 
meeting at the Washington Crossing Visitor Center. 
 


9. NEW BUSINESS 
There was no new business. 
 


10. PUBLIC COMMENT 
There was no public comment. 
 


11. ADJOURNMENT: Upon motion of Mr. Goodnoe, seconded by Ms. Pierce the motion carried to 
adjourn the meeting at 3:30 PM. 


 
Submitted by:  
Donna Byers, Staff Secretary  







5 


 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Executive Director’s Report 


February 2013 
 
 


Metropolitan Caucus – Bucks County hosted the elected officials from the five-county area at 


Pen Ryn on February 14. The main topic was the Governor’s proposal for transportation 


funding, which the group unanimously felt was insufficient to meet our region’s needs and did 


not tap into the potential revenue sources that the Governor’s Advisory Committee on 


Transportation Funding had recommended.  


 


Economic Development – Commissioner Loughery announced his program (presentation is 


included in your packet) at the Commissioners’ meeting on February 20. It received good press 


when he presented it to the Lower Bucks Chamber of Commerce on February 26 (news clipping 


included). We are working on the mechanics of shifting various loan funds in order to centralize 


the loans at the Bucks County Industrial Development Authority, in accordance with his plan. 


 


On the municipal front, we continue to expand the participation and time spent on this 


program. It’s very exciting, well-received, and challenging. 


 


Trails Studies – We have launched our trail feasibility studies for the Neshaminy Creek and for 


the Mill Creek/Queen Anne Creek. We have assembled steering committees of local interest 


groups and stakeholders and had two successful kick-off meetings this week. 


 


Sediment Reduction Studies – Our grant to do work on reducing sediment pollution in the 


Neshaminy Creek is also underway, with the solicitation of consultants to assist with this. This 


will help municipalities meet their state-mandated water quality requirements for run-off. 


  







6 


 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Staff Report 


February 2013 
 


PLANNING SERVICES 
 
COMMUNITY PLANNING 
 


 Meeting Attendance—Attended regular planning commission meetings of Sellersville Borough 
and Buckingham and Milford townships.  


 Bristol Borough—Generated market reports and demographic information for use in the 
Borough’s economic development efforts. 


 New Britain Borough—Met with the New Britain Borough Community & Business 
Committee to discuss organizing and facilitating a meeting with residents to address economic 
development and the future of the Borough. Shared materials with the committee to be used for 
the resident meeting including a draft presentation, display boards, and resident questionnaire. 
The community meeting will be held on March 5th. 


 Langhorne Borough Comprehensive Plan—Continued work on draft chapters related to the 
comprehensive plan.  


 Perkasie Borough Comprehensive Plan—Along with Perkasie’s Economic Development 
Director, we conducted a joint Economic Development Workshop with borough officials, 
members of the Perkasie Olde Towne Association, Pennridge Chamber of Commerce, 
representatives from Sellersville Borough, and other interested residents and business owners. 
Comments and questions were solicited from attendees. At the conclusion of the workshop, a 
consensus was reached in establishing a firm community economic vision in moving forward in 
the completion of the plan. Continued data collection and draft narrative production of the plan. 


 Perkasie Borough Zoning Ordinance Update—Made a presentation on the zoning 
ordinance update to Borough Council at their public hearing on February 19, 2013. Council 
unanimously adopted the zoning ordinance. 


 Northampton Township—Developed Vision and Goal statements for the plan document. 
Presented statements to the Northampton Township Planning Commission at an official 
meeting for approval. Held a meeting with McMahon Associates to discuss transportation 
improvements to improve circulation patterns. 


 Quakertown Borough—The Pedestrian-Oriented, Mixed-Use Overlay district regulations were 
adopted by Borough Council.  


 New Hope Borough—Pending results of borough review of the draft subdivision and land 
development ordinance. 


> Solebury Township Comprehensive Plan—Continued preparation of draft chapters for the 
plan update.  


 Tinicum Township Comprehensive Plan—Began drafts on regional demographics. Began 
revising draft resident survey.  


 Yardley Borough—Began researching how other boroughs have dealt with parking issues, such 
as encouraging and coordinating shared parking arrangements and how liability and maintenance 
issues with shared parking arrangements have been addressed. 
 


Bucks County Comprehensive Plan 


 Continued work on research and writing of a report on Transit Oriented Design. Continued 
station evaluation. 
 







7 


 


Planning Information and Agency Coordination 


 Provided information to the public on various topics including, but not limited to, development 
proposals, review letters, local zoning and municipal regulations. 


 Attended Bucks County Homeless Continuum of Care meetings. 


 Reviewed Act 14, 67, 68 NPDES permit applications. 


 Continued production of census and American Community Survey datasheets. 


 Provided information to the Bucks County Department of Business and Community 
Development for the department’s update to the county’s HUD Action Plan. 


 Attended the Bowman’s Hill Wildflower Preserve’s Land Ethics Symposium. The Bucks County 
Office of Commissioners co-sponsored this seminar. Topics included wetland mitigation 
banking: the private sector’s role in ecosystem restoration and land stewardship, native plant 
selection, and designing a regenerative landscape for a solar, net positive energy home. 


 
Act 247 and 537 Review Activity 


 9 Subdivision and Land Development Proposals 


 1 Sketch Plans 


 6 Municipals 


 2 Sewage Facility Planning Modules 


 2 Traffic Impact Studies 
 


ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING 
 
Neshaminy Watershed Sediment Reduction Study (FY2012 CZM-funded project). 


 Created  ranking system to use when reviewing qualifications statements. 


 Reviewed prospective consultant Qualifications Statements. 


 Ranked qualifications statements and coordinated interview times/procedures with consultants 
and staff. 


 Prepared consultant interview sheets with questions. 


 Prepared contract, budget sheet, scope of work to be included with grant award packet. 
 


Stormwater and Flood Management Planning 


 Responded to municipal engineer’s inquiries regarding stormwater management and MS4. 


 Reviewed policy and procedures regarding MS4 and TMDL with DEP staff. 


 Researched grant opportunities. 


 Answered resident questions pertaining to floodplains, stormwater management and 
conservation easements. 


 
Bucks County Open Space & Greenway Plan 


 Finalized budget for Upper Neshaminy Creek Trail Feasibility Study through DVRPC. 


 Conducted initial steering committee meetings to discuss background, project scope, goals and 
objectives, study framework, progress to date, public participation plan, and field survey work.    


 Continued research on parcel ownership and existing easements for parcels in the two project 
study areas. 


 Obtained agreement to pursue additional grant funding through DVRPC Regional Trails 
Program to complete feasibility studies along remaining portion of the Neshaminy Creek 
extending from Core Creek to Bensalem Township line.   
 







8 


 


Recycling and Solid Waste 


 Met with regional recycling coordinators at monthly meeting. 


 Conducting annual recycling survey. 


 Working on HHW events sites selection for 2013. 


 Awarding electronic recycling RFP in conjunction with Montgomery County. 


 Awarding HHW contract per the 5 County RFP and IGA. 
 


TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM 


 
General Transportation Planning 


 Continued composing various sections of Route 202 Bicycle Lane Project Report. Continued 
developing base mapping information. 


 Continued developing base information for transportation section of Northampton/Holland 
Study. Continued developing digitally enhanced photographs. Attended Visioning Meeting with 
Northampton Township Planning Commission. Continued developing Study Tasks 4 through 6. 
Attended meeting with township manager and transportation engineer to discuss proposed 
roadway realignments. 


 Provided responses to proposed revisions to Perkasie Borough Transportation Section of 
Comprehensive Plan. Developed computer-designs graphics related to marketing banners. 


 Reviewed Solebury Township Transportation Section of Comprehensive Plan. 


 Attended Neshaminy Crossing East Coast Greenway Meeting. 


 Attended Bucks County Incident Management Committee Meeting. 
   
Public Transportation 


 Reviewed SEPTA Board Meeting Materials. 


 Performed site visit of Doylestown Line for SEPTA Rail Station Visibility Enhancement Study. 
Developed computer-enhanced images for project report. 


 Attended meeting with DVRPC regarding Neshaminy Mall Transit Center Study. 


 Attended TMA Bucks Board Meeting. 
 
Transportation Assistance to Planning Staff 


 Discussed transportation related issues with staff for subdivision and land development reviews. 


 Attended review design meeting to discuss land development in Lower Southampton Township. 
  
Transportation Improvement Program 


 Provided Transportation Improvement Program information to various individuals and 
agencies. 


 
Delaware Valley Regional Planning Commission (DVRPC)  


 Reviewed Job Access Reverse Commute applications and provided approval of list to DVRPC. 
Attended teleconference to discuss project rankings. 


 Attended DVRPC Long Range Planning Committee Meeting. 


 Attended DVRPC Regional Technical Committee Meeting. 


 Attended meeting with DVRPC staff to discuss Urban Boundary revisions. 
 
Geographic Information Systems (GIS) 


 Continued development of County-Wide Enterprise GIS program. 







9 


 


 Continued database development of site addresses and EMS, Fire, and Police response zones. 


 Continued updating of Enterprise Geodatabase and ArcGIS Server. 


 Continued coordination with GIS consultant on the Land Records and EMS projects. 


 Continued development and support of County GIS Consortium efforts. 


 Continued updating and editing of county Road Centerline database. 


 Continued GIS technical software support to IT and GIS staff at Board of Assessment. 


 Continued support of County hosted GIS web server connection and interface. 


 Provided GIS technical support to Emergency Communication staff. 


 Continued technical support for MapJazz GIS Web Viewer. 


 Continued editing of county-wide data layers using GIS Data Reviewer tool. 


 Continued upgrade of county GIS Enterprise hardware, software, and applications with 
GeographIT and county GIS staff. 


 Attended Health Department Mobile GIS application meeting. 


 Attended GIS and CAD Geofile EMS Block Maintenance Procedures meeting. 


 Met with MH/DP staff to discuss development of a GIS web viewer application. 


 Provided updated data sets to GIS Consortium member Warminster Township. 


 Began editing procedures on land base parcel annotation features. 


 Re-created map services for Board of Assessment IASWORLD online application viewer. 
 
GIS Map Production 


 Produced presentation maps for Community, Environmental and Preservation Planning units. 
 
GIS Transportation 


 Continued development of Region-wide GIS Transportation initiative. 
  







10 


 


BUCKS COUNTY MUNICIPAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVE 
Municipalities in Program 
February 27, 2013 
 
 


Municipality Type of Assistance 


Bensalem Work jointly with Lower Southampton on Brownsville Road concept 
plan. Development or riverfront area. 


Bristol Borough Working with Borough’s economic development committee on Mill 
Street and general borough upgrades through their ―Raising the Bar‖ 
initiative.  


Buckingham Farming; Pennsylvania Biotechnology Center are focuses. 


Chalfont  


Dublin Part of their steering committee on revitalization 


East Rockhill Township visions 


Langhorne Updating master plan – focus on town center issues 


Lower Makefield Updating their comprehensive plan with focus on economic issues – 
older shopping centers; Edgewood Village; filling Class A office 
space  


Lower Southampton Study and concept plan for Brownsville Road – Street Road to 
Bristol Road 


Middletown  


New Britain Borough  Working with their economic development committee - next event is 
a town hall meeting on March 5 


New Hope Standards for riverfront development 


Northampton Working on Holland area 


Perkasie Updating their plan for the borough and specifically for the town 
center 


Plumstead  Route 611 corridor 


Riegelsville  


Sellersville  


Solebury Villages; river businesses and tourism 


Springfield Growth capacity of their industrial/commercial district, looking at 
constraints 


Tinicum Villages; river businesses and tourism 


Upper Southampton  Standards for industrial area 


Warrington Route 611 corridor 


West Rockhill Study of area around Grand View Hospital and village of Almont 


Yardley Downtown/Main Street – parking, cooperation of merchants 


 







 


A New Direction for Bucks County  
Economic Development Initiatives 
 


February 2013 











Timeline Of Events and Actions 
 February 2009 – County Economic Development Advisory Board 


(EDAB)convenes 
 19 member board established  
 Series of year-long meetings throughout county to identify ways to 


better improve economic development through “centralization & 
coordination” 


 January 2010 – Commissioners adopt recommendations of EDAB 
 July 2010 –EDAB board reconvened to discuss next steps 
 April 2011 – past EDAB board members met to review & discuss 


implementation steps 
 July 2011 – Commissioner’s establish Economic Development Council 


(CEDC) to oversee implementation of recommendations; a Leadership 
board of existing agencies and organizations convenes to identify 
action steps for implementation 


 July 2011 to present – CEDC and Leadership board meet periodically 
to implement action steps & identify new initiatives 


2 







EDAB Recommendations 
 Centralize the Economic Development Function 


 Idea of “one-stop-shop” 


 Adopt Guiding Principles of Economic Development 
 Be strategic; target growth industries; focus on quality of life 


 Make Better Use of Existing Economic Development Resources 
 Engage all county resources through better communication and 


coordination 


 Help Existing Businesses 
 Engage existing businesses; explore new initiatives to help businesses 


 Engage Municipal Partners 
 Improve outreach to 54 municipalities; increase BCPC involvement in 


economic development; strengthen partnerships  


 Workforce Development 
 Better  coordination between workforce development programs and 


economic development mission 


3 







Other EDAB Recommendations 
 Creation of 7 – 10 member Economic Development Board 


 Established CEDC – 13 members 
 Met 4x in 2012/13 


 Establish a Leadership Cabinet of existing agencies and 
organizations 
 Established Leadership ex-officio group: BCIDA, BCEDC, BCRDA, 


Community & Business Development office, Chambers, Townships 
& Boroughs officials; BCWIB, Tourism 
 Met multiple times 2012/13  to establish action-oriented steps and new 


initiatives in alignment with EDAB recommendations & CEDC 


 Creation of a County Economic Development officer as 
‘single point of contact’ 
 Did not create new position 
 Evaluated current county and non-county personnel in existing 


agencies in order to achieve same goal 
 


4 







Action Steps & Progress 
 Adopt Guiding Principles of Economic 


Development 


 CEDC’s role was not to come up with new 
recommendations, but oversee the actual plans and 
steps to implement the recommendations 


 Board of Directors; “eyes & ears”; hold Commissioners 
accountable 


 Overall guiding principles and strategies recommended 
by EDAB and adopted by the Commissioners were 
resolved 


5 







Action Steps & Progress 
 Engage Municipal Partners 


 What exactly did that mean? How would we accomplish 
this goal? 


 Charged the BCPC to think how it could re-purpose some of 
its work and personnel to support economic development 


 Used the model/example of Open Space & Ag Preservation 


 Announced in August 2012 – Bucks County Municipal 
Economic Development Initiative 


 Provide services and support to municipalities 


 12 – 14 municipalities already signed-up 


 


 6 







Action Steps & Progress 
 Centralize the Economic Development Function 


 Idea of “one-stop-shop” 
 Learned that this was “easier said, than done” 


 Multiple agencies & organizations in county involved in economic development 
 BCIDA (independent authority, County appoints board) 
 BCRDA (independent authority, County appoints board) 
 BCEDC (private, non-profit) 
 Chambers (4 major independent Chambers; private, non-profit) 
 BCWIB (County appoint boards; private, non-profit) 
 Bucks County TMA (private, non-profit) 
 Visit Bucks County (County appoints board; private, non-profit) 
 BCPC (county operated) 
 BC Office of Community & Business Development (county operated) 


 Evaluated approximately 6- 10 other counties; acknowledged there was no 
‘perfect, one-size-fits-all’ solution 


 Streamline, consolidate and make more efficient functions of economic 
development where appropriate and feasible 


7 







Action Steps & Progress 
 Centralize the Economic Development Function 


 Streamline, consolidate and make more efficient functions of economic 
development where appropriate and feasible 


 What does this mean? Entail? 
 Re-locate and re-assign county ‘owned’ resources & programs into one location 


 Currently: 
 Enterprise Zone (BCRDA) 
 2 Revolving Loan Funds (BCEDC) 
 1 Revolving Loan Fund (BCRDA) 
 Oversight and review (Office of Community & Business Development) 


 Proposed: 
 Assign all (existing and new) county programs and initiatives to Bucks 


County Industrial Development Authority (BCIDA) 
 One loan review process and committee 
 Final approval, as recommended by BCIDA, by Commissioners 


 Liaison between BCPC and BCIDA for municipal initiatives and 
coordination of programs; oversight (advisory) by CEDC for consistency 
with EDAB principles and county comprehensive plan 


8 







Action Steps & Progress 
 Make Better Use of Existing Economic Development 


Resources & Help Existing Businesses 
 Engage existing businesses; explore new initiatives to help 


businesses; better communication & coordination 


 CEDC reviewed the multiple and varied programs and 
initiatives 
 Evaluated and reviewed existing loan programs and purpose 


 As a result of several meetings by the Leadership group and 
presentations to CEDC, Bucks County Industrial 
Development Authority presented: 21st Century Blueprint 
for Economic Development 
 CEDC embraced initiative and ideas 
 BCIDA ready to act on implementation 


 
9 







Commissioners Economic Development Council 
Review & Discussion – Existing Loan Programs and Proposed New Initiatives 


Existing Loan Programs  Funds on Hand   Loans Outstanding  Total Fund Assets (3/31/12) 


BCEDC Revloving Loan Fund  $             989,241.32   $          1,516,467.09   $                   2,505,708.41  


BCEDC Coastal Zone Revolving 


Loan Fund  $               25,000.00   $             225,000.00   $                      250,000.00  


BCRDA Revolving Loan Fund  $             453,907.10   $          1,356,220.20   $                   1,810,127.30  


Total  $          1,468,148.42   $          3,097,687.29   $                   4,565,835.71  


Defense Conversion Loan Fund 


(BCIDA/BCEDC)  $             900,000.00  $               700,000.00  $                    1,600,000.00  


TOTAL $                     7,165,835.71 ** 


  BUCKS TO INVEST  


Proposed New Loan Programs  Amount Proposed   Source of Funds  


Bucks Rebuilt  $          1,000,000.00   County dedicated fund (post-closure landfill trust)  NEW 


 $           1,600,000.00 ** BCIDA Defense Conversion Loan Fund 


Bucks Renewed  $          1,000,000.00   County  dedicated fund (post-closure landfill trust)  NEW 


VC 4 BC  $          2,000,000.00   County, BCIDA future financing ; partnership with Ben Franklin  NEW 


Bucks Guaranteed  $          5,000,000.00 **   RLF (BCEDC, BCRDA); County Sct 108, CDBG Float  


Taste & Tour Bucks County  $             500,000.00 **  RLF (BCEDC, BCRDA)  


Innovation Bucks County  $          7,000,000.00   Future financing secured through IDA, County  (NEW potential initiative) 


Total  $        18,100,000.00  
10 







Action Steps & Progress 
 Bucks to Invest 


 Bucks Rebuilt – a policy of ‘intelligent growth’ that supports and 
encourages the revitalization and the adaptive reuse of older, vacant 
and abandoned or underutilized brownfield or grayfield industrial 
manufacturing sites and commercial facilities 


 Bucks Renewed – a program designed to leverage new private 
investment in downtowns and ‘Main Streets’ throughout Bucks 
County centered on the rehabilitation and renewal of critical 
commercial, and where practicable, historic sites and local 
infrastructure that can spur renewed commercial activity in our 
downtown areas 


 VC 4 BC – a joint venture between BCIDA and Ben Franklin 
Technology Partners to establish a public/private venture capital 
fund dedicated to Bucks County businesses, where every dollar is 
matched one-to-one with Ben Franklin funds 
 
 


11 







Action Steps & Progress 
 Bucks to Invest 


 Bucks Guaranteed – an initiative designed to better utilize 
Community Development Block Grants (CDBG) resources, such as 
Section 108 Loans and available ‘float loans’ to assist in underwriting 
large scale advanced manufacturing, life sciences and R&D investments 
within Bucks County  


 Taste & Tour Bucks County – a program to work with Bucks County 
farming, agri-business and tourism communities to support and 
encourage family-owned farms, farmer’s markets, tourism and the 
hospitality industry in Bucks County 


 Innovation Bucks County – future possibility to secure financing 
through the utilization of the nearly $7 million in combined assets 
within the county revolving loan program portfolios to establish a 
‘Center’ – i.e. Innovation Center / Entrepreneurial Center – which can 
house new start-up ventures and provide essential business and related 
services to support these new enterprises to grow and expand 
 


12 







Action Steps & Progress 
 Workforce Development  


 2013 initiative - need to start building a strategy for 
improving workforce and associated programs 


 Coordinated effort amongst BCWIB, BCCC Workforce 
Development program, Colleges & Universities, 
Technical Schools and Chambers (industry 
representatives) 


 Critical for future economic growth in County 


 


 


 
13 







So, What’s Next? 
 Commissioner Actions Needed 


 Re-assign county programs as recommended by CEDC 
 Assign three (3) existing loan programs to BCIDA 
 Assign Enterprise Zone program to BCIDA 
 Charge BCPC (Community & Business Development Office) to work 


with BCIDA on re-assigning and finalizing establishment of programs; 
re-purposing loan funds/programs 


 Support BCPC municipal economic development initiative and 
personnel re-assigned for liaison with BCIDA 


 Budget appropriations 
 Allocate necessary funds to BCIDA to support and establish new 


initiatives  (appropriated already in 2013 budget) 
 $500,000 for administrative & management  (new and existing program 


dollars); includes funds to monetize $2,000,000 for VC4BC 
 $2,300,000 from post-closure landfill trust fund for Bucks Renewed and 


Bucks Rebuilt (funds already exist in reserve – total of $11,000,000) 
 


14 











 


Commissioners’ Office of Public Information * 55 East Court Street, Doylestown PA 18901 
215-348-6415 * www.BucksCounty.org 


County Commissioners 
Robert G. Loughery, Chairman 


Charles H. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
Diane M. Ellis-Marseglia, LCSW 


 


Contact: Chris Edwards or Juliet Kelchner 
215-348-6415 


 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE February 26, 2013    
 


NEWS RELEASE 
 


COMMISSIONERS, CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER UPDATE LOWER 
BUCKS COUNTY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE (LBCCC) 


Addressing members of the Lower Bucks County Chamber of Commerce (LBCCC) in a county forum for 
the first time since July, 2011, Commissioner Chairman Robert G. Loughery, Commissioner Diane M. 
Ellis-Marseglia, LCSW and Chief Operating Officer Brian Hessenthaler provided a comprehensive update 
on county business February 26. The event, “Bucks County Now and in the Future,” was hosted by Bucks 
County Community College (Newtown campus) and college president Dr. Stephanie Shanblatt, PhD, who 
served as moderator. 
 
Chairman Loughery spoke of the variety of programs county government provides and kicked off the 
event with a thorough explanation of his proposed economic initiatives, or a “new direction for Bucks 
County.” Tracing the current Commissioners’ Economic Development Council (CEDC) to the former 
Economic Development Advisory Board (EDAB), he detailed the recommendations that have been put in 
motion over the last two years. One of those recommendations – Engage Municipal Partners – has led to 
23 (and counting) of Bucks County’s 54 municipalities enrolling in the Municipal Economic 
Development Initiative administered by the Bucks County Planning Commission staff. 
 
The chairman also explained his proposal to streamline economic development through participating 
agencies, known as “Bucks To Invest.” An estimated total of more than $18 million would be channeled 
into six areas: Bucks Rebuilt; Bucks Renewed; VC 4 BC (a one-for-one match partnership with Ben 
Franklin Technology Partners); Bucks Guaranteed; Taste & Tour Bucks County; and Innovation Bucks 
County. A copy of Chairman Loughery’s presentation is linked to the February 20 Commissioners’ 
Meeting news release at www.BucksCounty.org. 
 
Commissioner Marseglia touched on an array of human service programs either administered or 
affiliated with county government. She also characterized the state of the county as “quite good.” She 
noted that many of the county programs are “not like parks or bridges. You can’t just fix it, because it 
involves human beings.” She also borrowed a line from Mario Andretti, relating it to service provision: 
“If everything seems under control, you’re not going fast enough.” She also praised the county 
Corrections department for implementing a drug and alcohol wing for inmates, and encouraged business 
owners to employ county work-release prisoners if possible. 
 
Chief Operating Officer Hessenthaler provided an update on the county’s $390 million operating budget, 
the popular Veterans ID Discount Card Program, the 115 bridges the county maintains, the ongoing 
“Narrowbanding” Emergency Communications project for first responders, and construction of the new 
Bucks County Justice Center. Structural steel for that facility is scheduled to top out this week. 
 


-30- 



http://www.buckscounty.org/



































































































































































































































































		Blank Page

		Blank Page

		Blank Page






 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
MEETING 


 
Wednesday, April 3, 2013 


2:00 P.M. 
 


Robert H. Grunmeier Room 
1260 Almshouse Road 
Doylestown, PA 18901 


 
 


 


AGENDA 
 
 


 
1. Call to Order 


 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 


 
3. Approval of Minutes of March 6, 2013 


 
4. Executive Director’s Report 


 
5. Municipal Economic Development Initiative Update 


 
6. Neshaminy Creek and Mill Creek/Queen Anne Creek 


Trail Feasibility Studies 
 


7. Act 247 Reviews 
 


8. Old Business 


- Off-site Board Meetings 
 


9. New Business 
 
10. Public Comment  
 
11. Adjournment 


 
 


 
Please remember to contact us at 


215-345-3400 if you cannot attend. Thank you. 
 


AGENDA SUBJECT TO CHANGE PRIOR TO MEETING 
  







2 


 
 
  







3 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Minutes of Meeting 


March 6, 2013 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: James J. Dowling; Joseph A. Cullen, Jr.; Raymond (Skip) W. Goodnoe; 


Darrin M. Hoffman; Ed Kisselback, Jr.; David R. Nyman; Robert M. 
Pellegrino; Carol A. Pierce; Walter Wydro 
 


STAFF PRESENT: 
 
 


Lynn T. Bush; Timothy A. Koehler; Richard G. Brahler, Jr.; Donna W. 
Byers; David A. Sebastian; Matthew M. Walters; Maureen Wheatley; David 
C. Zipf 
 


 
1. CALL TO ORDER 


Mr. Pellegrino called the meeting to order at 2:05 PM. 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 


All rose for the pledge of allegiance. 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF FEBRUARY 6, 2013 


Upon motion of Mr. Goodnoe, seconded by Ms. Pierce, with the vote being 6-0-3 the motion 
carried to approve the minutes of the February 6, 2013 meeting. Mr. Dowling, Mr. Hoffman, 
and Mr. Wydro abstained as they were not present. 
 


4. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
Ms. Bush told the board that elected officials from the five-county area met on February 14th for 
the Metropolitan Caucus. The Governor’s proposal for transportation funding was the main 
topic. Chester County Commissioner, Terence Farrell, has written to the Governor requesting 
investment in the transportation system. 
 
Kick-off meetings were held last week for the Steering committees assembled for the 
Neshaminy Creek and Mill Creek/Queen Ann Creek trail feasibility studies. Ms. Bush said the 
meetings were very successful. Grant work on reducing sediment pollution in the Neshaminy 
Creek is also underway. Ms. Bush said this will help municipalities get ahead on their state-
mandated water quality requirements for run-off. A consultant should be appointed to the study 
within the next two the weeks. 
 
Ms. Bush updated the board on off-site board meeting locations. Montgomery County will 
discuss the BCPC board’s request for a joint meeting this month. The joint meeting will be a 
discussion of common interests rather than official business. Ms. Bush will follow-up with 
scheduling an off-site meeting at the Washington Crossing Visitor Center when they open for 
business. The board discussed advertising meeting location changes. 
 


5. MUNICIPAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVE 
Ms. Bush updated the board on the Municipal Economic Development Initiative (MEDI), 
stating 23 municipalities have signed up for the initiative and there is a lot of excitement about 
the program. Ms. Bush pointed out the type of assistance that will be provided to the 
municipalities as documented on the handout provided to the board prior to the meeting. 
 
 







4 


New Britain Borough Town Hall Meeting 
Ms. Bush provided highlights from the New Britain Borough Town Hall meeting. The meeting 
was attended by 90 people. After a slide presentation at the meeting, the floor opened to 
discussion and comments. Residents had an opportunity to vote on topics and use ―tax dollars‖ 
to spend on what mattered most to them. Ms. Bush said most voted for sidewalks, trails, and a 
better streetscape. Teachers and students from Delaware Valley College who are working on a 
corridor study were present at the meeting. Some local business owners have said business has 
plummeted since the opening of the 202 Parkway. 
 
Mr. Dowling, also present at the Town Hall meeting, told the board that most residents wanted 
local business and no shopping centers or large box stores, with the exception of a high-end 
store such as Whole Foods or Trader Joes. He also said there was some confusion about naming 
the older Route 202 and suggested a cachet for the stretch of Butler Avenue through New 
Britain Borough. Other comments Mr. Dowling noted from the meeting were a beautification 
project, walkways to shopping and borough center, and the need for repairs on the historical site 
of the New Britain Baptist Church and cemetery. 
 
Mr. Kisselback asked what is the size and population of the borough. Mr. Koehler responded 
approximately 1-square-mile and 3000 people. 
 
Ms. Bush highlighted industrial businesses and the potential for vacant properties. Mr. Hoffman 
asked if the college had any input on the 7-acre John Knoll property. Discussion followed on 
college dorms versus offsite housing for students. Mr. Pellegrino asked if the borough and 
college will partner. Ms. Bush responded that the college sends a representative to the borough 
meetings now, but in the past there has been little relationship between the borough and the 
college. 
 
Other MEDI Updates 
Mr. Sebastian updated the board on the Perkasie Borough Economic Development Workshop 
held in February. He said a representative from Sellersville Borough was present at the well-
attended meeting. Mr. Sebastian said a Facebook webpage for the Old Towne Association has 
been getting a lot of hits due to the enthusiasm for the ideas presented for downtown 
revitalization. 
 
Mr. Pellegrino said he had seen the plans BCPC staff had done for the Village of Holland study 
and they were great. A meeting is scheduled on March 28th to promote economic development 
in the Holland area. 
 
Bucks County Economic Development Progress Report 
Ms. Bush walked the board through a PowerPoint presentation given by Commissioner 
Loughery at the February 20th Commissioners’ meeting. Ms. Bush highlighted recommendations 
made by the commissioners’ economic advisory boards, action steps and progress, existing loan 
programs and proposed new initiatives. 
 
Mr. Pellegrino asked why there was reluctance to create a new position for economic 
development. Ms. Bush responded that there is no perfect organizational arrangement for 
economic development, based on our research of other counties. The Bucks County Industrial 
Development Authority is slated to be the go-to agency moving forward. 
  
Mr. Pellegrino polled the board for questions. 







5 


6. ACT 247 REVIEWS 
The reviews of March 6, 2013 were mailed to the board for their review prior to the meeting. 
Upon motion of Mr. Nyman, seconded by Ms. Pierce, the motion carried to approve the March 
6, 2013 Act 247 reviews. There were no abstentions. 
 
Chalfont Borough – Proposal to Amend the Zoning Ordinance-Sale of Motor Fuel, Outside Eating (#7-13-1) 
Ms. Bush handed out a map of Chalfont Borough Butler Avenue Overlay District and provided 
a summary of the review submitted to the board at the February 6, 2013 meeting. 
 
Mr. Koehler presented on the vision of the borough versus a developer proposal to build a 
Giant convenience store with gas pumps, a bank, and apartments in the overlay district. The 
proposal will not achieve the village character the borough is seeking. Mr. Koehler said BCPC 
staff met with the borough to talk about gateway features, streetscaping, moving proposed 
pumps to the rear of the convenience store, and acquiring public space. As an example, staff 
provided the borough with the Sycamore Street design in Newtown Township. Mr. Koehler said 
it seemed the borough is looking more toward accommodating the developer rather than 
fostering character as was part of their comprehensive planning. Ms. Bush added that the 
borough wants to move quickly to develop this corner. They were advised by BCPC staff and by 
other borough residents that the proposed plan will not achieve the ―village gateway.‖ BCPC 
staff suggested to Chalfont Borough that if they are going with this development plan, the 
borough should put everything they want into the zoning ordinance changes that they are 
considering. This will ensure that the developer will understand the borough goals and also be 
required to execute the plan in accordance with borough goals and standards. The board agreed 
that the borough should not depend on negotiations during the land development process. 
 
Discussion focused on traffic impacts due to the Giant ―points‖ system, the location of the gas 
pumps, potential impacts to neighboring New Britain Borough’s vision, present zoning, local 
business currently in the area, negotiating items in conditional use, and apartment rental rates. 
 
Mr. Pellegrino polled the board for further questions.  
 


7. OLD BUSINESS 
Off-site Board Meetings/Meeting at Montgomery County Planning Commission 
See Agenda item 4. 
 


8. NEW BUSINESS 
There was no new business. 
 


9. PUBLIC COMMENT 
There was no public comment. 
 


10. ADJOURNMENT 
Upon motion of Mr. Dowling, seconded by Mr. Goodnoe the motion carried to adjourn the 
meeting at 3:00 PM. 


 
 
Submitted by:  
Donna Byers, Staff Secretary 


  







6 


  







7 


BUCKS COUNTY MUNICIPAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVE 
Municipalities in Program 
March 2013 
 


Municipality Type of Assistance 


Bensalem Work jointly with Lower Southampton on Brownsville Road concept 
plan. Development or riverfront area. 


Bristol Borough Working with Borough’s economic development committee on Mill 
Street and general borough upgrades through their ―Raising the Bar‖ 
initiative.  


Buckingham Farming; Pennsylvania Biotechnology Center are focuses. 


Chalfont Participation with borough revitalization plan 


Dublin Part of their steering committee on revitalization 


East Rockhill Township visioning session 


Langhorne Updating master plan – focus on town center issues 


Lower Makefield Updating their comprehensive plan with focus on economic issues – 
older shopping centers; Edgewood Village; filling Class A office space  


Lower Southampton Study and concept plan for Brownsville Road – Street Road to Bristol 
Road 


Middletown Strategic planning for economic development 


Morrisville Community meeting and visioing 


New Britain Borough  Working with their economic development committee. Held 
Community Town Hall meeting March 5, 2013. 


New Hope Standards for riverfront development 


Northampton Working on Holland area 


Perkasie Updating their plan for the borough, specifically for the town center 


Plumstead  Route 611 corridor, Plumsteadville planning and public meeting 
participation May 30. 


Riegelsville Pending 


Sellersville Main street concept plan, and brownfield planning. 


Solebury Villages; river businesses and tourism 


Springfield Growth capacity of their industrial/commercial district, looking at 
constraints 


Tinicum Villages; river businesses and tourism 


Upper Southampton  Standards for industrial area 


Warrington Route 611 corridor 


West Rockhill Study of area around Grand View Hospital and village of Almont 


Yardley Downtown/Main Street – parking, cooperation of merchants 







8 


  







9 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Staff Report 
March 2013 


 


PLANNING SERVICES 
 
COMMUNITY PLANNING 
 


 Meeting Attendance—Attended the regular planning commission meetings of Sellersville 
Borough, Milford Township, and the Quakertown Area Planning Committee  


 Bristol Borough—Generated market reports and demographic information for use in the 
Borough’s economic development efforts. 


 Chalfont Borough—Met with borough officials to discuss Butler Avenue Corridor Gateway 
Overlay Distirct. 


 New Britain Borough—. Facilitated community meeting on March 5th with the New Britain 
Borough Community & Business Committee at Delaware Valley College. The meeting was well 
attended with more than seventy participants. Also met with the committee to discuss the 
community meeting and the next steps that will be taken. 


 Langhorne Borough Comprehensive Plan—Continued work on draft chapters related to the 
comprehensive plan.  


 Perkasie Borough Comprehensive Plan—Presented the Stormwater Management, Water 
Supply, and Wastewater Facilities sections of the plan to the comprehensive plan committee. 
Solicited comments and questions from attendees. Continued data collection and draft narrative 
production of the plan. 


 Northampton Township—Continued development of land use recommendations. Conducted 
fieldwork in village to confirm implementation plan.  


 New Hope Borough—Waiting for results of review by borough officials of the draft 
subdivision and land development ordinance. 


> Solebury Township Comprehensive Plan—Continued preparation of draft chapters for the 
plan update. Set up drop box application for committee members to review plan components as 
they are updated.  


 Tinicum Township Comprehensive Plan—Attended comprehensive plan committee 
meeting; presented drafts on housing, land use, and demographic trends. Continued 
development of draft survey. Began development of draft on township commerce and industry. 


 Yardley Borough—Continued researching how other boroughs have dealt with parking issues, 
such as encouraging and coordinating shared parking arrangements and how liability and 
maintenance issues with shared parking arrangements have been addressed. Prepared a summary 
of the public meeting held previously to engage members of the public in a discussion on what 
makes Yardley a special place and to get input on issues of importance to community members.  
 


Bucks County Comprehensive Plan 


 Continued work on research and writing of a report on Transit Oriented Design. Continued 
station evaluation. 
 


Planning Information and Agency Coordination 


 Provided information to the public on various topics including, but not limited to, development 
proposals, review letters, local zoning and municipal regulations. 


 Attended Bucks County Homeless Continuum of Care meetings. 







10 


 Reviewed Act 14, 67, 68 NPDES permit applications. 


 Continued production of census and American Community Survey datasheets. 


 Provided information to the Bucks County Department of Business and Community 
Development for the department’s update to the county’s HUD Action Plan. 


 
Act 247 and 537 Review Activity 


 8 Subdivision and Land Development Proposals 


 1 Sketch Plans 


 9 Municipals 


 1 Traffic Impact Studies 
 


ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING 
 
Neshaminy Watershed Sediment Reduction Study (FY2012 CZM-funded project) 


 Prepared consultant contract and submitted to Purchasing.  


 Commissioners approved consultant selection. 


 Selected consultant to conduct the analysis and develop the plan. 


 Created timeline/next steps for meeting with consultant. 
 


Stormwater and Flood Management Planning 


 Prepared for Silver Lake Nature Center’s June workshop. 


 Agreed to collaborate with Friends of Silver Lake for their pending WREN grant project. 


 Reviewed policy and procedures regarding MS4 and TMDL.   


 Researched grant opportunities. 
 
Bucks County Open Space & Greenway Plan 


 Prepared for initial community visioning workshops scheduled for April 3 for Upper Neshaminy 
Creek and April 30 for Mill-Queen Anne Creeks trail feasibility studies.    


 Continued research on parcel ownership and existing easements for parcels in the two project 
study areas. 


 Prepared Scope of Services for engineering services to be conducted as part of the two studies. 


 Began grant application for funding through DVRPC Regional Trails Program to complete 
feasibility studies along remaining portion of the Neshaminy Creek extending from Core Creek 
to Bensalem Township line.   
 


Recycling and Solid Waste 


 Met with regional recycling coordinators at monthly meeting. 


 Inputting annual recycling survey. 


 Working on HHW events sites selection for 2013. 


 Examining awarding electronic recycling RFP in conjunction with Montgomery County. 


 Awarding HHW contract per the 5 County RFP and IGA. 
 


Bucks Employees Green Initiative (BEGIN) Committee 


 Prepared for and conducted quarterly meeting. 


 Investigating CNG vehicle options for County fleet. 


 Preparing annual report to County Commissioners. 


 Researching ways to reduce paper usage and increase paper recycling. 







11 


 


TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM 


 
General Transportation Planning 


 Continued composing various sections of Route 202 Bicycle Lane Project Report. Continued 
developing base mapping information. 


 Continued developing Study Tasks 4 through 6 for Holland Village Study. Participated in site 
visit. 


 Attended Solebury Township Planning Commission Meeting to discuss Transportation Section 
of Comprehensive Plan. 


 Attended Greater Valley Forge TMA Spring Legislative Breakfast Meeting. 


 Presented Bucks County Economic Development Initiatives at Bucks County Workforce 
Investment Board Meeting. 


 Reviewed proposals for Tyburn Road Obstructions to East Coast Greenway for Pennsylvania 
Environment Council. Provided rankings to PEC for same. 


 Attended meeting with PEC to discuss trail funding priorities in the county. 


 Conducted Bucks County Bicycle Task Force Meeting. 
   
Public Transportation 


 Reviewed SEPTA Board Meeting and City/County Meeting Materials. 


 Began composing report for SEPTA Rail Station Visibility Enhancement Study. Developed 
computer-enhanced images for project report. 


 Attended TMA Bucks Board Luncheon. 
 
Transportation Assistance to Planning Staff 


 Discussed transportation related issues with staff for subdivision and land development reviews. 
  
Transportation Improvement Program 


 Provided Transportation Improvement Program information to various individuals and 
agencies. 


 
Delaware Valley Regional Planning Commission (DVRPC)  


 Attended DVRPC Long Range Planning Committee Meeting. 


 Attended DVRPC Regional Technical Committee Meeting. 


 Attended DVRPC Board Policy Meeting to discuss Long Range Plan. 
 
Geographic Information Systems (GIS) 


 Continued development of County-Wide Enterprise GIS program. 


 Continued database development of site addresses and EMS, Fire, and Police response zones. 


 Continued updating of Enterprise Geodatabase and ArcGIS Server. 


 Continued coordination with GIS consultant on the Land Records and EMS projects. 


 Continued development and support of County GIS Consortium efforts. 


 Continued updating and editing of county Road Centerline database. 


 Continued GIS technical software support to IT and GIS staff at Board of Assessment. 


 Continued support of County hosted GIS web server connection and interface. 


 Provided GIS technical support to Emergency Communication staff. 


 Continued technical support for MapJazz GIS Web Viewer. 







12 


 Continued editing of county-wide data layers using GIS Data Reviewer tool. 


 Continued upgrade of county GIS Enterprise hardware, software, and applications with 
GeographIT and county GIS staff. 


 Began development of MH/DP GIS web viewer application. 


 Continued editing procedures on land base parcel annotation features. 


 Attended Informational Resources Exchange Group (IREG) meeting at DVRPC. 


 Participated in a panel discussion of GIS and E-9-1-1 issues at the MAGTUG Symposium held 
at Villanova University. 


 Attended GIS regional data sharing meeting held at Montgomery County Fire Academy. 


 Interviewed S. Tyrrell of Bloomsburg University for GIS summer internship. 
 


GIS Map Production 


 Produced presentation maps for Community, Environmental and Preservation Planning units. 
 
GIS Transportation 


 Continued development of Region-wide GIS Transportation initiative. 
 





























































































































































































































































































